Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 1 of 270

EXHIBIT 2



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 2 of 270

APPENDIX DOCUMENT 1



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 3 of 270

EXHIBIT B

CVMT-2011-000040




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR  Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 4 of 270

- BRI o .-“ o Tribxi ﬁgara;:im .
' E 103, Woecp Basch
’ s . _' Sacrme:ﬁ:o Aia offi.c:e, s -

B0, Box 4775 - N - A
Sac:amento R hnliforﬂii 95825 T

_. FEB 3 1966
CERTIFIED MATL-BROON RECELPT ERQUESTED, |
. -D-c:_raf}!a.ta

hear ¥s. 'isiu:

'ﬁ:in !.attc:' in aritten in mpome o your jetver of Jaouary 27, 1966,
protexting the name of Mabel idxfe s the perscn baing elig-!.irle s volbe
on whether & plan #hould b mede for the distribution of the sssets of
the B‘hm:p Ranch Bancherla.

The &wmmmummm@ml 5, 1915 Erdm WLEYiar and

sy ﬁmmlnghsn by the Goitsd Ytates Govermuent £or Im:ﬂm or Bonelpss
Culf foriia Todfana, mmuzmwmmw{smnﬁemuf
the I_ﬁg_f.}_:_:;c}_‘smm of Wﬂmm ~Fphases an;rnpacﬂtc tyibey &ne

B group ok Im!i.mc. ¥oers have been wo Lormal sasigmcits or nﬁclmeutn
+ide on the t«uu::h:a:ia sud 1t Mnlvag; ‘bmn ‘eousidered ﬁhaﬂ&mﬁsmum

mcho:i&. . ST /

The m«:hm:ie. lx:t: E‘ub‘il‘.ﬂt Tew BS-GTI, iy awenﬁed magust 11 !:#64, provides
for .the distriburiog of the land end augets of certefn ;nﬂnm TELasationy
-and eaneheriag in Califorals snd for othos phipores, Factibd 17 .6f thiv -
smooded Ak athordied the Mett:y of ths Tatexior to lusug duth riles

Ast, zhe :mintm Bm:me effcahi.ve Augusi 13, 1965 T

E:cw M.Ma} Ao pen‘.imt parta of m.am of the muht:mm sre

ank regux,u:tmn he dessed Becksiity Lo osxTy guk the pmm:‘.ans cs‘.‘ the \1\\\0\\ o

'(a) Unorganixed rancheria 9f reservation, tUpon vecedpt of o
writtean nequest fTom fu acuit Kngidn of Indizst of m wworgwaived
vanchuria or regewyation: for tie dintribution of the avsete of
the caticheeld or resorvabion, phir Jarea) Divestor shall prnpurc
'S ma 28 %uamd 11 tha !’nlmw{ng crtego: tea:

iﬂbwmts m xhe rm:hm:i.c or reaérvaum

Y e fa AL A

i

2400 SryEVIInd

<"

CYMT-2011-000041 *

DO LT

v e e —— i




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 5 of 270

fx, e ghovi cAregories 1en Whio bave msggem .
!‘.nqt n!‘at: Ieut “thige: conyeigtive yadrs {mhedlataly .

Ry £.0f the v % sis provided for fa the _
e m,m sl -

‘ot ww:wtim mt get um £ar 3 mtguted Brotp of ]

<5}' o amﬁm.t mbem of thi zmame famtites of those
Indisng fu aubyarawha (1) . (2}, (3) and {4} of thix
paﬂamtp&«- tird : .

t'k'*tt**'&ﬁ*ﬂt:'

(d) 'li!hcn thq {Afsa) Pirvector in ggtfsfled thet the iist g
is c::mp!ata, he'shadl publigh. {t once w:kly for throee x
successlve weaks S.n & locwl pewspaper, ' Within 15 duys
affed thi dete of the last publicstion’s Bf ‘the 1idt, eoyone
mmmthxﬂ,ﬁmtﬁn ominimufanm from the
1ist'er the dnclusinon ofany neme thereon, Bl written
" pmmc-‘hogeﬂwf Wit a:j;t@:ents "t gugtadi Lt ahall’ be )
presghited b e (AT mmwinmaa:hm
daciston; whilch shali-he Tinal. = Aftar xii protésts hiree
beer hanrd #id have bedn du!.y disponsd 68, thc. {ﬁrea} : 3
Pivedtor. ﬁull Eold 38 alection tn mthw.' txﬂmx:f.au :
of mmmorrmmtmn iasetd milbemaa.:***" i

amemﬂqmathr :humtribmquuf the asuu of;the Bhesp Rapch
“Bancherlay unm:gnnlxasg mchr%iguw rem:!.w& trom lltu.‘ ¥abel | Wixde

‘whe ‘18 ‘présently ved En;tchwiq, Mg, Dixls ihety £he requires
‘nents’ in:b!antmnf&he

_ab'o'gp: vizcatagories, Conwequently she hds )

. bedn’ detevninkd RLE{NTE to vite g EhE “i5gie of whether & distxlbubiin b
. plan $hotld wwbﬁ“mawmmbmwblhhﬁ o wneekily for l
thi¥an tncmsivu mﬁa in ttm cuhmu mtpech, Ba Anﬁrm, Calsfarnia, -

Yo Int:‘bez: stui:u ‘ﬁm: lmd 's&mmch mmm' was lﬁ.atcd to our
Pats ckﬂ-.f, at timr. d?&,hm sisters
.fwﬂy- Plaky gud Johwoy mwm hepe yon
‘-_.'. ‘t;-l..'!- PRI ot mmb:ﬂlﬁ‘
f8n
znd m “Bodges,*

RS

.%
f51
8
E
..g
¥ :;E
g%’

B
;\.'.

CVMT-2011-000042




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 6 of 270

.r" "
B Nt SRR

4
L Oy

e A" anfu!mtmafymp:umtmmm_m !.t:’!musiu&t::z:1:;1:&-5;1543«!~
that nops 6F the'p emmnmﬁdymlett ;&eﬁﬁé#%%ﬂw&
.mgf&cﬁwwm sﬂ:m il teﬁumcaamot“qu e
a yotet B fhe fosge of prefacind # disteitation play, o Técords
maal thit isme ‘of ‘your relatives | enldu& oa the rancheris ih the
paNT, bk Fuch 'foriex pesidived Ip nok ' fnctor: iz thefe’
augibuif:y 5 ok because bd wégl‘.ed iu!:erel-t: wan mquiréd by snyoie
oz mm by a—cé'up‘ying the r&nch'hris., h

Thiz fetter is TORT ofﬁcm mbi.t,a that mft Kmdge& She!tun mi Tom
Bodges hxve been detormingd to be fnelfgtble; to participate {n the,
election to decids whether i és.utrf.‘butf.on piam for the Fheep Eench
Z=ncheris shﬂl b& deveicpu!. 7y

- 53.—““*%?:3‘ FowE,
Do
{Signed) Leonard M. Bili
Ares Pirector

. cet ¥, Grrin K, Alxola, Attorney
Bzn Apdrese, Calif,

P JiTown/dye 2+3-66

- AP e Snte
.. i B
nt

BT T S Y AP L U

" oVIT011-000043




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 7 of 270

APPENDIX DOCUMENT 2



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 8 of 270

_\AJeC\ﬁESd&\{ Cﬁususf SHh /?78’

(s 5Pokcsperaosﬂ/C[taIV.M&I{-‘* 05 Hie szeep. B

.}Qanc Lt’?f.r&- . . Yaf(u{qa Bik‘le. (3.CC=0 N

‘S‘-‘\\\}\.Ck: Fi&.\a&f\-%\i(\g‘-{ as awn ef\(‘c‘}\hl . .
:';'f'('-\\)a-‘ Menalaer a‘b-t\pp_-ﬂf\eep R&s‘\clx\hQ&nehen&,.
EEﬁ(olh’\AvEA"r Nnunavec 08‘92,9-.- ”’\z‘és e\c\.p

Q&r\cb\ QCL\"\C,{A.E;:O. s 't\m::, C_)\-x\ur AN V\-*

a(l o Al zed Qamhcrlm . Calavelas Courtiy,

E'Cz\ < %r\\'a\, AlSO ento\\ed 65 Tl Mﬂ‘vubers

i -{;jfe Slaecfp Rancin Qar'\c.‘mzr‘\c:._ ate Do

‘@(\2\1’5 é&ué\/&(rﬁ Keshel Kawc\f\\‘\;\n\‘ R’gzr\/ﬁ;?j/
%%;\Se\téa Josatt Pﬁu\k:_, spd Drlvra DUCiey's

:Grdf‘na’déa ﬁ:’{ff’ -70‘:'57";4.:’: Sﬁéu)nee— (QalloCe.

tI?dJ ]L/’e }”)(‘ofmé
. (Corles; %ﬁé r/%})’" end for af yéf-rf s oo Sheoprarel,

lé-‘p?;;?cc{ G Kipaa. 1%l a—;‘ //st‘ [fglc{ge_/
' ‘ AP? ﬂdﬂif.;‘l.iﬁﬂ{_{??f/a\ 27 s a0
, af‘/7'/£" S Yz :

S /ﬂwp Pancls: 117% Sclrod/ SZ‘JGQ
) 5‘(& 227 5 . q

(205) AT~ 8625

CVMT-2011-000110



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 9 of 270

A
su EEP RANCH RAN CERERTI

august 6y 1998

gilvia Fawn Burley
post Office Box 238 -
wilseyville, california 95

peat siivia,

al Memhex

enrollment as a Feder§11y Recognizegrgzig ;Y emh
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+ia F. Burley
gite of.Birth: Juiy 15, 1960
Roll # OB82%

g ~
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§ HEEP RaNCH RARC FRRIA
august 6, 1998

anjelica Josett Paulk
post Office BoxX 238
Wilseyvillie, California 95257

pear anjelica,

your enrgllment as a Federally Recognized
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Tribal Member

of the Sheep Ranch rRancheria has been approved by the
sheep Ranch Rancheria spokesperson/Chairman, Yakima K.

pixie.

anjelica J. Paulk
pate of Birth: June 09,1983

paughter of Silvia Favn Burliey Roll # 08829

4#,4()/:/1&
ima k. pixie /

cep Ranch Rancheria

NOTICE: This document is your verification of Tribal
paffiliation, please keep with other important papers.

sheep Ranch Rancheria
11178 School Street
cheep Ranch, california 95250
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SH REP RANCH RANCHERTIA
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wilseyville, california 95257

DeaX Raéhal,

Your;enrallment as a Federally Recognized Tribal Member
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sheep Ranch Rancheria
11178 School Street .
sheep Ranch, california 95250
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Transcription of videoiape: September 8, 1998 meeting behween Page 3
Yakimn K, Dixie, Raymend Fry, Brian Golding, Silvia Burley . ' o

Ty,

BEGIN TAPE

[conversation off-camera]

[off-camexal: - Don't feel bad about that part.

Raymond Fry [RFl: Oh, this is a little betier, lh? A itfle bit. A Jittle more room.
vakima Dixie [YDL The bedroom [unintelligiblel. -

RF: Lasttime, I think it was just kind of a [unintelligible].

[conversation off-camera]

RE: This s good for that, but where's my big house? If you could convince
them of that, I think you'd be okay, huh? '

YD: Yeah

Silvia Buzley [5Bl:  Well, we get kind of nervous about the big
[power?lpowwow?].

[laughter]
RF: Yesh, well, this is ndce,
yD: Youshould see the big house.

RE:  Yeah.The big house was [unintelligible]. Yeah, I'm sorry. This is Brian
Golding,

Brian Golding [BG]: I think you're the one ! talked to.

YD: Yeah.

RF: ~ Probably a time or two, yeah. [unintelligible] tribe. Last time Iwasup
here, it was me and Harold and Doug Wallace, 1 think.

yD: Yeeh
RE:  Well, this was before all this was going On.

TRANSCRIPTS BY SuUSAN WEISS OFFICE sERVlCEﬁ.
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Transcription of ﬁdeotape: September 8, 1998 meeting behween Page 4
Yakima K. Dizxie; Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Sitvia Burley '

RE:  About two years ago.

YD: You know what it looked like, huh?

BG; Yeah, it wasin bad shape.

RE:  Definitely, this is 100 percent better.

RE: Yeah,Ithink this was all one room. .

vyD: Ohh. The bedroom used to be right in there. We kind of got .ﬁ_red of that
and [unintelligible] that the bureau got to do something for me, for thirty years,
you know-

RF: A;nd it took them thity to get toit, t};afs right.

YD: And so they done it.

BG: Well, they say it's betier late than never.

RS: That's true, that's frue.

BG: There's something true about that.

RE:  Thirty years, that’s a long time to wait.

yD: Iv'salong time towaitto take any kind of action.

BG: Thaf's true.

RF: ‘Thisisthe old ranch right here, right? This is the old Rancheria.

vyD: Yesh, thisis the whole thing,

RE: Unhuh. How far does this go down, Yakima? 1 can’t remember. 1 know

you said that your aunt ived down the hill, oT ...

YD:

Yesh, she was living over there, that house right there.

TRANSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WElsE OFFICE SERYICES
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® ®

Transcription of videotape: September &, 1998 meeting behween Page 5
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brim Golding, Silvia Burley

RE: Right here? This would be your mom’s sister?

YD: Uh huh.

RE: Okay. And then there's some other relatives or something that lived
around. ' : '

YD: Yeah. My brother used to live right below there, Tom. Thisused tobe a
pretty good Rancheria. There used to be a four-bedroom house right here.

[unintelligible]

RF: Uh huh, vhhuh.

YD: It burnt down.

RF: Ohh.

yD: [unintelligible]. Fi-ve or six houses in there,

RF:; Atonetime

YD: One time.

RE: A few years back. Is been years agonow.

YD: And the old house used o be right here. It was 2 small one-room cabin

which was about, oh I don’t know, as big as that kitchen, 1 guess.

RF: Ahh.

BG: This was way, way back, then.

YD: Mmhmm.

BG: Al right. Well, very, very good.1 like this. This is nice. Thisis ...
YD: Itsniceand peaceful.' It's nice and quiet.

BG: Quiet.

. “TRANSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SERVICES
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Transcription of videotape: Seplember & 1998 meeiing between . Page6
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Silvia Burley :

YD: That's what I like about it. ] mean, T've been here, what, since 1950, so
that's almost fifty years.

RE:  Porty-eight years.

RF: That'sright.

BG: More years than there’s people in the town.

GB: Yeah, theres only thirty-two.

unintelligible]

Andit's grown! I bet you it's grown up to thirty-two.
Yeah.

My granddaddy.

1 was surprised to see that.

Thirty-two, geez!

Well, all right, well, it sounds good.

You want to show them that thing in the back?
Later.

Okay

Yeah, there is something that 1 want you to—
Okay.

—look into, too.

Okay.

1f you can, I've been on people behind it. I'm just getting a run-around on
it.

TRANSCRIFTS BY SUSAN WEISE OFFICE SERVICES
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Transcription of videolepe: September 8, 1998 meeting between  Page?

Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Sitvia Burley

BG: Oh, okay. Weli, I sure could Jook at it for you, you bet. Whatever it is.
5B: Lookatit.

RE: Tve gottostart somewhere.

BG: After weseeit, then maybe we can see it develop.

BG: Yeah, that's true.

RE: But, yeah, we'd sure like to have the tribe work with you guys, and you
now, working on who the membership s, and making it a government and
maybe get you all organized and move forward and —if that's what you'd like {0 '
do. See, we kind of want to do what you want to do.

yD: Well, we can sit down and discuss this and see what we come up with.

RF, BG: Sure, sure.

RF: 1know that over the years, other than this house, there just hasn't been
very much contact. :

YD: True

RF: Over the years. And we've done an awful Jot of research on the Rancheria,
or 1 have, and conceivably, it could be a pretty good size tribe, depending on
what you're comfortable with. You know, we don’t want to say whether you
should have these. It’s going tobe your call and what do you think. You know, if
you're comfortable with saying they should be ditectly related to my
grandparents or they should be related to my uncles or aunts 6r whoever, you
know, who should be considered part of the tribe because they [unintelligible]
pefore. Or they are people whohad a relationship to say tribe before they left.

Say they acquired houses at one time. Well, maybe those people and their
children might be the ones who would want to, you know, {0 live here. 1 can
anderstand that. So it’s really kind of up to you. We want to give you options to
think about or things to help you like that. We don't wanit to say, well, this is ‘
how it'll have to be. We're here to say that the tribe has a certain amount of funds
available to do, like we say, an office or set up, constitute your govermnment when
you're going to form your government. Have elected officials if you so choose.

TRANSCRIPTE BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SERVICES
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Transcription of videotape: September 8, 1998 meeling bebween . Page 8
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brion Golding,' Silvin Burley

Whatever you want. Land acquisition, possibly, in the future, for the tribe as a
whole. You know, it just depends where you want o g0 with that. Whatever
you're comforta_ble with.

YD: Actually, what you're saying is you're leaving it up to me and—
RE:  Pretty much so. Idon’t—
YD [unintelligible]

RF: Right. We don't want to dictate to you. As much organization as you want
to do is up to you too. See, we're only comforiable if you [unintelligible] this year
or 'd like the bureau to do this for me or work with me or not work with me. Or

1 want to hire people to do this or ... you know, ] want to de this for the tribe.

YD: At this time, my whole concernis ... Silvia is my concemn right now. All
these problems have been going on. She's been trying to do this, She’s been
trying to do this, running here, ranning there. They're just giving her a run-
around. They don’t want to help her. For some uncalled reason, it shouldn't even
be discussed. -

RE: - Rightf ﬁght-

YD: For personal reasons, ] imagine, but we could leave that part out. But
anyway, I'd like to help her.

RF:  Well, you take a big step by having her included as part of your tribe, And
that's usually the biggest step, anyway, because then it opens other doors, other

- opportunities. I think that's where it's going to go. ] mean, that’s where that can
go. So that's not certainly out of the question. Depending on what you'd like to
do for her. ] think there are certain Bureau programs. There are certain services
and certain areas that you can explore that's going to help her with education. Or
maybe there’s some housing issues that can be worked out funintelligible].
Services and other programs that she might be interested in, Or you might be
interested in. At this time.

YD: Yeah, Iknow, I mean—

TRANSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SERVICES
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Transcription of videoiape: Seplember 8, 1998 meeling between Page 9
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Silvia Burley

RE:  Well, it's like you said, it's thirty years, and you've lived here forty-eight
years or more. It’s depending on what your thoughts are.

yD: What's the possibility of maybe—Thope that it can be soon—helping her
out and her family—~maybe putting up a house for her on this [unintelligible}
here to start with. Junderstand that very soon that the [unintelligible].

RF:  Uhhuh, uh huh.

Yb: They’re going to have toleave.
RE:  Well, ] think there’s—

ﬁ: Let’s not do it right nov\;.

RE  Well, right. The reason there may be some time delay on that is because
jt's in a probate status. Legally, it hasn’t been resolved as to the heirs, the .
ovmership of the land. So when that's resolved, I think then the divided interest
is there. This is your land or it's my brother’s land ox it's whoever's land.

YD  Well, I think the deed that was for the [unintelligible] that went to my
mother. And then she passed away and he never did go nowhere.

BG  But shereceived the deed and then the government came back a month -
Jater and said, No, we made a mistake, so sign this quitclaim deed back to the
government. And she did. And then she passed away, before the federal
govemment could give another deed back to her. So it was that transaction, that
action, signing that quitclaim deed, that put the land back on the government. 5o
then the probate that was done after your mom passed away included the
property as one of her—as her property. And that's when you had Merle and
your brothers and yourself listed as having an undivided interest in the land.
Where we're at today is, le’s say you wanted to do a home site lease, which you
would need to have in place before, say, a HIP house could be built. Before the
bureau can approve that lease, we would have to go through that probate period,
or process, Since some of your brothers have passed away and Merle has passed
away. ‘

vD: Everybody passed away except for, ] got one more brother that's living in
Sacramento, I think.

“TRANSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SERVICES ,
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Transcription of videotape: Sepiember 8, 1998 meeting behween ) Page 10
Yekdima K. Dixié Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Silvia Burley

BG: Uh huh. So, we would need to get a probate going on those three other
people who have passed away. And the result of the probate would be that you

and your brother would have each a one-half undivided interestin the land. And
it would be at that point, then, that the hoine site lease could be approved.

vD: How long could that take?

BG: Well, years. Yeah, in some case i's been years. 1 think your mom’s probate
took over a year to complete.

RF. That's anormal fime. Because of the probate judge. What they do is they
schedule these hearings and they have to g0 through all the fact finding,
Jetermine who the heirs are and how much— '

yD: 1don’t’ remember ... Idon't recall ... Were you at that meeting when they
called me over to Sacramento from Phoenix, when they had this land up for sale?

RF:  Oh, no,uh uh.
BG: Thatwas back in the seventies.

vD: No, eighties. Because 1 was working over here in {Murphy’s?] and my
boss took me. And 1 took the letter and everything, but 1 was the only one that
held back. I did not sign the [plece whole?]. And they wanted me to sign it so0
they could get their land back and I refused. Now they [unintelligible]. Another
twenty-five moré years. ] stayed, so ] could stay another twenty-five more years
or until I die, whatever. So how did that go? Do you remember that?

RE:  No,Idon’t think 1was at that meeting. We'd have {0 research that part.
vyD: Oh. Well, you heard about that meeting, though, 1imagine.

RF: Tveheard about but] wasn't a party to it, of course, and there hasn't bean
alot of discussion about that. Otherwise, it would be a part of cur record.

yD: 1don’tknow if you got any kind of papers [unintelligible].
RF:  Right. .
YD: Nothing at all. ' ) o
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RF:  See, normally, the bureau is the caretaker or the holder of your title to
your land. So they can certainly give out twenty-five-year Jand use permits and

that type of thing.
yD: Well, that's what it was.

RE:  But they couldn’t exceed twenty-five years. Every twenty-five, they'd
have to renew it or they’d have to do something. But, see, the probate would
definitely be the way 10 go if it hasn't been completed, because that gives you
‘ime [unintelligible]. See, right now, the government’s still holding the title in
trust for yourself or the heirs, and still, you're on a land use permit. So you'd
have to get the title cleared up. And that would do it. That would totaily
funintelligible]. You'll identify yourself or your brother, whomever the heir is.
And [unintelligible]. But until that happens, I guess—1I guess what we'ze trying
to say is until that happens, it's xind of hard for you to lease out a portion of the -
Jand because you don’t have title to it yet. 1 mean, through the probate. So that's
what would hold up any construction or Jeasing or anything Tike that. At this
point in Hime. 1 think in fhe future, though, it’s going to happen. It can’t happen
today for that reason.

vYD: Sol guess...soit'soutof the question right now as ... Do you think that
possibly ... you mean, a house put up for her ... that’s out of the question at this

time, then?

RE:  Well, I tell you what. I'm not going to say yes because there’s other ways
of doing it, other than yourself giving a lease, ] think—I'd have to talk to a
-housing person about that. But 1 can get back to you with that. What would have
to happen first is a tribal member would get a house adjacent to you—maybe

have one built—
[tape breaks here, then restarts]

(voice, no picturel: Soletus take a look at that real hard.

ftape breaks again, restarts]

BG: Yeah, 1think the probateis something you're going to want to get started
with. And in any event, I think any other research we're going to be doing or any
other answers we might get from other people at the bureau are all going to
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[unintelligible] that probate be completed. So in order to do that, we're going to
need copies of the death certificates for the people. And I'm not sure about how
we could assist you in doing that.

YD: That's going tobe a hard one because 1 think my young brothez, Tormy,
he was cremated. I do b‘elieve my oldest brother, who died over in West Point—
Richard —1I do believe that he was cremated also.

BG: So, did they pass away here, in Calaveras County?

YD: One was in Stockton, one was in West Point. My dad passed away here.
My mom passed away in Sonora.

BG: Well, we've already got your mom. And so we would just need to know—
3f we know what county that they passed away in--

RF: We might be able to get that.
BG: Yeah, we could write a letter and —

YD: 1gotthe dates for most—well, not the time, but I've got the dates when
they passed away, though. It was all I got.

RE:  Well, no, that's very important. That'll help a lot. Because they'll be able to
give us the records [unintelligible] and when it happened. And who it is exactly,
when and where and who. -

vyD: Now, would you like me to forward that to you? Or do you want to get it
down 1ight now on a piece of paper?

BG: Yeah, if you haveit handy, let’s write that down now.
YD: Yea}lz Okay,

RF:  Letme go get my briefcase. I've got a tablet and such in there. I could do
that. '

BG: - Why don’t you grab mine, too?

GB:  Think they’re out there. [laughs]
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BG: Yeah, there's usually a cop associated with reproducing those documents,
so 1 think that's something we can pick up for the tribe. They'te like seven bucks
apiece, or something like that. Thank you.

RF:  Yeah. Here we go.

[opening briefcases, taking out paper]

SB:  Which one of you guys‘{urﬁntel}igible] [for Sandra?/Cassandra?).
funintelligible]

BG: lused ;o do a Iot of road construction,

SB:  Yeah.

YD: Okay. My mother, Mabel Rubens Dixde, died July 11, 1971, Sonora,
California, My young brother, Tommy Edward Dixie, August 21, 1983.

BG: In Stockton, California? That was August 212

vyD: Mm hmm,I forgot when Richard was—ninety-something.

RF: Richard Dixie.

YD: It was either ‘52 or '93 when he passed away over here—West Point.
gB: Laverne's cemetery [unintelligible]?

YD: Yeah, mm hmm. I think it was 92, m not too sure now. But anyway,
right here in Calaveras County. West Point.

BG: Itwas Richard Dixie?
YD: Yeah
BG: Does he have a middle inital?

YD: Who, my brother? Yeah, Gil. Oh, boy, what is my old brother’sname? 1

think Gil. Just like my dad, [unintelligible] Gil, but he’s Richard Gil.
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BG: Okay. That was in about ’9ﬁ or 93,

vD: Yeah. Some of them I forgot. I don't have that one. I didn't write that one
down. My dad died right here and that was ...

RE: Okay, what was his name?

YD: Roman.

RF: Roman?

YD; Mmhmm

RF: Dixe.

YD: ltwasin’85.1 don’t remember the exact date.
BG: lt-was right here in Sheep Ranch.

YD: . Right here, yeah, in the old house.

RF: And Merle Butler? Do you know?

- yD: Someone said ‘85 and I anderstood—1heard somebody else say thathe
was dead, 50 I'm not too sure.

Earl Butler Dixon?

No, that's just Merle Butler.

Oh, okay. Any survivors? Did he have a brother, uncle?
No, neither one.

More like a stepfather?

5385 %595 °

. Well, yeah, 1 guess you could say that. He was staying with my mom fora
while.

Rr: Kind of a stepdad or something. Okay, but he was an heir, right? Or he '
was some-—
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YD: Well, they got him down here.

RF: Common law or something,

YD: Yeah, that's [unintelligible].

~ BG: Now, hie had a one-third undivided interest.

YD: Mm hmm,

BC: And then, the remaining two-thirds were divided four ways, one each
between your brothers.

vYD: Mm hmm. So everybody's dead except for—you can put my brother
down there, Melvin, He's alive.

RE:  Oh, he's alive? Still living,

vD: Yeah, he's living in Sacramento somewhere.
RF: Melvin Dixon?
YD: Yedh

RF:  Okay, he's one of the heirs also.

yD: Although, he was one of the ones that wanted to sign it off, too. Do you
recall when [unintelligible]? 1 was the only one that held out. I guess you know

that, huh?

RE:  Yeah.Umjust tryingtofi gure—that's when they tried to sell the land,

right?
YD: Mmhinm.

RE:  Sowe'll have to give everybody else permission to do that. Okay. 1 think
that probably it's going to be a really interesting little show. Now, how many
acres was this, Yakima? Do you remember? It started out bigger, I'm sure.

YD: Nine point something.
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RE: In the beginning?
YD: Yeah,isthateven—
BG: Pointnine-two.

RE:  Point nine-two, Okay. 50 it’s almost one acre, but it's kind of shaped kind
of—

vD: 1¥s trangle-like.
RE: Yeah. Kind of longer this way than this way.

vD: Well, it goeslike that, you know, back there tike this. And it comes up and
it comes up this way and [unintelligible]. And then like that. |

RF:  Mm hmm. That's pretty good, one acre, but it’s all right here, 50 ... What'l
probably happen, o 1 would think would happen, is probably someone’s going
to come up and do a survey. You know, 1 think they’ll look at the Jegal
description and make sure that it's ... Because it may be you have more land
than you think, Or maybe less, ] don’t know. T don't know that. But the
boundaries, I'm sure, have been established.

yD: Yeah. The boundaries have been established. Like you said, it might be
even a little bit bigger.

RE: It might be a little bit bigger, that's right. One acre’s a-pretty good piece, 2
pretty good chunk. Do you know what his middle name was, Yakima?

YD: Gil

RE:  Oh, Roman Gil, okay. Just like Richard.
YD; Mmhmm.

RE:  Okay. And he passed in ‘85.

YD: Mmhmm,

RE:  And Richard it's "92 or "93.
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YD: Somewhere in that area. I'm not too sure.

RE:  1ihink thisis alot to go on. 1¢'s more than we had before. I think we could
probably pursue this as far as getting death certificates and that type of thing. I'm
ot sure without ctiecking with realty where they're at on this probate, if it's

anywhere.

BG: Well, you have to initiate the process. And so what we can do is help you
by tracking down the death certificates, But you'll need to send us a letter,
basically saying these people passed away, 1 understand a probate needs to be
completed and per our visit, you guys agreed to help me out with the death
certificates. And so ¥'m requesting at this point it be done. And from that letter,
we'll work on getting the death certificates. And then, we would forward all that
o realty. And then the realty branch then would work up the probate to have
those records ready. So when that judge comes around, probably some Hime next
year, they’ll be able to act on it. :

YD: So,doyou want that letter written up real soon, or it don’t have to be that
soon? '

BG: Whatever, 1 guess. You don't have to stop and do it right now.
YD: Okay.

BG: Butyou know, the next couple of days, maybe, or a week.

YD: Okay.

RE:  Yeah, itjust takes time, that's all. Once the process starts, it just takes a
certain amount of time, regardless of when it staris.

BG: Itsgoingto be at least a year

RF:  ltseems like that's the normal time. Even when everything is in place, it
takes about that long.

g Soif, say, the stuff with Merle—do you think that if he is deceased, there
might be some heir anywhere? Or do you have any idea funintelligible]?
[unintelligible].
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vD: Well, I understood he was down in Jamestown [unintelligible]
somewhere. That's what understood. That's the last thing that1knew or heard
about it, that he was alive and it’s just that he went to some kind of convalescent
hospital or something fike that. It might be Sonora.

6p:  Because Dick had theidea that Junintelligible].
[un_intelligible]

YD: 1 think he's got a sister living in Sonora—Elsie?

sp:  [unintelligible]

YD: Yeah, mm hmm, _

YD: Idon’tknow if you remem'ber that Chuckie that lived over by Murphy?”
gp:  1heard that name along time ago.

yD: He passed ax;way to0 in an old folks’ funinteiligible].

BG: So, to your recollection, Merle was [uninteligible], huh?
YD: Yeah. '

BG: From around these paris?

yD: Yeah. Most of his relations were in Murphy.

BG:  Well, later this week, I'll make some calls and probably write some letters
to these counties to see if we can come up with some info. And we'll get that ball
rolling on finding the death certificates. And as for your brother Melvin, have
you talked to him recently?

YD: 1haven't seen him for thirty-five years, or maybe thirty-seven years.
BG: Wow. -

yD: Hedon't write, he don't do nothing. He knows where 1 live. I gave him
my post office box number, 41.1had that box, T don’t know, ayear, a couple of
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years and it hasn’t changed. But 1 don't even know if he's alive. Although
Velma-- ‘

-gB;  White Bear?
YD: Yeah. She was over here greeting me one day, and she brought another

lady. over with her. And she said, Yeah, Melvin's in Sacramento. You guys might
know Velma, huh? '

_ gB: She's from [unintelligible].
BG: I'veheard the name.

yD: Now,if you get in touch with her, she might know his address and what's
going on with where he's living, :

BG: Okay- Velma White Bear?
gg:  Mmhmm.

YD: M hmm.

RE:  [unintelligible]

M

RE:  Everybody know. Everybody knows, but somebody don't know. Well,
that part sounds preity good. So far so good. Just on that probate matter, right?
It's just something that has to be done. It's just, until that happens, 1 guess, things
are going to be kind of tied up relative to the land, anyway. I¢s kind of
important. I'd kind of like to survey Gilvia as a tribal member some time on
certain things as [unintelligible]. I was going to question one of those, But like I
said, until they find out a little bit more from our housing person, you know,
what would she have to doio be eligible for a HIP house. I not on this land, then
other 1and. Yeah, then that's where we would go from there. You'know, tome,
that would be the only option.

YD: Yeah, okay.
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RE:  There may be other options too, 50 ... But we can sure check on that, I
would think there’s also education, some possible education benefits.

YD: 1think that's what she’s got a brain for.

RF:  Scholarships, things of that nature, And I think there’s some of that
available. Some options like that. Higher education [unintelligible]. The only
thing probably not would be that assistance program because you have to live

on—
BG: Oh, general assistance.

RF:  Yeah, yeah. I thinkit's only entitled [unintelligible]. Which is kind of a ...
well, you have to almost be disqualified from anything else to be eligible for that.
That's kind of 2 program of last resorts. [unintelligible].

BG: Yeah. It'sanew program of the last four yeats or fifteen years.
RF;  Itjust came to California.

BG: Right

YD: Oh, okay.

RE:  Butit'sjust something, I think, that's just getting the word out, you'll
probably find there’s some definition as to be eligible, you have to Iive on and
you have tobeina designated service area and the tribe’s got to have land to
have a service area. So they’re working out the kinks a little bit 50 ...

BG: But certainly the bureau operates a scholarships or higher education
program, and 1believe the requirements there are—maybe [unintelligible].
And/or a quarter degree Indian blood. And so there is some funds, you know,
Tunintelligible] Sheep Ranch for that program. So if you were seeking funding
assistance through that program, it could be done. You would need to obtain an
application from I think it's Abby over at the area office.

GB:  Yeah. She’s funintelligible].

BG: Okay.

- TRARSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICGE SERVICES
1400 SHATTUCK AVENUE #E » BERKELEY, CAS4709 « TEL510848154B » FAXB5B061-E656 » SUSAN @ S—WEISGCOM *

CVMT-2011-000132



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 32 of 270

® o

Transeription. of videotape: September §, 1998 meeting befwezn Page 21
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Sitia Burley

gB:  Another thing we were talking about CIMC because now I'm

unemployed. So'libe [unintelligible] training or I can come Ovex here and kind

of getused 1o what's going-on at the Rancheria here and get documentation form
and say to the form that she was willing o agree tobe mybossand writeup
what she would want me to do, That would probably be an option. That
[unmtenigible]. At least for a few months. i

BG: Would they need your membership as a tribe in the consortium? Have
théy talked about that?

sg: 1 don’tknow. They sent yon a paper to sign. It's just like on-the-job
training. And Itold them that we were going to be frying to get organized, but
right now, I'was wondering if they had time to work with him and find out
where the [unintelligible], and stuff like that. But 1said that] would probably be
working with him. '

BG: Uhhuh, Okay.

yD: There's one right in Angel’s Camp. I don’t think anybody ever—1
wouldn‘t mind having a stamp put on there that all my rela—my dad, my
mom—mostly my dad —all his relations are buried in an Indian burial ground

over there.
BG:  Oh, in Angel’s Camp?

vD: InAngel’'s Camp. I wouldn't mind having a seal put there s0 nobody can
ever touch that ground. It's a small —it's about, oh, I don't know, about half as
big as the sign there. The fence is all caved in, That's one my dad just put over
there. He's buried there.

BG: How many grave sites are there?
yD: Oh,boys, you gotmea good one there..
BG:  More than a half a dozen or so?

YD: Oh,yeah.
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RE: Becausel think under that ﬁeritage Commission, there are certain—
reparation, or there’s some protection for grave sites, that you can't
[unintelligible] living within them. ' :

YD: Thesé ismore than half a dozen..

BG: Right. And1think, I thought halfa dozen was the number, thoughImay .
be a little off on that.

RE: Is that on private property? Orisit within a larger cemetery? Or ... is it
Kind of off to the side out in somebody’s pasture?

YD: Yeah. Itbelongs to Bob [Rolle?], Bobby.
BG: Bob [unintelligible]?

YD: Mum hmm.

BG: Isherelated?

YD: No.

gB: Related to Judge Rollo, huh?

YD: Yeah, he's a German. That's where all of us kids were born. We were born
on that ranch, every one of us. Except for—one of them was born in Crescent
Hill Ive got it down here in this book. [unintelligible] These are exactly where I
was bom, what time it was, my dad’s [uninteliigible]—when he was bomn and
my mom, when they were born. I've got everything ail written down here.

RF:  Sort of like a family Bible, you could say. Usually it's in the living room.
Everyone’s baptismal records, everything's in there.

YD: See, Idon’teven have a birth certificate. I was born natural,
RE:  Alotof them don't.

v¥D: 1had a problem on that. I went down there to the DMV to apply for my
driver's icense [unintelligible] I missed one out of all them guestions. I paid it
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and everything and they said, Do you have a birth certificate? And I said no.
They said, 1D card? No. -

. RE: Cot tohave those.
. BG: That'sright.

YD: 1got slapped in the face. S0l walked out, I got an ID card now. But it took
me years and years to get it. [unintelligible] it's in a book.

RE:  it's gotall the facts.

YD: Al that's written down there. My dad had written a1l that down there. It's
not my handwriting, it's my dad’s handwriting. And he held it as—what do you
call that?—

RF: Heirloom?
BG: Family history.

YD:  Yeah. Well, what do you call that? There's a book for that. That you write
all your secrets down and this and that, That's what—

RE:  Oh, like a diary.
GB: Like a diary.
BG: Oh.

YD: And he checked it and checked it and checked it. When he died, 1 kept it
because it had all the records in it. All your enrollment number, my mom’s
enrollment number is there. We had an old enrollment number. Everything’s in
that book. '

BG:  Well, that would be helpful too, just in the process of reorganizing or
organizing the tribe. You [unintelligible].

yp: Well, I can go way back. 1 know who was living up there, how many
people, How many houses were up here. 1 go way back.
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RF: I guesson thatend, itkind of depends on how far back you want to go.

vou know-who, basically, the families were that were here back in the beginning. -
1 guess [unintelligible]. Maybe you want to limit it to just those families. That
information [unintelligible]. That's always the question that probably takes the
most time to determine. 1t's one of thé hardest things to work out, t00. Because it
could be so many, if you wanted it to be. Or it could be so few, It can be very
restricted. It might be just people that you want— . '

YD: 1would like to keep it restricted, you Know, jizst to a few, not, you know—
RF: Hundreds and hundreds.

YD: No.

RF:  Well, 1 think that’s your call, dgain. If you want it fobe just off of your
grandparents or your great-grandparents or your mom or your dad or
whomever—your uncles, your aunts and their kids. I¥sup toyou.

YD: Is that going to make it I cannot bring ... Does that mean ... If1 openitup
... By me saying “open it up,” Jet's say that we-—not we, We don’t even use that
word; that's just something that was put up there as headquarters for the Miwok

Indians.

BCG: Could you say community building, maybe, or something like that?
RF: Center.

vD: Does that open it up for everyone fo try to grab a piece of that pie?

RF:  No, not really. I think what you can do, Yakima, that is, once you've
determined what criteria you want them to meet—like they have tobe directly
descendeant to your aunt, whoever, of unde—and then you can pretty much
determine the criteria for membership. You can draft a constitution if you'd like.
You can have iribal elections if you want. You can have a tribal government or
people who represent the tribe. And I think you can control things like that
through tribal Jaws. Things like that. Let's say you're Miwok, you put your
community center here, Well, that's for the benefit of the tribe. And you've
already defined who that is, See, that’s what I'm saying. Nobody else can come
in and say, Well, we're Miwoks ¢om Tola or we're Miwoks from Jackson and
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then Tuclomiie and Buena Vista. You know, we want use that qnd take that.
Well, no, they can't do that. It's not theirs. It's your tribe. It's your band.

yD: That's why I asked you that one guestion.
RE: You can control that.

yr: 1f1openup orif]did something like that, would it open it up? And you
said no, it’s up to you.

RF: That'sup to you, that's right.
YD: You cantell—-

RF:  How wide you want it or how narraw you want it or do you want it to
just ... 1 think the thing you're looking at is, to be the fairest, you know, reaily,
who would have a right to membership today? Would it be just your children
and your brothers and your ... Again, your aunts and undles [unintelligible]. So
that's probably the biggest question. How many [unintelligible]: What you have
1o look at is, well, if we go with my uncles and aunts and all of my cousins, asan
example, and their children—let's say that’s 100 people. Well, it couldbea
hundred. Or it could be maybe more than that. What you can control there is,
you could have open enrollment seasons. You could have closed enrollment. You
could have them go through an enrollment approval process. People have to
apply. You might have people—elders, maybe—say, Well, okay, we know that
they’re members and they meet these requirements so can be membexs. You vote
on their membership. And so it isn’t an automatic process. It takes something to
be a member of the tribe, Just like it would be if you wanted somebody off of the
membership Tole. Let's say that it's a member of another tribe. Well, you'd have a
law in place that would deal with that. Just Iike you would for bringing them in,
there's a rule for taking them out. That’s just something to think about. There’s
just so much to think about because there’s so many different things that are part

of this.

YD: Well, if I got somebody to help me in that pari, such as maybe Silvia can
help me and we could work together on this thing.

RE: Mmhmm.
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YD: She’s well educated —a whole Tot better than I am. funintelligible] There's
some things that 1 am smart funintelligible] and we can share it together and

bring everything up to date.

Sp:  Would you have to wait along timeé for the probate [unintelligible] to get
an office? Because all Y've got is a fypewriter to try to type things up for him, and
1#s so mueh easier to put things on computer and ... Because he has no office
and, like his phone, he doesr’t have a recorder. Yon know, if something comes
up to leave a message for him. :

RF:  Wel, actually, what you could do is, if you go down here downtown
[unintelligible].

[faughter]

RE:  Down here. This is downtown. And they had an office space down there
for rent, You could rent that. You could make that your tribal office. You don’t
have to be here, 1t can be off the Rancheria. Because a lot of tribes do that. They
don't have their—at least to start with. See, start it out—

YD; [umintelligible]

RF: Uhhuh

Yﬁ; The funding, now. Where does the funding come from? The government?
RF:  Mm hmm. |
YD: [unintelligible].

laughtes]

RE: Well, see, fhat's a very ... Well, let's see, how would 1 explain it? Every
tribe—every federally recognized tribe— and Sheep Ranch is—we have fifty-two
of the ledgers [unintelligible]. There's a pot of money that comes down every
year. And what they have done is each tribe is given a share of that money.
Okay, now your share would enable you to do an office, hire staff, hire

consultanis.
YD: Why can’t we ... how come it cannot be placed up here?
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RE: What's that?
YD: A building. An office.

RE:  Well, it’s the land [unintelligible]. Well, if that's Tesolved, it's like your
house. Or your community center o ... And the tribe, too, in time—

YD: Yeah, there used to be buildings down here but it's a big building.
| RF:  I¥'snotalittle office space.

yD: No. J¥'salarge building. I would say approximately, maybe four times as
big as this. .

RE:  That'sa pretty good size.

cp: No,because they don’t [find?] many stores. Like he said, they just have
just a post office.

YD Né, we've got [unintelligible]—

RE:  No, that's the general store and that's everything rolled into one, I think.
YD:. We don't have no rest room connected there.

SB: ° No, it's [unintelligible], you have to go out of town.

vp: You've got to go over there to Mountain Ranch?j or to Murphy's or to
Avery.

RE:  Yeah, that's a trip. That's right. It's nota...

gB:  So there really isn't going to be much office space. 1 mean, anything that's
open is just going to be what they have right there. ] mean, like these people’s
homes.

RE:  Well, that's an option, too. We've had them do that, use their homes for
their offices. But I'm thinking ... You know, if that were the only space available,
you could use that for that.
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yD: When ook at t, though, it's big,
RE: Itstoobig

YD: It'stoobig..

SB:  You wouldn't be able to have another thing added on? So that he could
have [unintelligible] but he could have, like, another business site for office.

RF:  I'm not sure he can because of certain requirements.

sg: Oh

RE:  lfyou use the program more, it's for certain things.You can’t use it for
those same things again for like five years or something Jike that. There’s some
restrictions on it, but there are different things you can do.

BG: Well, 1don’t think we would be doing it under HIP, It would be more like
they would make a kind of endowment..

RE: Possibly, possibly.
yD: Thisisn't a question, okay. [unintelligible] You've seen the house now—

RF:  Right, right. I think the bed was Tight here, if I remember.

" yD: - Okay. If you recall what was said, that1 could add on to this building. But

it only has tobe a 12 x 12 [unintelligible]? That's all I can add on toit,a12x12.
And 1 can do that on my own. :

RE:.  Mm hmm,

BG: Yeah,Idon'tknow.

‘ RF: 1dontknow. Whatl would look at here, because I'm not suxe ir's

rgsb'icted to just that any more. They’ve changed the rules a litfle bit since then.
They've got some new regulations out. But I'm thinking that—see all you had
before was a renovation, think. '

YD: Mm hmm.
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RE:  You know, they came in anri they added a room where they reriovated
your existing house. There may be an option there as well.

YD: Well, the only reason 1 had this thing, and it took me that long top have
[unintelligible] and have this whole building rejuvenated, you know, done
over—

RF: Jltneeded it

YD: —is, you know, I thought it was—you know, hey, if 1 get some company
here, how will it be laying right in bed, 'm trying to sleep~—

[laughter]

YD: ... they're out here talking, They want {0 look atthe TV or they want to
listen to the radio or whatever they’re doing. ' '

RF: It's better. It's a lot better.

YD: But sincel got that and it took me that long, I enjoy it.
aughter]

RF: Very much.

YD: 1enjoy that. [unintelligible] 1 can go in there and go to sleep.
RF: That'sright.] understand.

YD: Anyway, getting back to that one part, you think there was regulations on
that about tacking on?

RE: Well, there’s some new regulations on HIP. But as far as using it to cover
government, which is a different program—it's all one pot of money
[unintelligible]. Let's say that then for that particular thing, we'd be looking to
using those moneys to construct, to build aring of a double-wide frailer or
something for an office building,

BC: Orasmall office, like office trailers that they use from construction sites,
or something like that.
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YD: Mm hmm.

BG: Thesmall, oné-room -

RE: Kind of ltke [unintelligible]
BG: [unintelligible]

RF:  Or something

vD: Is it a possibility? What's the—

RF: Oh, we've seen it before. We've seen a tribe use it for that before. Usually
it's a little bigger, but now they can do that. I don't know why they could not.
See, right here is the restriction. There is no other option,

YD: Mm hmm.

RE:  Either do your home or you do this or you have nothing. And so then they
have to argue.

YD: Right.

RF: Butit's a strong argument [unintelligible]. If we're going to organize, we
need to have an office, and we've got to have staff and someplace for them to
work. Yo could have people researching that. You could be doing other things
for the tribe instead of [unintelligible] about the house. So 1 guess what we'd
have 1o ask before, Would you like to complete anything if such a thing
happens? ] mean, on the side of the house—I mean, [unintelligible]. They’d have
to do some site preparation and stuff. They’d have to do some leveling and
they’d have to—1J mean, depending on how big a one you wanted to put up.

vyD: Well, I don’t think it would have to be that big, Maybea 12x 12 or 12x 24
or ...

RF:  Oh, you'll probably want a~you'l want it a little bigger than the sink
because you don’t want to have to come back and say, Gee, this is too small now.

BG: Think big.
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RE: You want tobe able to grow into it. So you want to start out with it a litle
bigger. Maybea14x 60 or something. I dor’t know. But it depends on-what you
want. How many people do you think would be working in there? Do you need

separate septic systems? Separate power source? Seem all that could be paid for

by a grani, of course. So there wouldn't be much cost to you through the fund. It
would cost your account. So— ’

BG: You know, Ray’s been talking about possibly using the Aid to Tribal -
Government Program to pay for that cost. That's the same program that wonld
pay if you were going o rent the buil ding or if you were going to hire a staff
person t0 do some work on your constitution or on your enrollment or ... that
Kkind of stuff.

vD:. Okay,now. Okay, we're going in the right direction. I can see that so far.
We’re not going off in a different direction. We're staying right to the facts. Let’s
say that this does come and happen, Do T have to write my OwWn bylaws up, or

what?

Ri:  Well, that's a good question. I'm thinking— and this is just our thoughts,
of course. We talked about this, oh, two or three times when we were talking
about it.

BG: What? [unintelligible] -

RE:  Well, Sheep Ranch. Just here at the very beginning, we were thinking—
now, this is just something for you to think about—because of the amount of
money that you're going to have available, which is pretty substantial ... Ten
years ago: tribes had $15,000.

BG: Maybe.

RF:  Maybe $15,000. Now they’ve got $160, $180, $200,000 2 year available to
them to organize and run—provide services and programs to their members and
that type of thing. And I've tried at this point extending that for you, believe it or
sot. ] couldn’t believe it myself. Sheep Rench has got probably one of your better
[unintelﬁgible] versus any other fribe. And so because of that, what we're
thinking is if you wanted the bureau {0 provide you with technical assistance to
help you with your constitution and help you with your tribal laws and help you
with the ownership, we could recommend that you hired somebody if you have
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money to, do that, In the bureau. And it'd only work with you. It wouldn’t work
with any other tribe. It would only work with you guys, 0 whoever else you'd

. want to hire. You wouldn’t be limited to just one. Tt would be limited to
whatever your budget would allow. But normally, that’s what we had thought
because fhey would bring the expertise to the table. And that was just a thought
that we had. You might want to consider that.

BG:  Well, then, along the lines of the bylaws, we were talking about the idea
that you can conceive of the tribe right now as basically being yourself and your
brother, Silvia, her daughters, and the one granddaughter. And of those people,
those who are probably over eighteen are you and your brother, Silvia, and one
of your daughters. So you've basically got four people who are golden members,
if you want. Now, we don't know where Melvin is, so that basically leaves us
with three people. And when we organize tribes, most of the time, we're
reorganizing tribes. Most of the time, the tribe was terminated and then through
litigation, re-recognized. Sc you can go froma certain class of people—that tells
115 what the membership of the tribe is— and you work forward from there. In
{his case, tfie facts are a little bit different. And so usually what we'll do is we'll
call that group of people a general coundil. They're the body. They’re the tribe.
They're the body that has the authority to take actions on behalf of the tribe. So
in this case, we'd be Jooking at, possibly, three people. And we talked about the
;dea of ... In one previous case, a tribe submitted a constitution, wrote up a
constitution and bylaws and basically, they voted on it and they said, This is our
Jaw. And they didn’t complete this other process that had to be completed. But
for our purposes, we recognized them. And that set forth the other entollment
critexia, what kind of powers that group had. In this case, certainly you could go
that direction. You've got the constitution and bylaws from the get-go. But we
also talked about this idea of maybe a resolution, which would certainly be

simpler.
YD: Mmhmm,

BG: Youwouldn't ... it wouldn’t maybe be more than two pages instead of ten
or fifteen, And they would really only speak to the issue of the general coundil is
the goveming body and it has all those powers that come along with being a
sovereign junintelligible] tribe. And in exerdsing those powers, we're going to
‘authorize one person or two people or all three people to do certain things. And
one of those things could be work on the enrollment. Another thing could be
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working o1t organizing the tribe. Maybe obtaining legal assistance to help with
the constitution and help with the enroliment. :

YD: The resolution is the better one, 1 think, Better ’fhan going through all of
that papeTWOTK and have this much paper [unintelligible].

RE: Well, it's alittle simpler, and you can define ﬂﬁI}gS 2 h’tﬂ.e better, 1 ﬁu;ﬁ;
yeah, yeah. I¢'s a limiting document sometimes in ilh.att it’ s specific on what n os
you're going to carry out, [unintelligible] power [umnte]hgible}. Btj:]fee, a's e
general council—usually the general council has all tl'.le authority. All you ;le
doing is putting [unintelligible]. And it's in effect. until the tribe, ths j_a,enerthinl
council or the majority of the general coundl decxc.ies that they nee some gt
different or bettex, which would be your constitution. So as an initial documen
to get started from, it's a pretty good idea. It's not bad.

BC: Yes. Reelly, it's your stepping stone to the bylaws.
RF: Right. To the big constitution.
BG: Well, this will come in time.

RF: And]think everything's going to take little bit of t‘:mle becau.se it'1l take
t'm;e to identify your members. W take time to get a secretarial elec’ao.n '“f have
the tribe vote on the constitution. And it'll take time to draft that conshh;hczn.
And things Iike that. So, yeah, things progress. That document, that reso 1:11:1]0n
will provide you a mechanism 1o deal with issues that tribes would n.orm ; th
face, you know, and protect the tribe also. 1t'll also (ileﬁne s'ome functions for the
[tribals?] and the [foreigners?] [unintelligible]. That's very important.

BG: Right, one of the things that you would prob?b]y include in t‘na:i L
resolution, 0T you may even have a separate reso}utlon, and tha.t wou ”
obtaining @ grant from the Bureau of Indian Affairs to start getting some ol the
funding necessary to do some of this work.

RE:  They'llbring in the funintelligible] to identify that. To me, that’s proba':ﬂy,
besides your membership, a place to dobusiness out of-T get your phones, dg; )
your answering machines, get your address, get everything, you k:now,'an Thm;
that up. YOUT computers, your [unintelligible], whatever. Telefax tr'nachme. at's
a tribe, you know what I mean. [unintelligible] for you. Now, that's very

S .
TRANSCRIFTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SeRYIC
Mwsmnmmwmusﬂﬁ » BYRKELEY, CA 84700 TELBI08481548 = FAX B6GB61-5656 * SUSAN € S—WESS.COM

CVMT-2011-000145



Case 1:11-cv- -
cv-00160 RWR' Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 45 of 270

Transcription of videotape: Sepiember 8, 1938 meeting between Page 34
Yakima K. Dixie, Rajmond Fry, Brian Golding, Sitvia Burley

important because you've got to have a place of operation. Everything else will
grow out of that, 1 think, in time, Whoever does st—well, it's a little bit tough
once you doit. But 1 think that having a place of operations i important.
Whether that'sa14x 35 or a 14 x 50 building, or 14 whatever—whatever the tribe

decides to do—
yD: Well, you figure—

RE: Or 60,01 whatever happens t¢ [unintelligible}. How big a space doyou
think you would want, 1 guess, is how much space you had available.

YD: You guys [unintelligible] going to have to have where to put the records,
11 the stuff that you're going ghrough. [unintelligible] you're going o put this
there, you're going to put that over there or whatever.

RE:  You're going to need some storage spaces. You're going to need some '
working spaces. Your're going to need some computer spaces.

YD: Some gas, where the gas company's [set on?], What else [urﬁntenig;'ble]? |
[overlapping conversation}

YD: Whatevenl thought about.

RF: Weﬂ; it takes a litile bit of space sometimes.

gG: 1was just thinking, you Know, 1 suggested one of those little job-site
trailers, you know, and 1 think they’re usuaily about this big, basically. And that
might be something to work frozn to start, but, you know, if in a year or two
years, you're up and running and you've got business going on—not just with
the bureau. I mean, there’s other agencies out there t00. Potentially, you would
need, you know, probably [two? /three?] times as much space.

RF: Maybe you il need them down there.
[dveﬂapping conversation)

RE:  You know, yeah, that's true.

BG: Reslly put Sheep Ranch on the map.
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[laughter]
gp: Love that.

RR:  There's all kinds of areas of that the tribe [advertises?]. I'm sure if you
were into 1and acquisition, yoi1 could buy more land, possibly.

'yD: 1already thought about that, you kniow.

" RF: You could try. You might try.

yD: Like this big area right here. Beside the expressway there, the big
[unintelligible] ight there. That's been up for sale on [unintelligible] and nobody
wants it. T don’t know if that's government [copy?] or not.

RE:  I'd be surprised if it is. Normally, it's all—well, I don’t know that. But you
know, that’s interesting. You know, the tribe is fortunate that it's able to find
Jand that's adjacent to existing land because it's just so hard to find.

SB:  Right close to the road, too.

RF: Well, that's true, that's true. You'd want to have at least the tight of way.
You need 10 have a right of way to [unintelligible}. You don’t want to bea
landlocked tribe. We've been there with tribes and it’s a very uncomfortable
feeling when somebody can dictate to you how much traffic you can have and
they could close that road any time they feel like it. '

BG:  And drive [unintelligible].

RF: That's right. You want to have at least a right of way from the road, the
county yoad, to this Rancheria. If not own it, at least get a permanent right of way

funintelligible}.

vD: Mmhmm. Yeah, you're right there. 1 mean, they can close that road right
here if they wanted to.

RE:  Well, that's right. So we don’t want to see that happen because 1 don’t
think that that’s—we've seen it happen before. We don’t want to see that happen
again. So that Jand’s for sale or that land’s part of the issue about right of way.
Well, maybe that’s something that has to be addressed, too. But it's going to be
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something that you.... You want to secure the right of way, at least that. If not
the right of way for that, then the ownership of that road, Something like that.
' Because what if somebody bought that land and said, Well, we're dlosing this off.

" BG: We're going tobuild our house right there.

RE:  That's right. Well, that could happen. That's the sad thing, is that anything
can happen.

YD: Like, they did come up here and somebody was trying to buy that
property right there one time. But they wouldn’t let the [unintelligible] septic
test, They did that right there. . '

RF: Yeah, so that's something for you to think about, too. With this
organization, that'll be part of the reality. We‘re going to organize a government,
we're going 10 hopefully have a constitution, a work force, maybe a tribal
government in place. Or maybe always the general council. But you're also going
to secure the right of way, you're securing the [land?] for houses, for more
houses. Which is not a bad ... alot of tribes are going there because they're really
looking after the benefit of their membership. And to do that, they're finding
they need more land, so funintelligible). So they're really going there, and that's
a very good thing to do. Like putiing up community centers and things like that.
But normally you go through HUD for that.

BG: HUD—Department of Housing and Urban Development.

RF: Right. They usually have funds for those fypes of things. Land acquisition,
for putting up homes, and ...

BG:  Yeah, they'te—it’s called the Indian Community Development Block
Crants Program. And actually, their deadline was just last week, I think.

RF: Right.
BG:  TFor this year. But they come every year.

YD:; 1think [unintelligible] one of those papers that 1 get. funintelligible] ramp
is cut off. ' )
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BG: Yeah, they do them every year. And a tribe of your size is eligible to apply
for up to $350,000. Whether you use that much or not, that’s up—you know, if
you try it at that time and then propose the project or propose funintelligible].
You know, in this case, $350,000 is probably going tobea littte too much for that

piece of property.

[laughter]

YD: Right.

RE:  Jt’s paved with gold if you get that road throﬁgh there.

BG: But certainly you could probably make a good argument in a grant
application to HUD for whatever it's going to cost—$40,000-$100,000 to buy that

property.

RE:  Well, see, you might say, 1 want to buy that property, but1 also want to '
put a community center on it as soon as 1 get a pretty good price. [unintelligible]
take that as a case base [unintelligible] there. But to put up a community building
there, that would have been for whatever, site preparation stuff, But that's all
part of the consideration for that. That's some things you can do with that. And
that's preity good. Actually, they've got that [unintelligible].

BG:  Yeah, it's all another—

RE:  Yeah, that's all the other [unintelligible]. But these are all good things.
Because these mean good things for tribes. 1 mean, their processes,
[unintelligible], that's another part of [unintelligible]. It used to be through
Indian House Services. That's for tribal development. But it's setting up the
constitution and tribal law [unintelligible]. That's anothey part of my
[unintelligible]. But I mean, that’s what 1 mean. There's just so much out there for
sribes. [unintelligible]

YD: See, here’s the two things that 1 didn’t know that you were just explaining
here a few minutes ago about this and about that. What this will eventually have
gotten, you know. Moneywise, if he gets for that one right there; this one is for
[unintelligible]. How do you know that?
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RE: Mm hmm. We're in a process, you betcha. And 1 think as time goes on, as
more Programs are jdentified for tribes and .., you know, it's always a leamning
process, Because it’snew fo everybody. Tt isn't just yourself. It's new to
everybody €lse, too. And ] think it's good for tribes because it just means more
opportunities for the tribes. That’s what it spells out. And so it's important that
when you—let’s say.you hire a staff, ultimately a permanent staff, that they be
good at grant writing, that they be good at applying for other federal programs,
they have a good understanding of what that is, How to operate under contracts,
the parameters of contracts and things. If you hire a good staff that can do that
and run programs and services, then you're a step ahead. You're really ahead of
yourself. You're a good [bet?] and ] can see that.

vyD: What doyou think about that? Do you have knowledge of that?

- B Well, it's the beginning right now. Because 1 hear what you've got going.
And some of the things that he might have just kind of [unintelligible] that, but
you don't really need it at the time anyway because he was by himself. Now we
can start looking over those and seeing what would benefit funintelligible]. And
right now, there’s nobody really wanting that land, even if it's a year from now.
Because that would be good because you don’t want to try to get that when
everybody wants it. Then it goes boom.

RF:  Well, soon as they hear Indians want it, it goes boom.
SB:  Yeah, especially here because~—
RE:  Oh, theyll put the casino on there, they'll put a casino up.

YD: Of course, who knows? You know, they might.

.

RE: That's right. i may be the last thing that enters your mind, but it's
definitely the first thing that enters theirs. That's a thing that the tribe, 1 think,
you know, as a tribe, that they all deal with that.

BG: And the other thing is, a Jot of these programs we're talking about, these
are programs that are available to tribal governments to go after, to apply for,
and to administer. But, you know, the individuals, they can’t use them. So0it’s
like what Silvia was saying, that till you have a government established—
whetherit's a general council comprised of the adult members of the tribe, ora
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representative governing body, like a tribal council, where a generai’ co;]nml
clects three, five, seven people to represent the rest of them. But that's u;;;lo
yoﬁ, but the tribe, once they establish that, that's the b?dy f.hat can go after
 these other programs we'te talking about. And it certainly isa leam,mg. process.
There's so much out there. And it's worked with tribes before anfil m just
amazed at how much is out there if you have the resources and time and people

who are knowledgeable to go after it.

RE: 1think the thing, too, is that the bureau will be there t0o. We're not‘just
going to saY’ Here's a million, and leave you alone. We'll be there to provide you
with our technical assistance. We're not going to just throw you out there and
say, Okay, it's sink or swim, We're [unintelligible] t]‘1at. But_ were a\l{so tI]:Ielre V:o )
help you, answer your questions, provide the technical assxstanlscz\.r 01::i _° ;;fs
jt isn’t going to be, Well, gee, I hope I hire somebody go?d ore 'm done. Itis,
in fact, cut-throatish. We would try to help the tribe [unintelligible].

yD: Sure, 1haven't understood that part at all.
RF:  And it won't take thirty years, 'm preity sure.
YD: Thopenot.
{oveﬂapping conversation]
RR: We'll be with you [unintelligible].
YD: Nc.:)w, don’t let it be [unintelligible].
_ faughter]
yp: It took me that Jong [unintelli gible].

RF:  1know. Ittookan awful, awful Jong time. But you know, this next ste‘p
that you're taking is going to be one period that's going tolast along, long time.
This organizing and identifying your membership— i

yD: Ym willing to do that, by all means.

RF:  Ttcould be good. It could be good for yourself and the pe?plg. It isn:t just
your generation, it's the next generation, And their next generation. So we're
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]5uﬂding in the future, And 1 think it's real important that you d? that: a good
base, you know. Identify your strong, If you're strong here, you're going to be
strox;g there. That's what you have to look at, too.

. YD: Now, getting back to a different subject—not t0 distract you of it. These
people_that come over from different countries, like Vietmamese, you nametlt.
Let's just say, for instance, Vietnamese, right? Came over here to Sacramento.

They set them up.

RF: [unintelligible]

YD: Here. |
RF: Store, you got a store. You're writing a store. Tha¥'s how you do that.

YD: They set them up real good. What's the possibility of maybe buying an old
piece of land and putting a store up in Chico?

RF-  Well, it's economic development. There’s programs for that.
YD: Oh, you can't doit.

RF: Oh, yeah, yeah, 1 think you can, Butit'sa .diffefent program. As an
example, you could participate in our ... the Indian Fu.xanoe Act pr?)gran:]s.c -
funintelligible] some loan programs, that type of—or, in t]'.nat area. : I yo en
maybe use existing funding, I'm not sure what the restrictions are ;r eco mie
development, monies that you have, other than [unintelligible] the Finance Act.
We could check on that, though.

BG: Some iribes, you know, they use like that HUD block grant. '?‘I;eg go and
buy some Jand. And maybe buy twenty acres and ma?vbe they’ll buil y onses on
ten acres and the other ten acres are used for economic developmen; ou t‘:i; .
build a store. And the next year, they go back to HUD and say, you ﬁﬁzw,w
going to build a store; it’s going to cost us $500,000 to do the whole - g.th e
want $250,000 from you to do the construction of the buﬂdmg And en ey
might go after other money from, say, ANA., th«‘a Administration of Na.tl:r:m e
Americans, get another grant to pay for capital improvements, for gumnn T}? e
cases and shelving and all the cabinets you'd use and sod.a pop ma rtesf.]jk :1;
maybe you'd get another grant from a foundation or a third party, 50Tt 0
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private foundation, to pay for some of your overhead, in terms of utility costs
and payroll and... So, that’s where it gets to be creative, you know. You've got a
goal~build a store and hope you'll get some money. And you know what your
cost would be and the trick is finding those pieces. And a good portion of it,
depending on the cost of your project, can be funded by federal grants that you
won't have to pay back, And that helps your bottom line. You pay off your
investment that much faster. [unintelligible] .

Plus there’s groups out there that provide technical [unintelligible] to tribal
governments who are interested—and individuals—who are interested in setting
up their business. National Center for American Indian Enterptise Development,
based in El Monte, down in southemn California. They’ll do that. They get funded
fhrough part of funintelligible] the Small Business Administration. They provide
[unintelligible]. The tribe will just call them up and say, This is what we're
thinking, And they'll send somebody out to help wiite up a business plan and
work up the duty free zone study. They'll determine if there’s enough traffic
around here to support a store. Whatever that you're thinking about doing,

YD: Yeah Wejl, that was just a thought. 1 mean, 1just threw it up on you to see
how you guys thought about it. Get a1l the feedback that I want.

_ RR.  That's 2 good thought because it's part of the building and growing and

organizing part of it. Jt's a really good question to think about.

vD: And say they want to go about puiting up a center. |

BG: Yeah, a tribal community center. A Miwok community center.
YD: That sounds pretty interesting.

RE: Lets say you did get that Jand as part of your plan. You can do that. They
probab]y—-ﬁ'le biggest and most time consuming process that has 10 take place is
this membership identifying. Paramount 1o everything, I think, You'll identify
not only who's going to be allowed to be a member of the tribe and participate in
your tribal government, but also be the recipient of services and programs and
miaybe be hired by the everybody in the tribe to work for the tribe. Soit's real
crucial, 1 think, to understand who you're going to govern, who's going to be
part of your whole structure. 5o that part is probably one of the most important

. parts, It’'s about the most important to start out with. Because even tribes who
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aren’t—let’s say they're not recognized. Part of their recognition process is that
they have to identify who they think their members are. And it has to be a formal
packet that goes forward with the application for recognition. And so everybody
understands just how critical that part is in the whole tribal process. And it's no
less impoxtant here. And again, if you wanted our help, we'd do what we can to
help you get to that point, depending on how you want {0 work it out.

vD: T'd rather go into the resolution than the bylaws, myself.
RF:  Yeah, that's a good idea. It's not a bad idea at ail.

[overlapping voices]

GB: Yeah, that sounds better because we really don't know. We're so small
anyway, we're just starting ont. So that sounds pretty good.

RF:  Mm hmm, it is. We can help you with that if you want, We've done a
pumber of them for tribes, organizing. And we've prefty much seen what works
and what doesn’t work and [unintelligible]. So—

vD: Well, we don't want it not to work; we want it fo work.

RE: Well, we're not going to fuck anything that does work.

laughter] .

RF: No, we wouldn't do that. But it just shows we know what to put in there
and problems with that stuff. :

BG: WhatI can doislcan work oneup, a draft, and mail it up to you. And
take a look at it and—

YD: See whatl think about it and read it over,

BG: Right. What Y1l do s, I won't just mail the draft resolution, but also a letter
that sort of describes what each element is trying to do, what the intent is, so
that—sometimes when you read those resolutions, especially the ones I've
read—they can be pretty convoluted, the language. Eh, advisors like to write like
that. No. So sometimes words have different meanings, two different meanings,
and you need to be clear on what meaning you really want to have. So I'll put
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e

. that in there so you can see where you might want to have something different.
You know, you might want o change word or a phrase because where 1 was
coﬁﬁng £rom when 1 wrote it doesn’t really reflect where you're coming from. So
T'l] try to point out those places where variability —where you can raake changes.
You know, some of the language js going to be stock language that you're not

. going to want o change because everybody can agree what the word “and”
means, you know. But when we talk about do you want to call the person a
chairperson ora spokesperson, you know, those are things you can change. So
1l do that as well as send up 2 draft resolution.

YD: Okay.

BC: And take alook at it and mark it up o write on it, whatever you need to
do. And if you could send it back, maybe we could have a phone conversation
about it. T could finalize it for you, send it up, and you've guys can just read it
and we'll take an action on it, approve it, Then we'll have that part done.

YD: Ckay.
BG:  AndI can probably get that to you by the end of the week.

vD: Allright. Okay, and that's the way [unintelligible] the road this time. Butl
have a problem here. I went here and 1 went there, and ¥'m getting just like she
got slapped in the face every time P've been around here. About my sewer
system here. The sewer system has been here for about thirty years, or maybe
more than that. Since this old house has been put in here. It's never been deaned
and "ve been trying to get—1I tried to look into something so somebody could
come out here and do it for me.

RY: Isitaseptic?
Yeah.
Or do you have a sewage line?

Septic.

2 5 8 9

Septic system that needs to be properly cleaned.
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YD: Yeah

RE: They do every few years, tha¥'s true. Seplic.

yD:  Who would see about that, then? Is there anybody that 1 can tm to?
RF: An in-house service. Did you ever talk to [unintelligible]?

yD: 1already went through that. |

RE: What did they say?

YD:

You've got to get in contact with HUD. That's the person that built the
house. 1 go to the guy that was up here, the time that he was up here writing all
. that stuff down, the people who did this house. .

RE:  HUD built this house, didn'tit?
YD: Fresno.
RE:  Oh, okay.

YD: And wentback on to Fresno and 1 called this guy. He told me let that go
down. He didn't help,

rF. Well, [unintelligible] might have put the system in.
yD: Actually,1don’t know who put that system in.

RE: See, butnormally that's one of their roles. They do the water and septic
system, usually, for the tribes. But if HUD's been involved, maybe they subbed
that out. Thirty years ago—maybe HUD just didn’t do it thirty years ago. Or
whenever that happened. Maybe HUD just had a contracior come in and putit

18

yD: I'mnottoosure how it went. 1 wasn't here at the time when
[unintelligible].

RF: Itwould be hard to track it, tco. You're sure HUD built the house?
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: Yeah

YD

RF: Way back when? Whenever—thirty years ago?
yD: More than that. ] mean—but anyway, yeah.
RF

Okay, HUD constructed it initially.
BG: Ithought the bureau built the house.
YD: 1'm not 0o sure which one did it. Do you reember when they went to—

RE:  Fifties or sixties—right around [determination?/termination} time—they'd
build a house—

YD: In fact, this was the first house. They started right here on my mom’s
house. Then they went from here over to West Point. From West Point, they went

overto[Cloudy?]-'. B T e

e e

o
.

BG: That doesn’t sound fike HUD'to me
RE: Let's check on that.
BG: 1don’t think we have any more records, but we'll check on it.

RF:  Well, let’s check and see. You think it was about 30-40 years ago?

YD: Oh,yeah.

BG:  But the other thing, too, is say we were building a new HIP house today.
And the bureau would come in and build the house and IHS v:rou]d putyouona
list and come in to do the septic tank. So once they do the septsc tank an-d sxfgn‘off
on it and the unit is working, at that point it's your responsibility t::: mal.ntam it.
Unless something really screws up, like you can show that the [unintelligible]
Jine's installed incorrectly. It's installed going uphill instead of down.

vYD: No, it’s been going down. One day I went out and 1 dug tha.z whole thing
up. There was a reason I had to do that. And I put new leads hr:e in myself.l
walked to the [unintelligible] over here and I bought all them ?lpes with the
holes and stuff. T had to put them back in the ground. 1 couldn’t pack them back,
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so I appealed to the guys with a pickup truck. I threw them in the back and
brought them over here and dumped them off right here and packed themoff -
and did it myself. Because the other one was all messed up. 1 did the whole thing
trom outside there to the [unintelligible] all the way down to the pipe-
[unintelligible] Now—after a Jong [unintelligible] April, when 1 came
[unintelligible], the bathroom, the toilet—it was almost overflowing with black
water. The sink. You went in there and tried to wash a dish or something—black

" water was just bubbling and backing up. I went and cut that pipe loose down all

the way to 90 degrees. 1 dleaned it all out. 's working now, but Tm kind of

afraid maybe this winter we might have a lot of water. When they have a lot of
rain, seeps down in, pull it up, and we might have the same problem backing up -
this way again. I'm not oo sure. That's why 1 wanted to know if it was possible,
any possib},e way I can get it cleaned out. And like you said, it's my

responsibility. ‘

RF: Well, that's generally how they look at it. They installed the system brand
new.

yD: 1 dobelieve—there was one person talking to me about the septic system.
1 do believe as long as we get funintelligible], I do believe that go out and doit
with a big truck. And that's—that Jittle Rancheria over there [unintelligible].

RF: It's Margaret's. Margaret Bell.

YD: Yeah

BG: Well i don’t know if that's done through 1HS, or maybe through the
health clinics. The tribe might be—the tribes have the—tribal governments have
that authority to contract from the federal government the operation of certain
programs. JHS, like the BIA, they were created by the federal government togo
out and provide services to the Ind;ans. And you know what kind of mess that is
2nd how successful they are in doing that. 8o they passed the Self-Determination
Act in the seventies, and what that provided for was tribes could say, Well, wait
+ minute. We're tired of the bureau coming out and saying they're doing this
work for us and keeping that money, you know, to pay for people like
funintelligible] to do it. We want that money and we're going to run it locally
and we're going o decide what we're going to do, within reason. Well,
sometimes theyll contract IHS money. They'll set up a clinic out there, dental
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dinic, whatever. One of the things that they can do along with that is maybe set
up something [unintelligible]. Pay some third party, an operator in town, to
come on out every couple of years and clean out the septic tank. There’s another
example of that that] Kknow applies to you is [judah?] health clinic. They'll pay

. for large trash bins tobe placed out on the 1es every yea, every two years. That
way, people who have A1l that stuff that [unintelligible] gives them an
opportunity to throw it away. Keep the place dlean. Or another example is they
come out with a portable car crusher and they crush old cars and [umnintelligible].
4o those are examples of how 2 wribe used some of that money to take care of
some of the issues that—the IH3 wonld never have done that. If they were
running the program, they would have said no, no [unintelligible]- But when the
iribe took the money and ran it locally, [unintelligible]. That's really something
that needs to be done because people—a septic tank is the last thing you want |
[unintelligible]. So maybe that's how they do it

yD: But anyway, that's whatl understood. Over there in Jackson, they go and
do it from the, I guess, right out of that casino, I guess, or whatever, they're
paying for it. They just go and doit. [unintelligible]

RE:  Well, I'm sure they did it for the tribe. They probably contracted.

vYD: 1gotahold of that woman in unintelligible}. What's her name?

RE; Margaret?

yD: Yeah. She got a hold of the guy that | know that comes over here and she
called him. He goes down here, but she wouldn't call me. She knowsmy number
but she won’t call me. Anyway, that's okay, 1 understand that part. He came over
here and told me about that—the thing, the sewage. [unintelligible] party’s the
one that built that house. I'm not too sure whether they built that house or ot.
But then you're the person that junintelligible] it, I don’t know.

RE: 1 check with Tuolomne and ask them who built their houses thirty or
forty years ago. 'm sure they'd tell us who it was. Who came in to start the

[unintefligible].

YD: Woulditbeon record?
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RE: Sornebodyhasa record of it, ¥'m sure. Find out who did it—I"m not sure
the bureau did it. ' -

YD: How about down there [unintelligible}?
RF: The county record thing?
YD: Yezh.

RF: Boy,'mnot really sure. I'm sure—if it were Rancheria, I'm not even sure
they have 10 abidé by county codes, the county and state codes. Probably not.

You know, I'd get the building permit and all that type of stuff. Tm not sure if it’s .
on Rancheria. [unintelligible]

YD: 1don'tknow. Wouldn't that take care of it? 1 don’t know if they went
down and got that. There wasn't a permit or anything,

RF: 1wouldbe surprised.
YD: 1 don't think s0.
RF: No,] don’t think so either because 1 think that that—

YD: Becausenobody would help me [unintelligible]. Five people up there
working on this house and they were all Indian. .

RF: ldbereal surprised. 1 would doubt it, only because tribes don't have to
[unintelligible].

yD: ‘We had an electridian, carpenter, and—and he put that big—~what is it,
220, 1 think itis? [wﬁntelligible] water heater, the stand that goes in for the heater
set up in there [unintelligible] heater in there. Plus all of the wiring that he did in

there,

BG: You know, I'm pretty sure ] saw something that said that house was built
by the Hfifty-five zerot].

RE.  Iwantto check that, though.

BG: They're partof the termination process. But, Il [unintelligible].

TRANECRIPTS BY SUEAN WeISS OFFICE SERVICES
1400 SHATTUCK AVENUEHG » BERKELEY, CA 84708 + TEL 51084681548 » FAX AGGEH61-56E8 « SUSAN @ S-WEISS,.COM

CVMT-2011-000160



a——

Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 60 of 270

t

S <
o "

Transcription of videotape: Sepiember 8, 1998 meeling behween Page 49
Yakima K. Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brinn Golding, Silvia Burley

YD: Yeah, if you guys find out anything on that, is there a possibility where

that tank could be drained?

RE:.  Well, Itell you what, if it's that old, it probably needs to be replaced. F'm
thinking your lifespan fs't that—it's twenty or thirty years, something like that.
| was thinking they have to just put a whole new system in. 1 would offer that
because you might drain it now and then a month from now or two months, al}
of a sudden it starts getting old and it starts [unintelligible] water out. They're
not built to last forever, so 1 would think that if it's forty years old, that you're

* looking to just réplace that.

BG: Well, the other thing, too, is that if we were to find that it was built by the
Buseau of Indian Affairs, you could call [unintelligible] and say, Wait a minute, it
wasn't built by HUD, it was built by BIA, and see where that takes you. I think
you were saying they thought it was built by HUD, so they sent you off

Iun_inte}ligibIE}.

YD: They said it wasbuilt by HUD. There was no [doubt?]. They said it was
built by HUD. 1 don’t know. 1 wasn't around then.

RF: We can check that.

RF: Andevenifitwas built by HUD, we can check the options there. It's still
the government. Whether that means you're responsible whether it means
[unintelligible].

vD: 1wentdown toSan Andreas, where they build these big, old tanks and 1
talked [unintelligible] about coming up here and maybe draining it or
something. And he told me it's going to cost you at least $400 to come up here
from Jackson to drain that.

RF:  Wowl
vYD: Solalmost fell down, you know.

[laughter}

YD: [unintelligible] But he told me you've got a little plant that sticks out of
the ground Like this. You fake that off. And 1 told him what was wIong withit.
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mean, about that black water in the bathroom and the funintelligible]. Water
comesback up in my sink when I'm trying to wash dishes: funintelligible] give
you their money, though. I shouldn‘t be telling you this. Anyway, 1 take that
thing loose take the garden hose, stick it in there and turn it on full blast. So1did
that. Nothing but black water came back under that hose. 5o that's why 1 had to
end up digging {he whole thing out right here next to the house. Yeah, there was’
all kind of mess in there and everything else. But that tank is full.

RE:  Oh, the septic tarik is full?
YD: It's full
RE: Well, that's a problem.

. That was my whole concem. [unintelligible] we're going tohave this big
rain probably coming up—

RE:  Well, that will definitely create a—

.yD: Jm comingright back up here with the same deal again.
RF:  (unintelligible] outhouse back [unintelligible].
YD: Yeah.I'mgoingto have to make another one.

[laughter]

RE: And they dont want to go there. 1 understand that. Let’s check on some of
this stuff for you.

YD: Okay-
. RE: We can ry to get some answers for you on that.

YD: Therewasone—l thought that maybe1had her phone number. 1 don’t
what it's—was it Gonzalez? Anyway, [unintelligible] one of them programs
concerning something like that— zbout the septic tank. Well, where aside from

there [m'tinteﬂigible]?

BG: Cynthia Gonzales?
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YD: Yeah! Thatgirl

BG: She works for the state, Depariment of Housing and Community

‘Develgpment.

YD: Yeah, yeah, thaf one, Okay. A friend of mine called her up and she
referred us back to Indian Health. .

RE: That's normally who does it. Or does it now, I should say. Have fora
aumber of years, but I'm not so sure [unintelligible}. That's a little different.

That's almost fifty years ago. Forty or fifty years ago, S0

BG: Oh, right, IHS didn't really even have a presence in California until the
sixties or seventies.

RF: Soifwefind out who built it, maybe we cant track it back from thei'e. .
mintelligible]

YD: Appredate anything that you can do [unintelligible] on that part, anyway.
[unintelligible]

BG:. That's an important part. You can’t have that black water coming back
[unintelligible].

YD: [unintelligible]
[laughter]
RF: 1t makes some [unintelligible] coffee, all righty.

[laughter]

SB.  Strong coffee.

vyD: Did the [unintelligible] came up there and see that? You might setit
down. I mean, it’s unlivable. Is there anything that you guys can help? You
know, that one [unintelligible] we appreciate it there.

RF: [l see what we can find out, see what we can do.
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[screech outside]

[unintelligible] _

BG: There'saguyina white truck going up the hill there,
RE: 1¢s pretty hard to do that. There’s no light.

BG: Ifhe hit the stoplight ...
yD: Well, did you get all that down?
RE: I'vegotit all [unintelligible] some of it, you betcha.

BG: We talked about the money and there was ... Here's an example of the
kind of money we're talking about. The bottom line is [unintelligible]. This is this
year's money- That's kind of a litile Jesson on how the bureau spends their
money. Money comes down to us each year and the bureau has to obligate this
money by the end of the year. And we operate on a fiscal year, which ends at the.
end of this month. And in previous years, this money had a one-year life. So if
the burea didn’t obligate this money by thie end of September, then that money
went back to the U.S. Treasury and they did whatever they wanted to do withit.
Or maybe another area of the Bureau of Indian Affairs would take it
[unintelligible]. But in the last year, well, last two years, Congress has changed
that money tohave a two-year life. So what that sheet represents is Fiscal Year
198 money. We don’t have io have it obligated by the end of this month, Tt will
siill be available, probably, until September 30, 1999. But this is going to be the
first year where we're going 1o see if the money that's not obligated is actually
Jeft on the table, left alone. We're kind of wortied that possibly, we are worried
that possibly somebody could take that money somewhere else in the bureau
and spend itona different slot issue. Not even on California. 1 mean, maybe
they're giving Navajos more money. 5o with that in mind—now, when she
breaks this money thing down, it camne down like that. And he's got these
programs. And you see there’s fellowships.

yD: Did you read them programs?
SB:  Mm hmm.
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BG: And [unintelligible] and whatnot, Now, if the bureau’s providing services
to your tribe—let's say there was an eligible person for scholarships—this is the
amount of money that would be coming out. You kniow, we've Jooked at it and

* aid, Okay, we'te going to pay you #,000. Well, $5,000 will come ont of this
$7,400, Likewise for some of these other programs, Now, some of these
programs _real estate, 300 bucks. You might get to talk to Jimmy Bradford for 20
minutes for $300. But what we're here today to recommend is to try and consider
reappropriating this mongy into basically two of these programs and getting rid
of some of these programs. And that's going to do a couple of things. First, the
reprogramming, This money came available this year and will be available next
year—two-year life. But your opportunity to reprogtam it is only in that first
year. [unintelligible] So if you want the money t0 be available to you next year,
you want to have it in one of the programs that you may be wishing to operate
next year. Or you might want it in one of those programs that you want the
buresu to operate on your behalf until the tribe is organized and is ready 1o
contract. So in this case, what I'm proposing~-here’s a ietier 1 drafted up on your
behalf to sort of give you an idea of what I'm talking about. '

Ry.  Fine document. Well, 1 think that this thing, if you look atit,
[unintelligible] programming,

BG: Right.
RF: Soyou,you've got [unintelligible].

BG: Right. Wehavea deadline at the [Geary?] office too. If reprogramming is
something that you want to consider, well we need to have something at the
Geary office tomorrow. That's the deadline. Okay. So, with this letter, we want to
reprogram the money in the following mannet. So take the money from adult
education, forestry, and real estate services, and you now have $2,600. We're
going to add that to the scholarships program. The resulting total would be
$10,000. The idea there is, as you were talking about earlier, Yakima, you know,
for Sylvia ... You know, now that Sylvia’s a member of the Sheep Ranch ribe, a
federally recognized tribe, she conceivably is eligible for scholarship assistance.
So the bureau could be operating this program today with this $10,000 if she
could make the application and they'll determine if she’s eligible and they'll cut
the check and all that stuff. So this would increase that amount to $10,000. And
then, to reprogram some of these other programs here, other [unintelligible]
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tribal government.'l'hat_'s renting a building, hiring a staff, getting a copier, fax
machine, That's that money. Law enforcement, team fire protection, housing
impmvement—ﬂ'nere’s that HIP program—and agriculture. Move those funds
into this program calléd consolidated tribal government. That program isteally a
catch-all program, or consider it like an umbrella. Under that umbrella, you can
run all of these programs that you're reprogramumning money from. So that's how

funintelligible].
YD: [unintelligible]

[laughter]
gp:  He'sjust taking it all and putting a different name on it.

BG: Exactly. You're takingall this money and putting a different name onit, a
name which allows you to run those other programs in whatever amounts you
decide to do at the time you want to get into a contract. Let's say today, we take
on action. Next year, you're going to have $800 in this Jaw enforcement thing,
You're not going to be able to access—you're not going to be able to reprogram it
into the [unintelligible] government, which is where your need is, to have it
develop [in price?]. So that money's just going to sit there. [unintelligible] But if
you reprogram to consclidate a tribal government, then the $800 will be available
to you under aid to tribal governments, for your staff or your fax machine ...

YD: Mm hmm.

BG: O, let’s say you decide, Yeah, we're going to need a law enforcement

component. We want to have a security guard patrolling it.

flaughter]

BG:  Let'sjust throw that out there. Well, you could do that. You could do that
ander that consolidated type of {hing. Under that umbrella, you could have a
law enforcement program. The difference is, by not doing the Teprogramning,
you're stuck in a position where you either have to run the program to get the
money or lose the money entirely. Whereas if you reprogram the money, you
have greater flexibility. You can use that money for a different purpose entirely.
Or, you could go ahead and run that law enforcement program for that $800 or
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for $25,000. You see? So it gives you greater flexibility. Is that pretiy dear? Do
you have any questions on that?’

YD: No, I don't. 1 uriderstood it pretty well, except for that one—

BG: Yeah, that takes a litile—

[laughter]
BG: That takes a little timeto get a handle on that.

[unintelligible]

BG: Really, 1 guess another way of explaining the consolidated tribal
government program 1s: when tribes contract programs from the Bureau of
Indian Affairs, they also have o submit budgets for each program. 50 let's say
you're contracting [other aid?), law enforcement, community fire, housing, and
agrim]i’UIE—ﬂlat last group for the program. You vould submit to us those five
separate budgets totaling up to those five separate amounts of money—if you
hadn’t reprogrammed. But if you had reprogrammed,; then all that money would
be in’one line item, You would submit to us one budget and that budget would
break out the amounts of money you wanted for each program you wanted to
run, whether it was all thase programs oI just one program or fifteen more
prOgTams. And it’s the tribe’s Tight to define how much money they want to put
in each one of [those programs?]. Whereas without that reprogramming, you're
pretty much stuck like this.

YD:  Mm hmm.

BG: So that's another attempt [unintelligible]. I know people, it takes them a
long time fo get the hang of it. So Teally, what this letter’s all about is taking the
money that you have in—one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight—nine
programs and reprogramming it into two distinct programs: scholarships and
consolidated tribal government, with the idea that the scholarship money would
be run by the Bureau of Indian Affairs funintelligible]; and the consolidated
tribal government program, the rest of the money would gointo that if the idea
that the tribe’s moving along the lines that we organize—we'Te organizing—we
xnow that you'll need an office and all that. So, we'll make a grant.to the tribe for
a portion of that money. Say $50,000, whatever. Whatever we can agree sounds
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like a good amount based ont what your needs are going to be, That'll be a grant.
And we'll try—you know, we can work through that process— and we're talking
maybe five months, four months, six months down the road, depending on how
fast you want it used. And then also depending on how fast we can
[unintelligible]. We can be slow. Thisty years, right?

YD: What's going on with them?

BG: So let'ssayitwas $50,000, So that's $50,000 out of this $180,000. That still
would give you $130,000 [unintelligible]. Let's say the tribe geis organized and
when you get to the end of that year, there’s going to be another amount of this
money—plus the $130,000, that we conld be moving o the tribe. You know, a
bigger grant fo domore work or in a confract where the tribe actually contracts
the responsibility of providing services to do things. That might be a couple of
years down the road. You Know, before the tribe’s really there. Instead of the
bureau running the scholarships program, cutting the checks, determining the
eligibility, you know, who's eligible, contacting the school and all that. Instead of
them doing it, you guys could do it mostly. But you probably want to beina
position where you're used to just running this government before you takeon |

that responsibility.

Now, with that $130,000, it's possible—this is where we kind of get back to
where Ray talked about—the idea that perhaps the tribe could authorize the
bureau to spend some of that money on its behalf, Maybe hire a derk, an
enrollment derk or an enroliment specialist who would work only with your
tribe in doing some of that enrcllment work. That's going to depend on how
broad you want the tribe to be. For instance, if we went back, say, to your great,
great grandparents and lineal descendants from them are eligible. That's
conceivably two or three hundred people. So you might want to have somebody
on our staff who has access right there in the office to the records necessary to do
the research and show the ties and come up with that enroliment for your tribe.
That could come out of that $130,000. Something like that, a full-time position
like that, is what, $50,000, something like that.

RF: [unintelligible] It depends on how much of an expert you need. Then 100,
if they're going to be limited to just doing research and things, you're not going
toneed a big professional. But if you'se going to have this person help you work
out an enrollment ordinance, kind of a law to determine enrollment, or he's
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going to work on, maybe, a constitution with the tribe—somebody of a higher '
order of function—well, that's worth 50 or 60 or whatever it happens to be—fora
whole year. And the thing is that person would be doing {00 is that you will tell
them, Well, I want—when you do your membership—1 want to see a family tree
done for each person. 1 want to see a [unintelligible], their blood [unintelligible].
You want to make sure they're Miwok Indians. ] want to sée all the work. 1want
you to put a file together for each person.

BG: Thatwould become the tribe’s property.

RF: That would become the tribe’s property for you to file in your office so

that you will have all the enrollment records for your own tribe. Bzt that person
will put together [unintelligible] for you. [unintelligible] So you will define those -
things, what you want them to do for you. And that will determine what level of
[unintelligible] you may need.

BC: And the other side of that, of course, is [unintelligible] hire a person
yourselves and have them work out of that office, ot of their office and
funintelligible]. That's really up to you-—

RF: [unintelligible] You're not Jimited to one or two. You could hire whatever
you feel you need to meet the needs. It's up to you. We might want one on board
and one on the [unintelligible] that person to work with. You know, and answer
the phone and do administrative work and help set up the filing system and
maybe your administrative system. The work within [unintelligible] in fribal
[unintelligible]. And it would be a tribal employee as well. They'd be working,
fhrough the bureau and helping on that end. But again, it’s up to you. You'll
have more than eriough resources. I guess that was the—

BG: Right. This reprogramming action that I'm talking about, this just insures
the money stays on the table for you in the most flexible way for you in the
future, for the next calendar year o1 fiscal year. And then we can make decision,
the tribe can make decisions the next three months what they want to do with it,
whether they want to add thattoa subsequent grant, say, about this time next
year, after they’ve spent the first grant getting things organized. Or whether they
want to— while they're working on their grant, maybe authorize the bureau to
hire somebody in-house to work on the enroliment and [u:ﬁ:\telligib}é] their
constitution. Or, to increase the amount of the grant to hire more staff here.
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Those are all options that we could explore later. But if we don’t do the
repmgramzm'ng, that's going to lower by alitle bit the amount of money that's
available. 1t's not a'terribly significant amount of money. We're talking about—~
well, when you throw HIP in there, you're talking about $22,000. So this way,
you insure that $22,000 is available for you next year.

RF:  You see, the thing too is come fhe end of December, where your grant is
going toend in December, then you get new money for the next period.
Anything that's left over this year, you can 1oll forward into that. They just add
that to yout funintelligible] amount next year. So if it's $50,000 or $30,000,

" whatever, you're not going to Jose it. You're just going to add--it gives.you more -
resources for [unintelligible].

" BG: Right. [unintelligible] serve the similar numbers that 1 was throwing out
there before. You've got, say, $180,000 right now. Let's say youhad a first grant
of $50,000 to get you started. That would Jeave us 130. And let’s say the txibe
wanied to have that specialist at the bureau working [unintelligible} on stuff.
Let's say that’s another $60,000.

RF: 1t would only be for three months, from now to the end of December for
this here grant cydle. The grant cycle only goes through December so that they
kind of get on 10 a calendar year.

BG: 1¢'s highly uniikely that t'1] even be awarded before the end of PDecember.
RF: Oh, that's true [unintelligible]

[unintelligible]

RF: Maybe three months.

BG: Know your friends [in 6387}.

RF: Okay, 50 let’s say you're right, okay. So let’s say that that's true.

" BG:  Okay,sowe had 130. Let's say that the tribe says, Yeah, let's have
somebody at the bureau working for us. So let’s say that's another $60,000. So
130-60 is 70. You'd still have 70 left. And that could be ... that could be added to
the $180,000 that's going to be sitting here for fiscal year 199, We're talking about

TRANSCRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE SERVICES
14w5m7n,cxhvmuaus « BERKELEY, CA 4708 * TELB10-845-1548 » FAY 866861-5656 * SUSAN @ 5—WEISS.COM
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i Page 59
Transcription of videolape: Sepiember 8, 1998 mealing between g
Yakima K, Dixie, Raymond Fry, Brian Golding, Slvia Burley .

this being [unintelligible]. Fiscal year 59, there’s going to be another amount of
money like this. So if it's 180, well, add 70 to that, you've got $250,000.

gp: He could get all this and he can't afford 400 for the—you can come to the
office and [faughs].

RF: That'sright. Now youreupioa quarter of a million, see- You started at
$400. That's pretty good. :

BG: You could even pump out the old septic tank.

That's i < a1l kinds of other things you can due as a
RE: 'That's right. But see, there’s all . : 8
tribe. Once you get organized and go through [GSA?] and get a tribal vehicle

TAPE ENDS

SERVICES

TRANSGRIPTS BY SUSAN WEISS OFFICE o
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United States Department of the Interior

HUREAU OF INDIAN APFAIRS
Ceruval Callfornia Agency
1824 Tribule Ropd, Sulie ]
Sactomento, CA PSSI3-408

SEP 24 N9

TH REPLY REFTATD:

Yakima K. Do, Spokesporson
Sheep Ronch Rancherla

11178 $choo! Strest

Sheop Ranch, Oaﬁ!?r?qh 85280

Doar M1, Bbde; -~

The paurpose of this corespondncs is o summarite the issues discusued Suing
2 monting hold with you and Silvia Burkey on Septomber 8, 1908, ol your .
rexldonos on o Shoup Ranch Rancherta in Shoep Ranch, Catifomia. The
pmposaofhnmwﬂngmhd&awamProcmnﬂomﬂlyommﬁmm .
Tribe. In strondance st this ireeting from my staff wos M. Raymend Fry, Tribal
Operations Officer, and Mr, Brian Golding, St., Tribal Opeérations Specislist,

The Shoap Ranch Rancheria i a federafly recognized Tribe, as it was npt
— lawfully terminated pursuant to the provisions of the Califomnia Ranchetia Act.
The Galtfornia Rancheria Act provided for the termination of specific Tribes by
distributing the essete of the Tribes tothose persons determined ellgible, and in
exchange, o recipients of the assebs woulki no longer be eligible to recelve
sarvices and bonefits avallable o lndlan peopls. The Plan of Distribution of the
Assets of the Sheop Rench Rancheria, approved by the Assoslate Comrtissioher
of Indian Affairs on Cclobor 12, $966, identified your mother, Mabei (Hodga)
Dbde a5 the sole distribuias snttied to participate in tho distribision of the assats
of the Shoep Ranch Rancheria. The Diokibution Plan has not beon revoked.

Hembeizhip

In those situalions whore an "unterminated” Tribe is pursuing reorganization, the
persons possessing the right to recrgonize the Tribe is wsually specilied by the
doclglon of the court, ax the majarity. of "unterminated” Tribes regain facsral
racognition thtough liigation. tUsually, the court decision will stete that the
persong possossing tha right to recrgenize the Tribe are those persons still living
who aro listed a distribalees of Sapentant mombers on the fodetaly approved
Distribution Fian. In some cawes the courls havo extended this rightof
parkcipaton to the lieal descondents of distributees or dependent maembers,
whether living or deceased. . .

P
>
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- In this case, the usual manner of defermining who may reciganize the Triba does

not apply here as there Is no such courl decision. However, with the passing of
Mabe! (Hodge) Dixle, a probate was ordered, and #w Administrative Law Judge
issuod an Order of Determination of Helrs on Ottober 1, 1971, 45 reaffifmed by
subsequent Order tssuad on Aprit 14, 1993, The Order listed the land comprising
the Sheep Ranch Rancheria as part of the estato of Mabel (Hodge) Dibde. The
Oxdar then listed the following persons as possessing 8 cartain undivided Interest
in the Sheop Ranch Rancheria:

Merlo Butler, husband  Undividod 173 Inferest  Deceased
Richard Dide, son Undivided 1/6 interest  Dloceased
Yakima Divie, son Undivided 1/8 interest
Malvin Dixée, son Undivided 15 interast
Tommy Dixie, ton Undivided 1/8 interast  Drocoased

Puring our meeting, you explained to us that three of tha heirs wore docaased,
and that the whereabouts of your brothar, Melvin Dixie, were presently unknown,

We believe that for the purposes of. detertnining the Initial membership of the
Tribo, wo are held to the Order of tho Administrudive Law Judge. Based upon
your sistement that three of the heirs wera decensed, the$wo remaining hairs
are those persons possessing tho right to inftially ctganize the Tribe,

On August 5, 1898, ns the Spokespotson of the Tribe, you accepted Silvia
Burioy, Reshol Roznor, Anjefica Paulk, and Tristion Wallave as enmolled
members of the Tribe. Thorefore, these persons as woll, provided that thoy are
at least eightean years of age, possss the fight to parlicipate in the initial
erganization of the Tribe, .

At the conclusion of cur meeling, you were going to consider what enroilment
criterin should be spplied 46 future prospective members. Our understending is
that suth eriteria will be used to idontify other persons eligible to participate in the
Inial organization of the Tribe. Evenfuslly, such criterla would ba inciuded in tha
Tribo's Constitution. - K

Governance

Tribas that are in the process of initially organizing usualty consider how thoy wit
govern thamselves untit such tima as the Tribe adopts & Constitution through a
Secretarial Election, and Secretarial approval is obirined. Agency stal]
explained two options for the consideration of tha Genwral Membarship:

1) the moembors could oporate os a General Councll, retsining all powera
and authorities, and delegaling spacific limited powers taa
Chairperson, and ’
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2} the members could form an Interim ‘Tribal Council, and delegate from
tha Goneral Coursil various general powers and authorities to the
Interim Tribal Goungil,

in this case, given the small size of the Tribe, We rocommend that the Tribs
operate as a Goneral CouncH, a3 descrived In the first option above, Enclosed
for your consideration, Is a draft Goneral Councll resolution (Resolution #GC-96-
01) speocitying general powers of the Genars! Council and fules for goveming the
Tribe.

A number of the provisions of the draft resolution may be changed by the Triba to
reflact tho mannes in which it desires fo condudt bualness. For instance, the first
"Resolyed” clause on the socond page lists soven {7) specific ptwers to be
oxorcisad by the Genoral Councl. For the most part, this list Involves those
powers that tha General Councl woulkd oxenciss in order to accomplish the initial
organization process, Thero s 1o menBon of other powers, sUch as ths power to
purchase land, since such & power ot itkely woutd not be used during the
organization process, Rather, such a powor would bo usoed after the Triba .
organizes, and would bo included in the Tribe'’s Constitubion.

Another example of a changa to consider is the fourth *Resolved" clause on ihe
second page. This clause stotes that regular mootings of tha Genesal Council
will be hald on the second Saturday of each month, The Tribe moy wish o
change this to a day of tha week that il best moot the Tribe's needs.

Onca the General Councli adopted such a resolution, the Geneta) Council would
then preceed to eloct ur appointa Chuirperson, The General Councll would then
be pbla to procesd with the conduct of business, in @ manner consixtent with the
authorizing reselution. Additionel powers can o spetified by the Gonstal
Gouncil tiough sither an amondmeont $o the wahorizing resolution, or adoplion of
another authotzing resolution.

Wa discussed the fact that the Bursau of Indian Affaits makes grants, under the
provisions of the Indlan Sek for and Education Assistance Act, as
amentod, to Tribes for the purpose of strongthening of improving Tribal
govemment and developing Tribal capacity to enter inte fulure contracts, Such
grants can be used to cover costs incurred by the Tribe in establishing a Tribal
office, equipment and fumiture, supplies, and logal aesistance. [ns this case, wb
advisod the Tribe that the first grant would be minda in the amount of $50,000.

13
1y order to apply for and receivo funding from {ho Bureau, the Seif-Determination
Act requires thet a Tribe indicate by rasolution its destra to recetve grant funding.
Enclosed is a draft Gerieral Council resolution (Resolution #GC-88-02) which
fuHills this reguirement.
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Wa discussed the notum of contressional appropriations regarding the funding
that Tribas recsive, We recommendsd that fhe Triba considet reprogramming
funds from various prograins inte the Consolidated Tribal Government program.
Such reprogramming would then provide the Triba with the greatest flexibility in
using the funds in the upcomting year. As a result of cur discusslon, you provided

the Agency staff present with a letter proscribing your reprogramming

preforences. A copy of this letter is enclosad for your records,

Bureau Cogts Associated with Organizing

We discussed the Bureau’s role in providing technical assistance to Tribes in the
procass of organizing the Tribe. The Bureau recoives some funding from each of
the Tribes in our jurisdiction as a maans of providing a minimum amount of
tochnlcal ossislance. Bulin those ceses wherea Tribe is pursuing formal
organization, such funds ara insufficient to cover all costs.

We réquest that the Tribe consider the sdoption of the enclosed dralt Ganeral
Council resolution {Resolution #GC-88-03). The purposa of this resolution is to
authorize the Bureau to charge expenses related to the erganization of the Tribs -
to the Tribe's FY 1898 Tribal Priority Allocation funding. Cne exampls of a’cost
supporting the erganization process is the purchase of denth cortificates for tha
thres deceased helrs. The death certificates ate necessary for the inftidtion o
tha probate process, Another example of such costs is the hiring of &8 now
Bureau employee, or the temporary a¥signment of an existing Bureau employes,
to work diroctly with the Tribe in the ofganization process, Such work may focus
on the snrollment process, development of administrative managemont systems,
or off Issues related lo govemnance, : ‘

Other lssues

Probates: Wa discussed the stetus of the fand, and the need for additional
probates 1 be complated to determine the status of the estates of doconsod
hairs, We agread to obialn copies of the death certificates of the deceased helirs.
A roquost for death certificates was prepared, and we expoct the processing of
the requost by the State Office of Vital Records within the next month, Cnce
received, we will then precead with preparing the probates.-

“The fact that thera are probate actions remaining to be taken directly impacts
your ability to erter info a homesite lease. This is relevant 1o the question you
asked ragatding Sitvia's eligibility for assistance under the Housing improvernent
Program (HIP), An applicant under the HIP must demonstrate ownership or
control over land, either through an essignment of 2 homesite leasa, in this
case, 25 the land is considored as individually-ownod trust land, you and the
other helrs would heva lo enter into n homesite lease with Ms. Burley. Other
ofigibility ceileria exists for the HIF that are beyond the purview of this letter, We
have requesled that the HIP send an application to Ms. Burley for her raview,
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- Septic Tenk: With regard {o the septic tank issue you braught to our attention,
we researched our files and found thet the house you are currently occupying
was constructed under the HIP in 1967, The issue i addreszedina
memorandum from tha Agsncy Realty Officar to the Area Realty Cfficer, dated
August 12, 1871, which states, *Ths 20' x 24’ house was constructed in 1867 ata
cost of $8,500.00 and the septic tank, installed by Phoenix Health Sendca, woukd
cost abaut $1,500.00.* Wa contacted the Indian Hoealth Service, Califomia Ares
Qffics, here In Sacramento, and inguited whether they will be able t6 provide
maintenance sorvices to you. Wo obtained their commitment to perform the work
within the next coupla of months. We will work with you to ensure that the work
is comploled in an appropitate manner,

Acceas 1o Ranchera; We discussed the notion that the driveway leading up to
tha Sheep Ranch Rancheria was not within the Rancheria. We agreed o look
into the ownarship of the driveway. Ploase find enclosed an Assessor's Parcel
Map of a portion of the Sheep Ranch Townsits, This map shows 2 numbey of
“papar.roads that do not exfst today, We aro currendly researching the
ownership of the paper roads o determine what rights the Tribe may have to
assert a use right to the driveway. ~

Next Meeting: We agreed that ancther moefing was necessary 1o discuss the

draft resolutions and additional dotails of tha orgonization process. We proposa
- that we maet oh Friday, October 2, 1998, at 11:00 2.m,, fo be held al your
residencs in Sheep Ranch, Calforniar

i thank you for your ¢oncem and positive participation in the osganization
process. | am certain that if we continue fo work togother, tha organization
process will be completed without undue dotay; Toward this end, | extend the
assistance of my stalf, upon your wiitten request. '

Slneerely,

islt

ale 458
Superintendent
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RESOLUTION #GC-98-01

ESTABLISHING A GENERAL COUNCIL TO SERVE AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF
THE SHEEP RANCH BAND OF ME-WUK INDIANS

WHERREAS, The Sheep Ranch Band of Me-Wuk Indians of the Sheep Ranch Rancherig of
California (“the Tribe") was not terminated pursuant to the provisions of the Act
of August 18, 1958, P.L. 85-671, 72 Stat. 619, as amended by the Act of August
11, 1964, P.L. 88-419, 78 Stat/ 390 (“the Rancheria Act”), and is a federally
recognized Indian Tribe as confirmed by the incluston of the Tribe in the list of
Indian Entities Recognized and Eligible to Receive Services from the United
States Burean of Indian Affairs, as published in the Federal Register on October
23,1997,

WHEREAS, The plan of Distribution of the Assets of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, approved by
. the Associate Commissioner of Indian Affairs on October 12, 1966, identified
Mabel (Hodge) Dixie as the sole distributee entitled to participate in the
distribution of the assets of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria;

WHEREAS, The Bureau of Indian Affairs did not completely implement the steps necessary 1o
affect the termination of the Tribe prior to the passing of Mabel (Hodge) Dixie;

WHEREAS, The estate of Mabel (Hodge) Dixie was probated and Order of Determination of
Heirs was issued on Qctober 1, 1971, listing the following persons as possessing a
certain undivided interest in the Sheep Ranch Rancherie:

Merle Butler, husband Undivided 1/3 interest
Richard Dixie, son Undivided 1/6 interest
‘Yakima Dixie, sot Undivided 1/6 interest
Melvin Dixle, son Undivided 1/6 interest -~
Tommy Dixie, son Undivided 1/6 interest

and this Order was reaffirmed by another Order issued on April 14, 1993;

WHEREAS, The surviving heirs are believed to be Yakima and Melvin Dixie, as the other
heirs are or are believed to be deceased, and their heirs are in the process of
requesting the cstates of the deccased heirs be probated, and it is believed that the
deceased helrs had no issue;

WHEREAS, The whercabouts of Melvin Dixie arc unknown;

WHEREAS, The membership of the Tribe currently consists of at least the fallowing
individuals; Yakima Dixic, Silvia Fawn Burley, Rashel Kawehilani Reznor,
Anjelica Josett Paulk, and Tristian Shawnee Wallace; this membership may
change in the future consistent with the Tribe’s ratified constitution and any duly

o —
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enacted Tribal membership statutes.

WHEREAS, The Tribe, on June 12, 1935, voted to accept the terms of the Indian
Reorganization Act (P.L. 73-383; 48 Stat. 934) but never formally organized
pursuant to federal statute, and now desires to pursue the formal organization of
the Tribe; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That Yakima Dixie, Silvia Fawn Burley, and Rashel Kawehilani Reznor, asa |
majority of the adult members of the Tribe, hereby establishes General Council to serve as the
governing body of the Tribe;

RESOLVED, That the General Council shall consist of all members of the Tribe who are at least
eightecn years of age, and each member shall have ong vole;

RESOLVED, That the General Council shall have the following specific powers to exercise in
the best interest of the Tribe and its members:

(8  To consult, negotiate, contract, or conclude agreements with the Bureau of Indian Affairs,
for the purpose of furthering the development and adoption of a Constitution;

(®)  To administer assets received from such sgresments specified in (z) above, including the
power to establish bank accounts and designate signers thereupon;

(c)  Toadminister the day-to-day affaits related to such agreements specified in (a) sbove;

(d) Todevelop and adopt policies and procedures regarding personnel, financial
management, procurement and property management, and other such policies and
procedures necessary to comply with all laws, regulations, rules, and policies related to
funding received from such agreements specified in (2) above;

(&)  Toemploy legal counsel for the purpose of assisting in the development of the
Constitution and the policies and procedures specified in (d) above, the chioice of counsel
and fixing of fees to be subject to the approval of the Secretary of the Interior or his
authorized representative;

()  Toreccive advice from and make recommendations to the Secretary of the Interior with
regard to all approptiation estimates or federal projects for the benefit of the Tribe prior to
the submission of such estimates to the Office of Management and Budget and to
Congress;

(g) To faithfully advise the General Council of all activities provided for in this resolution at
each regularly scheduled meeting of the General Coungil;

()  Topurchase real property and put such real property into trust with the United States
government for the benefit of the Tribe;

RESOLVED, That all other inhercnf rights and powers not specifically listed herein shall vest in
the General Council, provided that the General Council may specifically list such other rights
and powers through subsequent resolution of the General Council;

RESOLVED, That the Genetal Council shall appoint from among its members a Chairperson,
who shall preside over all meetings of the General Council and rights and powers through
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subsequent resolutions of the General Council, provided that in the absence of the Chairperson, &
Chairperson Pro Tem shall be appointed from members convening the mesting;

RESOLVED, That the Chairperson shall notice and convene regular mectings of the Gencral
Council on the second Saturday of each month following the adoption of this resolution,
provided that special meetings of the General Council may be called by the Chairperson upon
providing a least fifteen (15) days notice stating the purpose of the meeting;

RESOLVED, That the Chairperson shall call a special meeting of the General Council, within
thisty (30) days of receipt of a petition stating the purpose of the mesting, signed by at least fifty-
one percent (51%) of the General Council, and the Chairperson shall provide at least fifteen (15)
days notice stating the purpose of the meeting, provided thet at such meeting, it shall be the first
duty of the General Council to determine the validity of the petition;

RESOLVED, That the General Council shall elect from among its members a
Secretary/Treasurer, who shall record the minutes of all General Councit meetings, maintain the
official records of the Tribe, certify the enactment of all resolutions, and disburse all funds as
ordered by the Generat Council; '

RESOLVED, That the quorum requirement for mectings of the General Council shall be
conducted pursuant to Robert’s Rules of Order;

RESOLVED, That the Genera! Council shall exist untii a Constitution is formally adopted by
the Tribe and approved by the Secretary of the Interior or his authorized representative, untess
this resolution is rescinded through subsequent resolution of the General Council.

CERTIFICATION

We, the undersigned as a majority of the adult members of the General Council of the Sheep
Rarch Band of Me-Wuk [ndians of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria of California (“the Tribe"), do

_hereby certify that at a duly noticed, called, and convened special meeting of the General Council

held on FHeesda YA in Sheep Ranch, California, where a quorum was present, this
resolution was adopted by avate of _2,_in faver, () opposed, and O abstaining, We further
certify that this resolution has not been rescinded, amended, or modified in any way.

Dated this S _ day of f 0Uenaloe €, 1998:

y ]

Silvia Burley

Rashel Rexnor -

AT i T AV W LS Oy AT
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United Stafes Department of the Interior

BUREAY OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
Central California Agency
1824 Tribute Road, Snite J . mmmﬁgﬁ .
Sscramento, CA 95815-4308 ——_—
. S . FEB -4 2000
Silvia Burley, Chairperson L
Sheep Rancti Ranchena
1055 Winter Court

Tracy, California 053768

Dear Ms. Buriey: | | |

The puipose of this corr espondence is 10 provide you with-a copy of our letter to Yakima K.
Dixie, Vice-Chairperson, Sheep Ranch Rancheria, regarding allegations of fraud or misconduct

relative to the change in Tribal leadership during April and May 1999. Mr. Dixie raised these
allegations at a meeting on December 28, 1999, held at the Central Califormia Agency (Agency).

This correspondence also serves as notice fo you of a meeting requested by Mr. Dixie, to be
held on Tuesday, February 15, 2000, at 11:30 a.m,, in the Agency's Conference Room. The
. purpose of this meeting is to discuss the issues raised in the enclosed letter, as well as steps

the Tribe may take ta resolve this matter intemally. : .

Mr. Dixie requested that only members of the General Council and one non-aftomey - -

representative for each side participate In this meeting. Please contact Brian Goiding, Sr., :
Tribat Operaﬁons‘Speciaiist. at (916) 566-7124, by the close of business on Wednesday,

February 9, 2000, and provide him with the names &f those persons who will accompany you to
this meeting. .

‘Should you have any guestions with regard to this méﬂer, please contact Mr. Raymond Fry,

. Tribal Operations Officer, at (91€) 566-7124,
. . . S

)

i Daie Risling, Sr.
Supeﬁntendent '

~ Enclosure

CVMT-2011-000233
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~ United States..}).épar'tment of the Interior =

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
Central California Agency
1824 Tribute Road, Suite J
Sscramento, CA 958154308 .
. FEB ~4 2000

?akirﬁa K. Dixie, Vice-Chairperson
Sheep Ranch Rancheria .
P.0. Box 41

&heep Ranch, Califoria 96250

n

Dear Mr. Dixie:

i ondence serves three purposes. First, we respond to concems rat.sed-by_
g&sacfggfh%r persons purporting to be members of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, during.
a meeting held atthe Central Califormia Agency (Agency) on December 28, 1968.
Second, we respond 1o your delivery during fhe a_fqremen?:oneq meeting of th_e o
ncxonstitution of the (Sheep (Ranch Rancheria) Miwok Indian Tribe of Cafifomia,” '
purportedly adopted on December 11, 1998. Third, we give you notice of the meeting'to
be held on Tuesday, February 15, 2000, for the purpose of discussing further these

‘ssues among tHie members of the Tribe. _,

Allegations of Fraud Reised at our Meeting of December 28, 1999

E“

ised at our meeting with you.and other persans purported to be
'Ir;}r;em%c;r:zeurfn fhfgsee;f Ranch Ranr?cheriay('rribe) center around allegations of fraud or
misconduct relative to the change in Tribai leadership during Apn_! and May 1888, You
provided us with, copies of two documents as support for your claims. The ﬁr§t! "
document appears fo be a resolution of the General Council, m_rhere_ at a special mee u;?
held-on April 20, 1999, the General Councu! accepted your resngnaison from the office
Chaftperson. The second document contains two letters from you to §liv1a"Bu§1te_y
wherein you assert that you "cannot and will not {resign) as Chairman"but Qo give (I_Vls“.
Burley)...the rightto actas a delegate to re:pr:esent the Sheep Ranch Indian Rar&}chena. .
During our meeting, you also stated that within two we:eks you wn_uld submit to the i :
Agency additional documents and statements supporting your claims. However, we di
not receive anything from you as of the date of this letter.

: sion of our meeting, we agreed 1o review our records and provide you with
,:trg;;ocggg ];Jegarcﬁng ypdr allegations. We also agreed that_ asa matter of protocol our
résponse would be shared with the person presently recognized by the Agency as the
Chairperson of the Tribe, Silvia Burley. We further agre_'ed that our response would be
among the subjects of discussion at a fufure meeting with the Tribe.
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Background..

st 1998, the Agency recognized you as the Spokesperson of the Tribe,
?;iosr;:éﬁ;ggm was bas'edg'upgz the faci'that you area lineal descendant qf tﬁe spie
distributee (your mother, Mabel Hodge Dixie) identified in the Plan for‘t!';e !élstnbg;:?n of
the Assets of the Sheep Rench Rancheria, as approved by the Asscciate ¢ an'n‘irs ioner
of Indian Affairs on Oclober 12, 1966. You are glsn one of the two rex;\a;rgﬁ aes' s
identified in the Order of Determination of Heirs issued on November Jertas
reaffirmed by subsequent Order issued on Ap.n! 1{1,. 1993, At that time, e' abouts
of the other remaining heir (your brother Melvin Dixie) were unknown.

' | ; ' ' ‘enrolled members
. Auqust 5, 1998, as Spokesperson of the Tribe, you accepled as enro
oofrilﬁa ‘?‘ribe four persons: (1} Silvia Burley, {(2) her daqgr_\ter Rashel _Reznx:u‘cio(g?I her o
daughter Anjelica Paulk, and (4) her granddaughter Tristian Wallace. The men
evidencing you action do not state any restrictions upon the rights of these _;la_gil;sons as
members of the Tribe. As such, we view these persons as members dof the Tribe,

erjoying all benefits, privileges, rights, and responsibilities of Tribal membership. This

includes the right to parficipate in the initial orggnizationof the Tribe, provided that those

persons are eighteen years o older.

em i o ‘ taff met with you, Ms.
eptember 8, 1998, and again on Octoba_r 16,_ 19981 Agency s v . \
ggrl&;prs. Reznor, and other interested parties (;ncludapg reprgsentatwes from N
Califor;xia Indian Legal Services) to discuss the group's_ interest in formally organizing
the Tribe. The group expressed an interest in proceeding and we agreed to provide

technical assistance to the group. e

-

the initial issue to be addressed in the process of organizing an
E;T:;;iir{éted" Tribe Is that of specifying those persons entitled to pariicipate. -ng
position of the #gency on this subject istht,_at a minimurm, tho_sa persons e:}txtl_but.o
organize the Tribe are those persons NOW lz\[z_ng and hste_g:l on either (1) the Distribution -
Plan or {2) the Order of Determination of Heirs, and the lineal descendants of those

persons. AS stated above, your August 5, 1998, enroliment actionis viewed by the

. Agency as extending to Ms. Burley and Ms. Reznor the right of parficipation, Thus, as-

of that date, you, Ms. Burley, and Ms. Reznar formed the group of persons entitied to

- participate in the organization of the Tribe.

' cecommended that the group consider eliciting the participation of descendants
\é\f’?ﬁ:: pr:\eecrgons listed on the ansug_of Sheepranch-Indians, as at_iached 1o the letter
by the Special Indian Agent, dated August 13, 1915, recgmmend_mq the pun;hasetokfn )
fand that would later become the Sheep Ranch 'Ranchena. At this time, we do not know
whether the group has formally considered this recommendation.
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. Anotfier recommendation we riade involved the iriitial form of government tobe .
addpté"c}' by the group, and was based upon the General Council concept. To this end,
we prépared a:draft resolution that would establish a General Councilasthe
goverfing body of the Tribe and empowered that body to act with régard to various
aspects of the organization process. On November 5, 1988, the majority of the aduit
mermbers of the Tribe, adopted Resolution #GC-98-01, thus establishing a General

‘Council to serve as the goveming body.of the Tribe.

Resolution #GC-98-01 -provided for the appointment of a Chairperson and the election
of a Secretary/Treasurer. We do not have any record of the appointment of a-
Chairpérson or the election of a Secretary/Treasurer. We do have two letters, both from
Ms: Burley, the first dated April 2, 1998, wherein sha asserts that she is the elecied
Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe, and the second dated April 13, 1998, which states Ms,
Burley's title as SecretaryfTreasurer. The second letter also indicates a courtesy copy -
was sent to Yakima Dixie, Chairman. :

The first of the two documents you provided us during our meeting on December 28,
1999, indicate that, at a special meeting held on April 20, 1899, the General Coungil
accepted your resignation from the office of Chairperson. The second document
contains two letters from you to Ms. Burley, dated April 21, 1988, wherein you assert
that you “cannot and will not (resign) as Chairman” but "do give you...the right to act as
a delegate to represent the Sheep Ranch Indian Rancheria.” Prior to our meeting, we
did not have copies of these documerts in our records. :

The next correspondence regarding the Trie contained in our records is dated May 14,
1699, from Mary T. Wynine, Attorney at Law, which purported to transmit to the Agency
several documents, including a constitution, an atiormey contract, and a certification of
election. However, a copy of the certification of election was not received by the

' Agency until M3y 27, 1999. The cerlificate states that an election cccurred on May 8,
1999, pursuant to Article X1V of the constitution ratified the same day. As aresuliof the
election, Ms. Burley became Chairperson, you becarhe Vice-Chairperson, and Ms.
Reznor became Secretary/Treasurer. Also contained in our records is a copy of the
May 8, 1999, General Council Meeting Notice upon which your signature appears.

* As for the atiorney contract that was.enclosed with the May 14, 1999, c}orrespondence. '
the Agency by letter addressed to you and dated May 27, 1998, retumed the proposed
contract to the Tribe without action for a number of reasons, including thie fact that the
»agency has not received any decumentation from the tibe which would clarify how,
when and where the leadership of the fribe changed from having Mr. Yakima Dixie bs

" the Chairperson to Ms. Silvia Burley assuming that elected position." The Agency did
not receive a written' response from the Tribe addressing the lack of documentation; As
stated sbove, the Agency did receive on May 27, 1999, copies of the Certificate of
Election and the May 8, 1999, General Council Meeting Notice. '
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You alleged that the events during April and May 1989 leading to the change in Tribal
leadérship résulted from fraud and your lack of awareness of what was happening
during that period of time. You also requested that the Agency take action to clear up
this matter.” We cannot at this time fulfill your request that the Agency act to clear up

tRis matter.

The general position of the Agency is that the appointment of Tribal leadership and the
conduct of Tribal elections are internal matters, Tribal members reasonably believing’
such actions to be invalid have the right ta appeal as a matter of due process. Appeals
are to be made within a reasonable time after the election and in an appropriate manner
as defined by Tribal law. Appeals are to be made directly to and resolved within the
appropriate Tribat forum designated and empowered under Tribal law fo process and

_ decide such appeals.

When the appointment of Tribal leadership or the conduct of a Tribal election is the
subject of an appeal, the Agency as a matter of policy continues to recognize the Tribal
government as constituted prior to the appointment or election. Such recognition
continues until either {1) the Agency is assured that the appeal is resolved, or {2) the.
. Agency determines that resolution of the appeal within a reasonable time appears
. unlikely. In the first instancs, the Tribe's assurance of resolution of the appeat is the
pasis for Agency acknowledgement of the newly appointed or elected officials of the

Tribal government. -

However, in the second instance, often the appointment of Tribal leadership or the
conduct of a Tribal election becomes the center of a larger dispute, such that appeals
are uniikely to be handled in a manner affording due process. The factions then will
approach the Agency and request our recognition of each faction’s actions. As a matter
of policy, the Agency informs the Tribal government as constituted prior to the _
appointment or election that a continuing dispute regarding the compositionofthe

. govemning-body of the Tribe raises concemns that a duly constituted government is

" Jacking. The Agency then advises the Tribe fo resolve the dispute intemnally within a
reasonable period of time, and that failure to do so may result in sanctions taken against
the Tribe, up to and including the suspension of the government-to-government
relationship between the Tribe and the United States. Such suspensions are rare, but

they do occuf. - :

'With respect fo your allegations regarding the transition in leadership of the Tribe, we
view such allegations as the basis of an appeal regarding the appointment of Tribal
leadership and the conduct of the May 8, 1999, Tribal election. Suchan appeal should
have been pursued within a reasonable time after the eléction was conducted, and

. made to the appropiiate body empowered to decide such an appeal. Whether your
letter of April 21, 1998, to Silvia Burley, wherein you expressed your inability to resign
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. from the office of Chairperson, was such an appeal is a quéstion to be decided by the
Tribe. As regards the May 8, 1999, Tribal election, you provided no evidence to us that
you pursued or attempted to pursue those remedies available to you within the Tribe." if
you pos§ess such evidence, you should present it {0 the appropriate body empowered
to process and decide an appeal. Thus, consistent with Agency policy; we carinct at

- this time fulfill your request that the Agency act to clear up this matter as this issue is-an

. internal matter to be resolved by the Tribe: : '

. Constitution of December 11, 1999

During our meeting on December 26, 1999, you provided us with a document entitled,
"Constitution of Sheep {Ranch (Rancheria) Miwok Iridian Tribe of California” o
(Constitution). The last page of the Constitution indicates that it was adopted on

December 11, 1988,
Please find enclosed the Constitution. We retum it to you, without action, as a formal

request for review did ot accompany the Constitution. Further, the body that acted on
December 11, 1898, upon the document does not appear to be the proper body to so

act. . N

Prooosed Meeting of February 15, 2000

During our meeting on December 26, 1999, you requested that another meeting be held
after we responded to your concemns. - For this reason, and in fight of the present

. dispute within the Tribe, we scheduled the requested meeting for Tuesday, February 15,
2008, at 11:30 a.m., to be held in the Conference Room of the Central California
Agency. The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss the issues raised in light of the
discussion above, as well as sieps the Tribe may take o resolve this matier internaily.

You also requested thet only members of the General Council and one non-attomey

- representative for each side participate i this meeting. We understand that Rebecca
Cuthill and your brother, Melvin Dixie, will be accompanying you te this meeting. Ms,
Cuthill was present at our meeting on December 28, 1999. We briefiy met with Melvin

- Dixie at the Agency on January 13, 2000, and informed him of the efforts made to
formally organize the Tribe. At that time, he expressed an interest in being involved in
that process. Since Melvin Dixie is the only remaining heir, other that you, identified in .
the Order of Determination of Heirs, he is entitled to participate in the organization of the

Tribe.. ‘
A copy of this letter is-being sent under separatg cover leiter to Ms. Burley so as to

apprise her of your concerns and our position. The separate cover letter will provide |
" Ms, Burley with notice -of the February-15, 2000, mesting, as described in this letter.
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Should ‘~§ou have any questions with regard to this matter, please contact Mr. Raymond-
Fry, Tribal Operations Officer, at (816) 566-7124.

Sincerely,

Superintendent

- Enclosure

ce:  Rebecca Cuihill {without enclosure)

aaz
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‘Dear Mr, Dixie:

" - document appears . il, where at
"held on April 20, 1999, the General Gourncll accepted your resignation from the office of .

‘Chairperson. The secon

. United States Department of the I_nteﬁ'ot U

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
1824 Tubute Resed, Snited
. Sucramento, CA 558154308 -
. ' FEB -4 2000 - Co
vakima K. Dixie, Vice-Chairperson
" Sheep Ranch Rancheria
P.C. Box 41 L

Sheep Ranch, California 95250

c

This corespondente serves three purposes. First; we respond-to concems raised by.
you and other-persons.purportin to be members of the Sheep Ranch Rarchefia; during

2 meeting held at tha Central California Agericy (Agency) on December 28, 1999, .
Second, we respond to your delivery during the aforementioned mesting of the:

"G onstitution of the (Sheep (Ranch Rancheria) Miwok fnidian Tribe of Califomia,"
purpdrtedly adopted on December 11, 1998, Third, we give you notice of the meeting to
be held on Tuesday, February 15, 2000, for the purpose of discussing further these, -

issues among the members of the Tribe.

Alleations of Fraud Raised at our Mésting of Decermber 28, 1988

The concems reised at our meeting with you and other persons purported to bé _
members of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe) center around-allegations of fraud or

" misconduct rejetive to the change in Tribal leadership during April and May 1998. You

provided. us with, copies of two documents as support for your claims. Thefirst -
{o be a resolution of the General-Council, where at a special meeting

d document contains two letters from you.to Silvia Burley -
wherein you assert that you "cannot and will not {resign) as Chalman"but "do give (Ms. ~
Burley)...the right to act as a delegate 10 represent the Sheep Ranch Indian Rancheria”
During our mesting, you also stated that within two weeks you would submit to-the

" Agency additional documents and statements supperling your claims. . However, we did

not receive anything from you as of the date of this letier.

" Atthe conclusion of our meeting, we agreed to review.ouf records and provide you with .

a response regarding your allegations. We also agreed that as a matter of protocol our
response would be shared with the person presently recognized by the Agency asthe
Chairperson of the Triba, Silvia Burley. We further agreed that our response would be.
among the subjects of discussion at a future mesting with the Tribe. ~ .~ .
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Priorto August 1998 the Agency reoogmzed you as the Spokesperson of the Tﬂbe
This reoognitlon was based upon the fact that you are a linegl descendant of the sole -

distributee’ (your mother, Mabel Hodge Dixie) identified in.the Plan for the Distribution of

the Assets of the Sheep Ranch Rancherig, as approved by the Assaciate Commissioner

i .of Indian Affairs on October 12, 1966, You are also orie of the two remaining heirs,
‘identified’in the Order of Determmaﬂon of Heirs issued on November 1, 1971, a8

reaffirmed by subsequent Order issued on April 14, 1993. At that bme, the whereabouts '

of.the other remaining heir (your brother Malvm Dixie) wele unknown.

On August 5 1998 as Spokesperson of the Tnbe you accepted as enrolle’d members

.of the Tribe four persons: {1) Silvia Burley, (2) her daughter Rashel Reznor, (3) her -
daughter Anjelica Paulk, and (4} her granddaughter Tristian Wallace, The.documents

evidencing your action, do not state any restrictions upon the nghts of these persons as
members of the Tribe.- As such, we view.these persoris.as members of the Tribe,
enjoying all benefis, privileges, rights, and respansibilities of Tribal membership, This

includes the right to parﬂmpete in the initial orgenlzetmn of the Tribse, prov;ded that ﬂ'sose -
'+ persons are enghteen years or older,

- On September 8, 1998 and again on October 16, 1998, Agency staff met with you, Ms. .

Burley, Ms. Reznor, and other interested parties (mcludlng represeniaiives from
California Indian Legal Services) to discuss the group's interest in formaily orgamzmg

" the Tribe, The group expressed an interest in proceeding and we- agreed 19 provide

technical assistance to the group,

Generally, the mmal issue to be addressed in the piocess of organizing an
"untérminated" Tribe is that of specrfy:ng those persons entitled to participate: The
posmon of the'&gency on this subject is that, at a minimum, those persons entitled to
organize the Tribe are those persons now living and listed on either {1) the Distributior
Plan or (2)-the Order of Determinstion of Heirs, and the lineal descendants of those -

. pérsons. As slated above, your August 5, 1998 enroliment acfion is viewed by the

Agency as extending to Ms. Burley and Ms. Reznor the right of participation. Thus, as -

" of that date, you, Ms. Burley, and Ms. Rezno; formed the group of persons entxt!ed 0

participate in the organrzatxon of the Tnbe

We also. recommended that the group cons;der el‘cutmg the pariicipation of descendants -
of those persons listed on the-Census of Sheepranch-indians, as attached to the letter
by the Special Indian Agent, dated August 13, 1915, recommending the purchase of

land that would later become the Sheep Ranch Rancheria. At this fime, we do not know
whether the group has formally conSIdered this recommendat:on ;

CVMT-2011-000242




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 94 of 270

Another recommendatmn we miade mvolved the :nrbal form.of government fobe

adopted by the group, and was based upon the General Counc;l concept. To thls end

we prepargd a draft resolution that would establish a Géneral Council a the -

governing body of the Tribe and'empowered that body to act with, regard to vanous :
- aspects of the organization process. On November 5, 1998, the majority of the aduit -
. mambers of the Tribe; adaopted Resolution #GC-BB—O“I thus establishmg a General

Council to serve as the govemmg body of ihe Tribe, _

Resolution #GC-QB-O‘t provided for the appointment of a Chairperson and the eiect;on
ofa Secretaryfr reastrer. We do not have any record of the appointmentofa = -
) Chairperson or the election of a Secretary/Treasurer. We do have twb letters, Both from
" Ms. Burley, the first dated April 2, 1999, wherein she asserts that she is the elected
Secreteryn' reasurer of the Tribe, and the second dated April 13, 1999; which states'Ms.”
Burley's title as Secretary/Treasurer; The sécond letter also md:cates a courtesy copy -
was sent to Yakima Daxne Chairman. _ .

The first of the two documents you prowdad us dunng our meehng on. December 28,
1999, indicate that, at a special meeting held-on April 20, 1993, the General Council
accepted your resignation from the office of Chairperson. The second document:
contains two letters from you to Ms. Burley, dated April 21,.1998, wherein ! you assert-

. that you scannot and will not (resign) as Chairman® but "do give you..the right to act as
a delegate to represent the Shéep Ranch Indian Rancheria. " Pnor 1o our meeting, we

did not have GOples of these deouments in-our records.

The next correspondence regardmg the Tribe contained in our records is dated May 14,
1998, from-Mary T. Wynne, Attorney at Law, which purported 1o transmit io the Agency
several documenits, including a constitution, an attorney contract, and a certification of
- alection. However, a copy of the certification of election was notreceived by the -
" Agency until M&y 27, 1699, The certificate states that an election eccurred on May 8,
41999, pursuant to Article XIV of the constitution ratified the sariie day. As aresult of the
élection, Ms. Burley became Chairperson, you becarhe Vice-Chairperson, andMs, -
. Reznor became Secretary/Treasurer. Also contained in our records is a copy of the
- May: 8, 1999 General Countil Meet;ng Nonce upon.which your sagnatuna appears;

" As for the attomey contrect that was. enclosed with the May 14, 1699, correspondence
the:Agency by lefier addressed to you and dated May 27, 1999 returned the proposed

- contract to the Tribe without action for & nuimber of reasons, mcludmg the fact that the -
nAgency has not received any documentation from the iribe which would clarify how,
when and whese the Ieadershlp of the tribe changed from having Mr. Yakima Dixie be -
tHe Chairperson to Ms. Silvia Burley assuming that elected position." The Agency did
not receive a written response from the Tribe addressing the lack of documentation: As

- stated above, the Agency did receive on‘May 27, 18988, copies of the Cert!ﬁcate of ‘
Eiectmn and the May 8, 1999 General Councsl Meehng Notice. :
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Analysis |
You alleged that the events durihg April and May 1599 leadmg to the change in Tnbal )
leadership resulted from fraud and your lack of awareness of what was happening

during that period of time, You also requested that the Agency take action to clear up
~-this matter. We cannot at this time fulfill your request that'the Agency act 1o clear up

' ) thzs matter

The general position of the Agency is that the appomtment of Tribal leadershlp and the.

- condtict of Tribal eléctions are internal matters. Tribal members reasonably believing -
such actions to be invalid have the right 1o appeal as a matter of due process, Appeals

- are to be made within a reasonable time after the electionand in an appm;fnate manner
as defined'by Tribal law. Appeals aré to be made directly to and résoived within the -
appropriate Tribal forum designated and empowered under Trlbal iaw to process and

decide such appea!s. ]

When the appomtment of Tribal Ieadershlp of the conduct of a Tribal election is the .
. subject of an appeal, the Agenc:y as a matter of policy continues to recognize the Tribal
- government as constituted prior to the appointment.or election. Such recognition” - -
continues until either (1) the Agency is assured that the appeal isresolved, or (2) the
- Agency determines that resolution of the appeal within a-reasonable time appears:
unlikely. Inthe first instance, the Tribe's assurance of resolution of the appeal is the
basis for Agency acknow[edgement of the newly appointed or elected afﬁczais of the

' Tnbal gwamment.

However, in the second instance, often the appointment of Tribal leadership.or the
cenduct of a Tribal efection becomes the center of a larger disputs, such that appeals
are unlikely to be handled in a manner affording due process. The factions then' will
approach the Agency and request our recognition ‘of each faction's actions. As a matter -
of policy, the Agency informs the Tribal government as constituted prior to the - L

. appomtment or election that 2 continuing dispute regarding the composition of the

© . governirig body of the Tribe raises concerns that a duly constituted govemment is

. 'lacking, The Agency then advises the Tribe to resclve the dispute intémally within a

. reasenable period of time, and that failure to do so may result in-sanctions takeh against

" the Tribe, up to and including the suspension of the govemment-to—govemment
relationship between the Tribe and the United States Such suspensions are rare, but -

they do oceur.

&

W’ﬁ‘! respeci io your. ailegat:ons regardmg the transition in leadershlp of the Tribe, we -
view such allegatioris as the basis of an appesl regarding the appointment of Tnbal
ieadershtp and the conduct of the May 8, 1999, Tribal election. 'Such an appeal should -
have been pursted within a reasonable time after the' election was conducted, and
made 1o the appropriate body empowered to decide such an appeal. Whether your,
iet!er of April 21, 1999 to Sliwa Burley, wherein you-expressed your inability to re&gn
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from the office of Chaarperson was such an appeai isa quest:on io ba dec:ded by the .
Tribe.. As regards-the May 8, 1998, Tribal election, you.provided no evidence to us that
you pursued or attempted fo pursue those remedies available io youwithin the Tribe. If -
you possess such evidence, you should present it to the apprepriate body empowered
o process ‘and decide.an appeal. -;Thus, consistent with Agency policy; we, cannot at

. this time fulfill your request that the Agency ar;t o clear up this matter as ihls tssue isan -

| , lntema! matter {0 be resoived by the Tribe. -
Const:tuhon of December 11 199&

Dunng our meetmg on December 26, 1999 you prowded us with a document enhtled,
"Constitution of Sheep (Ranch (Ranchena) Miwok Indian Tribe of California” -
{Constitution). The Iast page of the Constitution indicates that it was adOpted on

December 11, 1868. :

Please find enclosed the Consﬂhmon W return it to you, without ac‘uon. dgsa fonnal
request for review did not accompany the Constitution. Further, the body that acted on
December 11, 1998, upon the document does not appsar 10 be the proper body to 50 -

act.
. Proposed Meehng of February 15 2000

{
During our. meetmg on December 28, 1999, you requested that another meetmg beheld

. after we responded to your concems. - For thrs reason, and irt fight of the present

@ ' disputé within the Tribe, we scheduled the requested meeting for. Tuesday, February 15,

2000, .at 11:30a.m., to be held in the Corference Room of the Central California
Agency. The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss the issues raised in light of the -
dISCUSSIO['I above a8s welt as steps the Tribe may take to resolve this matter mternaily

" You also requested that only members of the General Council and one nan-attomey
- representative for each side pariicipate in this meetmg We understand that Rebecca
" Cuthill and your brother, Meivin Dlxle, will be atcompanying you to thls meeting. Ms.
. Cuthill was present at our meeting on December 28, 1999, We bneﬁy mat with' Melvin -
Dixie at the Agency on January 13, 2000, and.informed him of the efiorts made to
- formally orgariize the Tribe. At that time, he expressed an interest In being involved in
that process.- Since Melvin Dixie is the only remaining heir, other that you, identified in
the Order of Determmation of Hexrs. he is entitled 1o partrc:pate in the organization of the

Tribe.

A copy of this Jetier s berhg sent ur)der separate cover lefier to Ms. Buﬂey soas 0.

apprise her of your concernis and our position, The separate dover letier will provide - |

Ms. . Burléy with nofice of the February 15, 2000, rneetmg, as descnbed in- this letter,
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Shou!d you have any questions with regard to this matter, ptease contact Mr. Raymond
' Fry, Tnbal Operai:ons Officer, at (916) 566-7124.

Sincerely,

- Superintendent

‘oc: Rebecca Cuthil(without enclosure)

qy
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Silvia Burley, Chairperson
Sheep Ranch Rancheria
1055 Winler Court
Tracy, California 95376
Dear Ms. Burley:
“The purpose of this cormespondence is lo provide you with a summary of the discussion that /

accurred dufing @ meeting on February 15, 2000, held at the Ceniral Califomia Agency
(Agency}, with YYakima Dixie, Vice-Chairperson of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe), his
brother Melvin Dixie, and other interested parties. The summary responds to the cancesns you
expressed in your letler dated Febtuary 15, 2000. We also respond 1o your requests exprassed
in your letier dated Febreary 24, 2000. .

The Meeting of February 15, 2000

At the request of Yakima Dixie, Vice-Chairperson, which he made during 3 meeling at the

Agency with him and other interested parties on December 28, 1589, we scheduled a meeting

{o be held at lhe Agency on February 15, 2000, As explained in our February 4, 2000, letters to

you and la Mr. Dixie, the purpose of that meeling was to dlscuss the issues raised in those

letters, as well as sleps the Tribe may take to resolve this matler intemally. Mr. Dixie also ;;d%/
requesied that anly members of the General Council and one non-attorney representalive for

each side parlicipate in that meeling, We undersiood My, Dixie’s request as 3 desire lo ensure

a free exchange of ideas among those persons cornpn'sfng the body possessing authority o

decide the issues.

By letters dated February 9, 2000, you informed the Agency that the Tribe concluded that the
February 15, 2000, meeting was inconsistent with Tribat managerment of its own affairs. On that
basis, you and Rashel Reznor declined to paricipate in that meeting.

On Febiruary 15, 2000, we informed Yakima Dixie, his brother Metvin Dixie, and other inlerested
parties, of the decision of Rashel Reznor and you nolto pariitipale in the scheduled meeting.
However, Yakima Dixie requested a brief meeting with us to address general questions arising
fram our February 4, 2000, lelter to him. Ve agreed lo meet for that limited purpose, The
foflowing is @ summary of the ensuing discussion.

At the culset of the meating, we reiterated 10 the parties present the Agency's position that the
issues raised in our lelter of February 4, 2000, are internal matters. As such, the parties present
needed to seek redress within the apprapriate Tribal forum empowered 1o process and decide
such issues. We also reiterated our view, notwithstanding a Tribal decision {0 the contrary, lhat
the appropriate Tabal forum is ihe Genesal Council. Al present, we view, again notwithstanding

C%@o%/oe/ fiza)
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a Tribal decision to the contrary, the General Council as comprised of Yakima Dixie, Rashel
Reznror, and you, The rights of Melvin Dixie, Rocky MciKay, and olher interested parties, to
paricipate in the governance of the ‘Tribe are lo be determined by the appropriate Tribal forum,
and are further discussed below.

Your Membership Stalus

The discussion then tumed 1o the asserion by Yakima Dixie that his act of August 5, 1998, to
accept Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, Tristian Wallace, and you, as enrolled members of the
Tribe was a imited enroliment. He explained that he intended only to grant to the four of you
such membership fights necessary to qualify the four of you for services offered by lhe Bureau
of Indian Affgirs to members of federally recognized tribes, ‘Yakima Dixie stated that his infent
was consistent with the cantext in which you originally approached him, seeking a means of
obtafning additional assistance after such assistance previously provided to you by the Jackson
Rancheria was discontinued, As evidence of his position, Yakima Dixie produced videotspe of
a meeting held at Yakima Dixie's residence on or about Ociober 18, 1998, at whichi
tepresentatives from the Agency and the California Indian Legal Services were present, We
viswed a portion of the videotape documenting a discussion of your potential eligibility as a
member of the Tribe lo receive schotarship, housing, and other assistance. Afterward, we
expressed our view that il was unlikely that the Tribe would tind such a limitation on your
enrollment expressed in the videotape. Further, we pointed out ihe fact, as stated in our letler
of February 4, 2000, that the documents signed by Yakima Dixie to effect your enroliment
expressed no such limitation. Moreover, we explained that Yakima Dixle's subsequent actions
tended to establish the conirary view that vou possess full rights of membership, since Mr. Dixie
only abjecled to your participation in the deliberations of the decision-making body of the Trbe
many months alter the transition in leadership.

Alfegations of Fraud or Misconduct

The discussion then tumed lo the allegations of iraud or misconduct relative o the change in
Tribal leadership during April 2nd May 1999, Yakima Dixie asked what action we were going 1o
take. We explained that there was no astion for the Agency to 1ake, consistent with our posilion
as expressed in our lelter of February 4, 2000, that the allegations are issues properly decided
within the appropriate Tribal forum. Thus, we explained, in light of federal Iaw and policy, there
was 110 basis for Agency involvement, since this situation Is a dispute of an intemal nature,

Your Decision Not to Pariicipate in the Meeting

vakima Dixie then asked why you and Rashet Rezror did not altend lhe meeling, and whelher
we were going to do something about your lack of participation, We explained that attendance
at the meeting was not mandatary. Qur reasons for fulfilling Mr, Dixie's request were threefold,
First, we believed fuffiling the request was appropriate to provide a safe neutral iocation for the
meecting. Second. by hosting 2 meeting at the Agency. we weuld assure our availability to
answer general questions cegarding steps the Tribe may take 1o rasolve this matter infernally.
Third, we believed the mesting would assure a free exchange of (deas among the persons
comprising the body possessing authorily to decide the issues. However, we believed that
requiring the mandatory participation of the paries would likely be viewed as an infrusion into an
internal matter of the Tribe,
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Wa also discussed your lelter to Yakima Dixe, dated February 8, 2000, wherein you informed
Mr. Dixie of the Tribe's decision to extend to him a thirly-day peried within which to raise his
cancems and present his jssues to the Tribe, We reiteraled lo Mr. Dixie of our position that,
where issues are intemal in nature, (heir resolution must be sought within the appropriate Tribal
forum. In light of your [etter and consistent with our position, we suggested that Mr. Dixie send
to the Tribe & jetter stating his claims and requesting a bearing. Moreover, we recommended
Ms. Dixie provide the Tribe with riotice of that address where he expected delivery of notices of
Tribal meetings and other corespondence to occur, We also suggested thal iMr. Dixie inform
{he Tribe of any circumstances which may fimit his ability te paricipate in Trbal affalrs, such as
a lack of access to transporialion or an inabilily to pay out-of-pocket costs of transportation. If
Mr. Dixie believes such circumstances exist, he should request financial assistance from the
Tribe or suggest altemalives he believes may reduce or eliminate poteniial barriers 10 his
participation in Tribal affairs, We also suggested ihat Mr. Dixie provide the Agancy vith &
courtasy copy of such a notice. To date, no such courtesy copy has been received althe
Agency.

Ability of Rocky McKay to Participate

During the meeting, Rocky McKay presanted us with an originai affidavit from his mother,
Wanda Lewis, wherein she siates that Yakima Dixie is the true father of Mr. McKay. We briefly
reviewed the document. We then expressed our view that Mr. McKay may be entifled to
partiicipate in the organization of the Trite, if he can establish that he is a lineal descendant of
Yakima Dixie, one of the heits now living listed in the Order of Determinalion of Heirs issued on
November 1, 1971, as reaffirmed by subsequent Order issued on Aprif 14, 1893, Further, we
informed Mr. McKay that the subject of what evidence is acceplable for establishing his lineal
descendancy is an internal matier to be determined by fhe Tribe, Thus, Mr. McKay's ability to
pariicipate in tha organization of the Tribe also depends upon whether he can gravide that type
of evidence detarminad by the Tribe lo be acceptable for purposes of establishing fineal
descendancy.

1
We then recommended that Rocky McKay provide to the Tribe a wrilten request to be envolled
as g member of the Tribe, We also recommended that Mr, McKay enclose with s request any
documents and ather evidence he believed to be accepteble for establishing his lineal
descendancy.

By way of a letter dated February 25, 2000, we informed Rocky McKay that the Tribe would
iikely view ihe affidavit from Wanda Lewis as insufficient evidence of Yakima Dixie's patemity.
in general, where the Bureau of Indian Affairs is perfarming enroliment functions. 2 valid
affidavit from the purporied father is acceptable evidence of paternity. Hewever, as stated
previously, the subject of whal evidence is accepteble for establishing paternity is an inlernal
matler to be determined by the Trbe. Thus, wa recommended that Mr, McKay obtain from
vakima Dixie a notanzed atfidavis assening Mis paternity. We also recommended that Mr,
McKay seek an amendment to his birth certificate. sirce Yakima Dixie is not named therein as
the father, We further recommended that r, McKay requesl financial and technical assistance
from {he Tribe in cbiaining an affidavil or any other evidence the Tribe may determine to be
necessary lo establish his eligibility for enroliment and membership in the Tribe,
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In our February 25, 2000, tetler to Rocky McKay, we expressed the view that the letter
accompanying his comespondence dated November 22, 1999, from Yakima Dixie declaring his
adoption of Mr. McKay as a member of the Tribe would likely ba viewed by the Tribe as
inefiective. Copies of these documents were faved by the Agency to you on December 7, 1899,
We alsc informed Mr. McKay that in general, only the Tribe, acting at a duly noticed, cafled, and
convened meeting 2l which a quarum is prasent, s tha proper body 1o consider and effect his
enroliment in the Tribe.

Ability of Melvin Dixie to Participate

Also during the February 15, 2000, meeiing, we discussed the right of Melvin Dixie to participate
in the organization of the Tribe. We advised Melvin Dixie that he s entitled 1o participate in the
organization of the Tribe because heis one of the heirs now living listed in the Order of
Determination of Heirs issued on November 1, 1971, as reaffirmed by subsequent Order issued
on April 14, 1983, We then recommended Mr. Dixie provice lo the Tribe written notice of his
presert address and telephone nurmber, as the present leadership and administration of the
Tribe must have such information in order to deliver proper and fimely notice of Tribal meetings.
We further advised Mr. Dixie to inform the Tribe of any circumstances which may limit his ability
10 participate in Tribal affairs, such as a lack of access 10 rransporiation or an inability o pay
aut-of-pocket cosfs of Lransportation, If Mr. Dixie believes such circumstances exist, he’should
raquest financial assistance from the Trioe or suggest alternatives he believes may reduce or
eliminate polential barriers te his paricipation in Tribat affairs.

In connection with Melvin Dixie’s right 1o participate in the organization of the Tribe, we
expressed the view that he would likely be requested to provide to the Tribe proof of his identity.
We explained thal the subject of what evidence is accepiable for establishing idenlity is an
inlernal matter to be determined by the Tribe. Therefore, we suggasted ihat Mr. Dixie provide
written notice 1o the Tribe of his assertion of enlitlement 10 paricipate in the arganization of the
Tribe, and to enciose documents and other evidence he believed io be acceptable for
establishing his identity. ,
In a subsequent lelter dated February 25, 2009, we further recommended that Metvin Dixie
request financial and technical assistance from the Tribe 1n oblaining any other evidence the
Tribe might determing to be necessary.

I the aforementioned lelter, we also discussed our views related to an afiidavit by Metvin Dixie.
The atfidavit was received at lhe Agency on February 1, 2000, In the affidavit, among other
asserlions, Melvin Dixie siated that he is \he father of 3 son. in our letler, we recommended that
Melvin Dixie provide to the Tribe a wrillen request that his son be enrolled as 2 member of the
Tnbe, We suggested Mr. Dixie enclose with his request 2 photocopy of the turth certificate or
provice other evicence establishing (hai he is the father of his son. We further suggested hat
Mr. Dixie obtain, of not glrgady tn his possession, a cenified copy of the binh cedificate naming
Mr Dixie as the lather of his son. Moreover, we racommendead that Melvin Dixie, should he not
he named in the birth cedificate, complete an affidavit 2s5ening his palernity of his sen, and
have the affidavit notarized, We alse suggestad that Mehno Dixia seek an amendment to the
pinth certificate if he is nol named as the father ia the birth cerlificate, We ihen racommended
that Melvin Dixie request assistance from the Tribe in oblaining 2 certified hirth certificate, an
afficavit, or any olher evigence the Tribe mught delermine to be necessary 10 establish his son's
eligibifity ior enroliment and memberstip in the Tribe.
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Your Letter of February 15, 2000

As for your concem expressed in your letter of February 15, 2000, that the meeting of the same
day with Yakima and Melvin Dixie and other interested parties was improper, we assure you
that the meeting was completely proper, First and foremost, we agreed io meet, at the request
of an officer of the Tribe's gaveming body, for the limited purpose of addressing general
questions arising from our [etter of February 4, 2000, Moreaver, we reiterated to the parties
preseni our position 2s expressed in our lelter of February 4, 2000, thal these issues are
inlermal matters to be considered and acted upon by the appropriate Tribal fonim. Thus, we
believe thal our actions were consislenl with our respensibility to provide technical assistance,
and with established policies of non-interference, deference to Tribal decision-making, and
respect for Tribal self-determination and sovereignty.

Your Letter of February 24, 2000

In your letter of February 24, 2000, you requested copies of the “sworn affidavits" submitied to
the Agency by Yakima Dixie "alleging fraud on the part of the Tribal Ceuncil and that Rocky
McKay is his son." Unfortunatety, we cannot fulfill your request, as no such documents by Mr.
Dixie are maintained within the recerds of the Agency.

As to your staternent thel the Agency "refused" to provide the Tribe with information as fo the
address and location of Melvin Dixie, we have na recard of a Tribal request for such information,
Further, such information is conlained in a system of records covered by the Privacy AcL(5 Usc
§ 552a). As such, we are unable to release this informalion {0 you without the express consent
of Mealvin Dixie. As staled above, we also suggested in our letter of February 25, 2000, that Mr.
Dixie provide Lhis information to the Tribe.

your Letter Postmarked February 2. 2000

As for your undated letter, postmarked February 2, 2000, requesting that we forward a letter to
Yakima Dixie regarding the Regular Tribal Meeting scheduled for February 7, 2000, we were
unable 1¢ fulfil your recuest. The ielter was received 8t the Agency on Thursday aflernoon,
February 3, 2000. Even if the Agency, within a twenly-four hour period, had processed and
lorwarded the letler via overnight mail, the meeting day of Monday, February 7, 2000, would
likely be the earliest Yakima Dixie would have received the letier. Thus, we return ta you the
enclosed sealed envelope addressed to Yakima Dixie,

Sonclusion

The issues surcounding the prasent leadership and membership of the Tribe are intemal matters
10 be resolved within the appropriate Tribal forum. As a matter of policy, the Agency will not
interfera in the internal maters of the Tribe. However, if in ime a dispule regarding the
composition of the govarning body of the Tribe continues without resciution, the governmient-1o-
government relationship between the Tribe and the United States may be compromised. i
such situations, the Agency will 2dvise the Tribe {o resalve the dispute intesnally within a
reasonable period of lime. The Agency will also inform the Tribe that its failure to do so may
resull in sanclions against the Tribe, up 1o and including the suspension of the govemment-io-
government,
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The Tribe, in the letier dated February 9, 2000, granted a thirty-day period of time {o Yakima
Dixie within which 10 raise his concems and present his issues to the Trite. This fact
deenonsirates that the Tribe is altempting to resolve this internal matier. We respectiully
request thal the Tribe inform us in writing of the action taken by the appropriate Triba forum to
resolve the dispute. We funther request the Tribe's written response clearly explain whet action
was laken to resolve the dispute, the legal authority in Tribal [aw for the action, and the rationaie
for the action,

As always, Agency siaff is available 1o the extent resources permit o provide the Tribe with
technical assistance, upon your wrilten request,

shculd you have any questions with regard 1o this matier, please contact Mr. Raymend Fry,
Tribal Operations Officer, at (916} 5656-7124,

Sincerely,
© Sgd. Dale Risling, St

Dale Risling, Sr.
Superintendent

Enclosure

oc 3703-P3 Sheep Ranch Rancheria FY 0Q
Tribal Operations Chron
Superintendent Chran
Blind Copy (Biian)

BGaolding, Sr.:03/06/2000 '
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United States Department 6f the Interior

BUREAU OF BWDIANAZEFA}RS
Canitral Californis Ag;
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 5500 _ DeEERY TERL TG

/ Sacramenty, CA, 95514

MAR 2 8 7008

CﬁtﬁﬁmﬂMallNQ ?003 1680 00DZ 3896 9127
thuanerptRe@wsted

Ms. Sylvia Burley, Chairperson
Cahfmma Vaﬂcy Miwek Tribe
106601 Escondido PL ]
Stockion, California 95121

Dear Ms. Burley: ‘

This ]ettz:r, achmwledgaa onr February 1 1, 2004, receipt of a document represented to be
fiae: teibal constitution for the California Vallcy Miwok Tribe. It is our understandiog that
the Thibe Has shiared liis tribal constitution with the Burean of Indian Affais (BIA) in an
aﬁm:;ytto demnonstrats that it isan orgamd tribe. Regretfully, we must dispares that
such & demonsiration is made. )

Antgigh the Tribe has pot: Tequested any-assistmcee or comments from this office in
response to yamdbﬁurm:nt, we provide the :&:lluvnng observations for your
considerafion: As you Xnow, the BIA's Central California Ageticy (CCA)Yhasa
responsibility 1o devzlop and mainfain a govermment-10-government relationship with
cach-of the 34 federally. recognized tiibes situated within CCA’s jurisdiction. This
re.lahaasth, inchides: ‘among other ‘things, t'heres;mna'blhty of working with the person
orpeisons fom each tribe who either ae tightfully clected fo a positiors of authority
within the fribe or whe otherwise occupy a positior of anthority within an tnorganized
“fribe. Tmi:atend tthIAhzsmcogmzed}-ou,asapmsonofamhonnrw:ﬂnnﬂm .
California Valiey Miviok: Tribe, Howevet, the BIAdees not yet view your tribe ts be an
“organtzed” Indian Tribe and thswm:sbomemﬁnotonlyby the document that you
heive presents asﬂ:ambc sconstmmonbxnadﬁmanalbr by our relations over the last
several decadw with members of the e} comuminity in and atound Shigep Ranch
Ranchma.( Letme emphasize that bemgmmgamzcd vis-4-vis unorganized fibe
ozdmatﬂy wﬂi niot impéct either your fribe’sday-to-day operations but could fmpact your
ihe*s contiined eligibility for certain grants and seyvices from the United Sertes).

Where a tribe that has notpmwousiyao;ganmd seeka to do so, BIA alsohasa

:espomibiﬁty 1o determine that the orgamzaucnai efforts reflect the involyement of the
w}mIe tribal commmity. Wi have notseen evidence that such general involvement was

I
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;.en*pied or has occurred with e purponted organization of your fibe. For example, we
havehot been made aware of any efforisto reach out to the Indian communities in and
aroz_mi the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, or to persons who have majntained any culinral
cs:mac* with Sheep Ranch. To our knowiedge, the only persons of Indian descent
snvolved § in the tribe’s organization efforts, wers you and your two danghters, Wezre
uneware of any efforts to involye Yakima Dixie or Mr. Dixie® s brother Melvin Dixie or
any offspripg of Merle Buﬂcr, Tillie Jeff ox L:ﬁlly Ieff; ali persons | who. Ehy known to
ham:tsemded at Shequanch Rancheiia at various times in the past 75 years and 3 persons
who have inherited an Interest in the Ranchesia, We are also not aware of any efforts to
involie Indizas( such as Lena Shelion) and their descendents who once lived adjacent to
Sheep, Ranch Rancherd or to investigate the: possibility of inw olvmg a nrnghbormg EIOVD.
We are awate that the Indians of Sheep Ranch Rancheria were in fact, part of a larger
groupiof Tndians residing less then 20 miles away at West Point. Indeed, at your February
23, 2504 deposition, you yourself testified you svere at one time of the West Point Indian
Commumty;w., waderstand as well, that you had siblings Ies:dmg there for many vears:
The BIAzemmns avaxlablc, upon your request, o assist vou in identifying the members
of thel local Indian commumity, to assist in disseminating both individual and pubic
nu‘aces, facilitating meetings, and otherwise previding logistical subgort.

Itis eniy after the grester fribal commupity is m_uaﬂy identified that governing
documanis should be draﬁcd and the Tribe’s base and mmnbersmp criteria identified.

The parucxpahon of the greater fibal conmmity is cssential to this effort. We are very
concemed abont fhe dcszlgnated “base roll™ for the thbe as :dentiﬁed in the submitted
m‘bai co-xstlmt,gm, this “base roll” contains only the names of five living members a]lbut
one whom weze born between 1960 and 1996, and therefore would imply that there was
neyexany tibal comminnity in and around Sheep Ranch Rancheria until yot met with
Yg_luma Dmc asking for his assistance fo admii you as a member, Tbe. base roll, thus,
suﬂ‘ﬂes.s that this tibe did not exist nuiil the 1950°s,with the exception of Yakima Dixie.
However, BIA’s records indicate with the exception not mmstandmg, otherwise.

Base mambarshm zolls are used fo establish a #ribe’s cohesiveness and commugity =t a
pomt’m‘-nm\, in hlstoxy They would nmma.l} contein the names of individuals listed on
h:{szoncai docuraents which confirm: Native American tribal relationships in a syeczﬁc
ﬂeogra;phxca_ tegion. Since tribes and bands themsedyes did not ustially possess such
hzs:onsal docrm'lcnts therefore, tn'bei base rolls heve r.;cluded DErsOns listed on old
cegsus rolls, Indian Agency olls, voters rolls, eze. Qur experiencs with your sister
Miwdk tribes {e.g., Shingle Springs Raucheria, Teolimne Rancheria, Jone Bang,
ma; teads ns to believe that Miwok iradition fvors base rolls identifying persotis
found in Miwok tribes stretching from Amador Cmm*y in the North to Calavaras and
ariposa Counties in the South. The Base and Enrollment eriteria for these tribes vary;
for mple, Amador County tifbes use the 1915 Miwok Indian Censvs of Amaéo;
Countv, Bl Dérado County tribes utilize the 1916 Indian Cénsus Roll, tribe(s) in
Tmlumne County utilize a 1934 IRA voters® Hist. The base roll typically constitiges the
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comenstone of tribal mmembership and based npon o cxpmence has been the basic
slariing port and formdation for each of the Miwok ribes in our Jurlsdlctmn, e, the
Tons Band of Miwok Indians, Shingle Smnzs ‘Rencheria and Tnolimne Ranchera.

Wa must contirue to emphesis the importance of the varticipation of a greater tribal
Community in determnining membershlg eritesia. We relterate our continned availability
and villingness o assist you inthis process and that via PL 93-638 coniracts intended 1o
facilitate the argamzatton or reprganization of the fribal communily, we have already
extended assistance. We urge you to confinze the work that you have begin towards
formal orgenization of the California Valley Miwok Tribe.

Twe can assist your efforts in any way , plezse confact Raymond Fry, Manager, Tribal
Semcx:s 2t (916) 930-3794, .

Shmﬂ& ~you wish to appeal any pm‘hon of this letier, you are advised tbat you may do 20
by complying with the following: Y

“This decisionmay be anpcaleﬁ 10 the Regional Director, Pacific Regional Office, Bureau
of Indian -’%.ﬁaxrs, 2800 Cottage Way, Sacremmento, California 95825, In accordance with
the rchﬂahons in 25 CFR Part2 (copy cncio*rad) Your notice of appe.a‘i snust be filed in
this-office within 30 days of the date you reteive this decision. The date of filing or
aotice-is the date it is post marked or the date St is mrsonaily delivered to this office.
Your fiotice of appeal must jnchide your nerme, address and tel ephotis mumber. Tt should
ciearly identify the decision ro-be appealed. If possible attach a copy.of the decision. The
notice:of and the envelope which it is meiled, shonld be clearly labeled *NOTICE OF
APPEAL The notice of appeal must list the pames and addresses of the interested

25 known 10 you and certify ’&m yorhave sem them copies of the'notce.

Vou snust also send a copy of your notice to the Regional Director, at the address gven
above. 5,

¥ you are not represented by an atiorney, you may reguest assistance ﬁ'nm this office in
the prepazaizon of your appeal,

yig-d censgrd  BIy-i 5014508, AHEOLLY S RIOEVMTERBEL-000521-150
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Ko ?.z.u"'tg Appeal is diled, this decision will become final o the Department of the
,1:33::?302: 2 the expiration of the appeal period. ¥o exiension of Hime may be grnted for

filing! ia notice of appeal.

i Sincerely, ..
AP .

: Dale Risling, Sr.
: Superiptendent
; — "
CC: Pacific Regional Director

-Debore Luther, Assistent S Avomey

»fyra Spickes, Deputy Sclichior

Fakiona Dixie-Tribal Mentbar
: 1
:

~.

T
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f the Interiof

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY .
Washington, D.C: 20240

Ea 110

| Me. Yalima K, Dixie _ .
' ?1;; Ranch Rancheria of MiWok Indians of Califormia

11178 Sheep Ranch Rd.

P.O.Box 4l o
Sheep Ranch, California 95250

" Dear Mr. Dixie:

fam w:iring in rcsfonsc to your appéal Sied with the office of the Assistant Secretary —

Indian Affairs-on October 30, 2003. In deciding this appeal, ] am exercising authority delegated
ndian AffairsoF oL oY :

i i 3 DM82. In
o me from the Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs pursuant to 209 DM 8.3 and 110

- * 2 e ¥ i - B 1 T
that appeal, you challenged the Bureau of Indian Affairs” (“BLA”) recogmtion of Sylvia Burley as
i 3

“mollify” issi d the admission of her daughter and
] 3 and sought to “pullify” her admission, an : her d
tgr;:na;c?ig;ra? imto your Tribe. Althoygh your appeal raise.s many difficult IS.SI.EES, 1 must
dismiss it on 1:nr0‘3'3d‘~1ral groundf.;. :

. , stion of Ms. Burley as tribal Chairman has been rend_ere,d

rour a""faﬁifﬁif i? March glt?;;% a copy of which is enclosed, zejecting the Tribe’s
moat by the Blémﬁon Tn that letter, the BIA made clear that the Federal go'{erumcnt d:d not
propose d igfns%uﬂey.as the tribal Chairman. Rather, the BIA wo‘uld' recognize her as “a person
FeO g within California Valley Miwok Tribe.” Ustil such time =8 the Tirbe hoe organized,
oL a

the Federal governent can recognize no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman. I

- encourage you, either in conjunction with Ms. Burley, other tribal members, or potential tribal
2=} ¥ .

i i ibe along the lines outlined in the Maxch 26,
ntinue your efforts to organize ttxe Tr )
l)m[;:ézb?:;;oszc;hm the Tribe can become organized and enjoy the full benefits of Federal

. Jition. The first step in organizing the Txibe is identifying putative tribal members. If you
recognition. -

need guidance oF assistance, Ray Fry, (916} 9? 0-3794, if the. Central California Agency of the
.BIA can advise you how to go about doing this. ~

3t as procedurally defective because it raised issues
h.“ af gjet;?:;z:e‘g :tpff)ﬁ: ie?zlg iﬁfi;:’ ad:iinistrativc appeal proce:ss. In May 200‘? ﬁou
hat hadéaoh BIA to Tequest assistance in preparnng an appga.‘i of the Blgk s recognition of Ms.
v 'Za! Chairman: Youspecifically stated that you were not fling a formal Notice of
B 2003 ydu filed an “Appeal of inaction of official,” pursuant 1o 25 CFR. §2.8,
APPC?IL .g:.:{ir:;-(:a.lif;nﬁ a Agency Superintendent cha]l'eng’iﬂg“ﬂle BIA's i.'allur.e 1o fgspﬂ?i}fia:g
;21}: r;:uest for assistance. In Angust 2003, you filed another Appeal of inaction of 0 .\c;
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with the Acting Regional Director challenging the failure of the Superintendent 1 respond t
our appeal of the BIA’s inaction- You appeal with my office, however, ys 2ot &b 9P il
" inaction of official” Rather, your “Notice of Appeal” challenged thc'BIA,S recogrition of 15
Burley as tribal Chairman and sought to xullify the Tribe’s adoption of her and her family "~
B e Those issues viere ot raised below, They are not, therefore, properly before me..

your appeal appears 0 be untimely. In 1999, you first challenged the BlA's
recognition of s. Burley as Chairman of the Tribe. In February 2000, the BIA informed you
(at it defers to tribal zesolution of such issues. On July 18,2001, you filed 2 Tawsuit against Ms.

Burley in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California challenging hex
purported Jeadership of the Tribe. On January 24, 2002, the district court dismissed your lawsuit,
without prejudice and with leave to-amend, because you had not exhausted your administiative
' ing the BIA’s February 2000 decision. After the court’s Janvary 24, 2002,

remedies by appeal
order, you should have pursued your adsinistrative remedies with the BIA. Instead, you waited

almost a year and a half, until June 2003, before raising your claim with the Burean. Asa result
of your delay in pursuing your administrative appeal after the court’s Jaziary 24, 2002, order,

your appeal ‘wefore me is time barred.

Iﬂ‘ addjtipna

fn light of the BlA’s letter of March 26, 2004, that the Tribe is not an organized tribe,
nowever, the B1A does not recognize any tribal govemment, and therefore, canpnot defer to any’
tribal dispute: resolution process at this Gme. 1understand thet a Mx. Troy M. Woodward has
held himself out as & Administrative Hearing Officer for the Tribe and purported to conduct 2

hearing to resofve your complaint against Ms. Burley. Pleasebe advised that the BIA does not
recognize M. Woodward as a tribal official or his hearing process a5 a legitimate tribal forum.

Should other issues arise with respect to {ribal leadership or membership in the futore; therefore,
your appeal would properly lie exclusively with the BIA. . .

Sincerely,

/’ﬂo@/

- Michael D. Olsen
Principal Deputy
Acting Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs

Enclosure

cc:  Sylvia Butley
Troy M. Woodward, Esq.
Thomas W. Wolfrum, Esq.
Chadd Everone,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, formerly SHEEP RANCH OF
ME-WUK INDIANS OF CALIFORNIA

Plaintiff,

VS, No. 1:05CV 00739

Judge James Roberison
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

GALE A.NORTON, Secretary of the
Interior,

and

MICHAEL D. OLSEN, Acting Assistant
Secretary —Indian Affairs

e e e e M e N N N M Mt M e N N N e

Defendants.

DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS
Defendants hereby move to dismiss this suit for lack of subject matter jurisdiction
pursuant to FRCP 12 (b)(1), or, in the alternative, for failure to state a claim upon which relief
may be granted pursuant to FRCP 12(b)(6).
A Memorandum in Support of this motion is attached.

Dated this 5" day of August, 2005.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, formerly SHEEP RANCH OF
ME-WUK INDIANS OF CALIFORNIA

Plaintiff,
vs.
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
GALE A, NORTON, Secretary of the
Interior,

and

MICHAEL D. OLSEN, Acting Assistant
Secretary — Indian Affairs

Defendants.

No. 1:05CV (0739
Judge James Robertson

e e e N S St St T M M N Mt e N N Nt et

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS

KELLY A. JOHNSON
Acting Assistant Attorney General

JAMES M. UPTON

Trial Attorney

General Litigation Section

Environmental & Natural Resources Division
U.S. Department of Justice

P.0. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044

Telephone: (202) 305-0482
Fax: (202) 305-0506

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, formerly SHEEP RANCH OF
ME-WUK INDIANS OF CALIFORNIA

Plaintiff,

VS, Ne. 1:05CV00739

Judge James Robertson
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
GALE A. NORTON, Secretary of the

Interior,
and

MICHAEL D. OLSEN, Acting Assistant
Secretary — Indian Affairs”

o e e e’ e e St e N M e N N N N N N

Defendants,

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS

INTRODUCTION
Plaintiff California Valley Miwok Tribe? challenges the government’s “decision”
(allegedly contained in the February 11, 2005 letter from Michael Olsen, Acting Principal Deputy

Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs to Mr. Yakima Dixie, ¥) not to recognize: (1) the Tribe’s

Y This is not Mr. QOlsen’s correct title.

¥ At the present time, the California Valley Miwok Tribe (hereafter, “Tribe”) lacks “a
governing body duly recognized by the Secretary of the Interior” as required by 28 U.S.C. §
1362, As explained infra while the Tribe seeks to appeal the Secretary’s decision that the Tribe
does not have a recognized governing body, that decision became final over a year ago.

¥ See Paragraph No. 6 of Prayer for Relief and Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’
Motion to Transfer Venue and Suspend Obligation to Answer in District of Columbia, filed on

1
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constitution adopted by the Tribe in September, 2001 as a legitimate governing document, Comp.
at 99 21, 30, 32, 42, 43, and 45; (2) Ms. Sylvia Burley as the Tribal Chairperson, id. at {{ 14, 15,
19,22, 23,27, 28,29, 36, 37, 40, 41, and 45; and (3) the tribal forum created by Tribal Council
Resolution No. R-1-02-04-2004, id. at Y 38, 45, and 46. In short, Plaintiff seeks to have this
Court settle an internal tribal dispute by declaring that Plaintiff’s constitution, leader and tribal
forum are legitimate, even though they are not supported by the will of the tribal membership - -
that is, not supported by a majority if the “whole tribal community.” See Exhibit No. 3 attached
to the Complaint (Letter of March 26, 2004 from the Superintendent of the BIA’s Central
California Agency to Sylvia Burley?).

Plaintiff has asserted that the February 11, 2005 Olsen letter to Mr. Yakima Dixie is the

July 11, 2005. Plaintiff’s Opposition states that this action was filed “ . . . seeking declaratory
relief from the February 11, 2005 letter of Michael D. Olsen in view of 25 U.S.C. [sec] 476(h).”
Pl. Opp. at 2). Plaintiff adds that the Olsen letter is”[t]he only event giving rise to the instant case
. ..” [Emphasis supplied] (Pl. Opp. at 3). (Excerpt of P1. Opp attached as Attachment A).

¥ Plaintiff’s Complaint asks this Court to declare the following: 1) that the Plaintiff retains
“inherent sovereign power to adopt governing documents under procedures other than those
specified in 25 U.8.C. § 476 (a-g);” 2) that the constitution adopted by the Tribe in 2001 is a
valid governing document for the Tribe; 3) that Tribal Council Resolution R-2-3-16-2000
adopted by the Tribe on March 16, 2000 which resolved that Yakima Dixie waived his right to
contest his resignation is a valid governing document; 4) that Tribal Council Resolution R-1-02-
04-2004 adopted by the Tribe on February, 2004 to provide a tribal forum for Yakima Dixie’s
appeal is a valid governing document; 5) that the Tribe “has lawfully organized pursuant to 25
U.S.C. § 476;” and 6) that the February 11, 2005 letter from Defendant Michael D. Olsen in his
capacity as Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs to Yakima Dixie is invalid. Plaintiff has
brought two previous cases alleging similar facts. The first was dismissed for lack of jurisdiction
and is currently pending before the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. C.A. No. 04-16676.
The second was voluntarily dismissed before this court. CIV. 1:04CV17%94 RWR.

¥ In this letter, BIA concluded that the Plaintiff tribe was not “organized” and therefore,
BIA could neither recognize the Tribe’s constitution a a valid document nor recognize Sylvia
Burley as the Tribal Chairperson. The letter specifically informed Ms. Burley that she could file
an administrative appeal from this decision under 25 C.F.R. Part 2 (2004).

2
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“only event giving rise to the instant case...” {P1. Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Transfer
Venue and Suspend Obligation to Answer in the District of Columbia, filed July 11, 2003 at 3).
This assertion is consistent with Paragraph 6 of the Prayer for Relief requesting that the Olsen
letter be declared “invalid,” but not requesting that the March 26, 2004 letter be declared invalid.

Mr. Olsen, however, did not render the particular decisions plaintiff attempts to challenge
in this action.#¥ Mere notably, the Olsen letter refers to the March 26, 2004 letter as “BIA’s
decision” and discusses the contents of the March 26 letter.

All three of Plaintiff’s claims arise from the BIA’s March 26, 2004 decision letter. If
there is only one event giving rise to this lawsuit, then it is the issuance of this decision letter
from which all claims flow. This conclusion is based upon the March 26, 2004 decision that the
finding that the Plaintiff tribe is not “organized”. Based upon this finding, the BIA refused to
recognize the tribal constitution and to recognize Ms. Burley as Tribal Chairperson. The BIA’s
refusal to recognize the tribal forum created by Tribal Resclution R-1-02-04-2004 also
necessarily flows from its March 26, 2004 decision that the Tribe is not “organized” and,
therefore, can adopt no governing documents until it becomes “organized.” It also flows from

Defendants alleged failure to recognize the tribal constitution because, as Plaintiff alleges in its

¢ Mr. Olsen rendered other decisions in his letter: He determined that: (1) an appeal

submitted by Yakima Dixie was moot; (2) that Mr. Dixie raised new issues that had not been
previously raised at a lower level of his administrative appeal; and (3) that Mr. Dixie’s appeal
was untimely. None of these decisions is at issue this lawsuit.

¥ As Mr. Olsen repeatedly observes in his letter of February 11%, the decisions Plaintiff
seeks to challenge in this litigation were made in March 2004 and conveyed at that time directly
to Silvia Burley. Despite providing appeal rights, no administrative challenge has ever been
made to these decisions. Thus, they became final several months prior to Mr. Olsen’s February
117 lefter.
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“First Claim for Relief” (] 49(a) and (b) of Complaint), the 2004 tribal resolution creating the
tribal forum and the tribal constitution are both tribal governing documents. Accordingly, it
follows that the refusal to recognize the tribal constitution implicitly encompasses any and all
tribal governing documents.

Plaintiff predicates its claims on the Administrative Procedure Act (“APA™), 5US.C. §
701, et seq., and the Indian Reorganization Act (“IRA™), 25 U.8.C. § 476 (h), (the Native
American Technical Corrections Act), Defendants hereby move to dismiss this action for lack of
subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to FRCP 12(b)(1) or, alternatively, for failure to state a claim
upon which relief may be granted pursuant to FRCP 12(b)(6). Subject matter jurisdiction is
absent because the resolution of internal tribal disputes are not within the court’s limited
jurisdiction.

Alternatively, Plaintiff fails to state a claim under the APA because the decisions which
are challenged in this suit were made in March, 2004, and have never been administratively
appealed, as authorized by Section 2.6(a) of 25 C.F.R. Part 2 (See ATTACHMENTS D and E).
As to its claims under the IRA, Plaintiff cannot show that Defendants’ March 26, 2004, decision
violated the IRA. Plaintiff’s argument relating to the IRA is also without merit. Section 103 of
the Native American Technical Corrections Act of 2004 which added subsection (h) to Section
16 of the IRA. (25 U.S.C. § 476 (h)), simply confirmed the right of Indian tribes to adopt their
own governing documents outside the provisions of that IRA. The added subsection did not do
away with the substantive and procedural requirements of IRA and the Secretary’s regulations
when a tribe sought to reorganize pursuant to it and in return to obtain the Secretary’s approval of

its governing document pursuant to the act.
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Sylvia Burley (bomn in 1960) and her two daughters have changed the name of the Sheep
Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians, and seek legitimacy as a tribe consisting only of them and
their descendants. In its prior suit against the government in the Eastern District of California

(California Valley Miwok Tribe v. United Statse, et al., No. CIV. 5-02-0912 FCD GGH), the

Tribe alleged in the Complaint: “Plaintiff claims it is an Indian tribe with a potential membership
of 250 people . . .~ (Copy of Complaint appended as ATTACHMENT B). These 250 people, in
our opinion, constitute the “whole” (or a least) “greater” tribal community discussed in the
March 26™ letter, which is not reflected in the present membership of the Tribe.
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This case should be dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction because it involves,
in essence, an internal tribal dispute. In the alternative, it should be dismissed for failure to state
a claim upon which relief may be granted under the Administrative Procedure Act because
Plaintiff failed to exhaust its administrative remedies and because the supposed violation of the
Indian Reorganization Act is not supported by the facts alleged.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

In 1998, the BIA Central California Agency recognized the right of certain individuals to
“ ‘participate in the initial organization of the Tribe.”® (§ No. 11 of General Allegations of the
Complaint). Following the Tribe’s general election in May of 1999, the BIA’s Central California
Agency recognized Sylvia Burley as Tribal Chairperson in June, 1999. (Paragraph Nos, 14 and

15 of General Allegations of Complaint).

¥ Organizing the tribe entails identifying the greater tribal membership, drafting governing
documents, and seeing that those documents are adopted by the membership.

S
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In October, 1999, the Tribal Council adopted a resolution on “Interim Operations
Authorities and Rights.” (f No. 25 of the General Allegations). In July of 2000 and 2001, the
BIA’s Central California Agency confirmed its recognition of Sylvia Burley as Tribal
Chairperson. (] Nos. 27 and 28 of General Allegations).

In a June 7, 2001 letter, Ms. Burley withdrew the Tribe’s initial request for the review of
the Tribal constitution and the scheduling of a Secretarial Election to approve this constitution. (§
No. 30 of the General Allegations).

In an October 31, 2001, letter to Sylvia Burley, the Superintendent of the BIA’s Central
California Agency stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

The Agency will continue to recognize the Tribe ag an wnoreanized Tribe and its

selected officials as an Interim Tribal Council until the Tribe takes steps to

complete the Secretarial election process. Agency staff is available to provide

technical assistance in this matter upon receipt of the Tribe’s written request. We

are returning the original document [the September, 2001 tribal constitution)
without any action.

{Emphasis added.] (] Nos. 32 and 21). In 2001, Yakima Dixie filed suit filed in federal district
court for the Eastern District of California, “ . . . challenging the Tribe’s membership and
leadership;” the suit was dismissed in 2002, in part, for failure to exhaust administrative
remedies. (§ Nos. 31 and 33 of Complaint; Attachment C to Memorandum in Support of
Defendants’ Motion to Transfer Venue and Suspend Obligation to Answer in District of
Columbia). (Copy of Attachment C appended hereto as Attachment C.) Around QOctober of
2003, Mr. Dixie filed an “Administrative Appeal” to the Deputy Assistant Secretary - Indian
Affairs raising the same issues that were raised in the Eastern District of California suit. (f No.

35).
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On February 11, 2004, the Tribe transmitted a copy of its September 2001 constitution to
the Superintendent of the BIA’s Central California Agency for BIA’s “. . . records, and not for
review.” ( No. 42). In a March 26, 2004 letter to Sylvia Burley, the Superintendent states, in

pertinent part, as follows:

Although the Tribe has not requested any assistance or comments from
this office in response to your document, we provide the following observations.
As you know, the BIA’s Cenfral California Agency (CCA) has a responsibility to
develop and maintain a govemment-to-govemment relationship with each of the
54 federally recognized tribes situated within the CCA’s jurisdiction. This
relationship includes, among other things, the responsibility of working with the
person or persons from each tribe who either are rightfully elected to a position of
authority within the tribe or who otherwise occupy a position of authority within
an unorganized tribe. However, the BIA does not view your tribe to be an
‘organized’ Indian Tribe and this view is borne out by the document you have
presented as the tribe’s constitution but additionally. by our relations over the last

several decades with members_of the fribal community in and arcund Sheep
Ranch Rancheria.

L

When a tribe that has not previously organized seeks to do so, BIA also
has & responsibility to determine that the organizational efforts reflect the
involvement of the whole tribal community. We have not seen evidence of such
general involvement was atternpted or has occurred within the purported
organization of your tribe. For example, we have not been made aware of any
efforts to reach out to the Indian communities in _and around the Sheep Ranch
Rancheria, or to persons who maintained any cultural contact with the Sheep
Ranch. To our knowledge, the only persons of Indian descent involved in the
tribe’s organization efforts. were you and your two daughters. We are unaware of
any efforts to involve Yakima Dixie or Mr. Dixie’s brother Melvin Dixie or any
offspring of Merle Butler, Tillie Jeff or I enny Jeff, all persons who have resided
at Sheep Ranch Rancheria at various times in the past 75 years and persons who
have inherited an interest in the Rancheria. We are also not aware of any efforts
to involve Indians (such as Lena Shelton) and their descendants who once lived
adjacent to Sheep Ranch Rancheria or to investigate the possibility of involving a
neighboring group. We are aware that the Indians of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria
were in fact. part of a lareer group of Indians residing less than 20 miles away at
West Point, * * * The BIA remains available, upon your request, to assist yvou in
identifving the members of the local Indian community, to assist in disseminating
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both individual and public notices, facilitating public meetings, and otherwise
providing logistical support.

It is only after the oreater tribal community is initially identified that
goveming documents should be drafted and the Tribe’s base and membership
criteria identified. The participation of the greater tribal community is essential to
this effort. We are very concerned about the designated ‘base roll” for the tribe as
identified in the submitted tribal constitution ***

& ko ok

‘We must continue to emphasize the importance of the participation of a
greater tribal community. We reiterate our continued availability and willingness
to assist you in this process and that via PL 93-638 contracts intended to facilitate
the organization or reorganization of the tribal community, we have already
extended assistance. we urge you to continue the work you have begun towards
formal organization of the California Valley Miwok Tribe, * * *

L
Should you wish to appeal any portion of this letter, you are advised you
may doso by complying with the following:

& % & %

If no timely appeal is filed. this decision will become final for the
Department of the Interior at the expiration of the appeal period. No extension of
time may be granted for filing a notice of appeal.

(emphasis added.) See Exhibit 3 attached to Complaint. In her effort to organize the tribe,
therefore, Ms. Burley had failed to identify the greater tribal membership and obtain its support
for her proposed constitution, which she acknowledged/asserted to exist in her prior complaint in
the Eastern District of California (see supra, p. 5).
Defendant Olsen addressed the issue of the tribe’s forum in a February 11, 2005 letter to
Yakima Dixie which states, in pertinent part as follows:
Your appeal of the BIA’s recognition of Ms. Burley as Tribal Chairman

has been rendered moot by the BIA’s decision of March 26, 2004. . . . rejecting
the Tribe’s proposed Constitution, In that letter, the BIA made clear that the
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Federal government did not recognize Ms. Burley as the tribal Chairman. * * *

& ok # ok

In light of the BIA’s letter of March 26, 2004. that the Tribe is not an
oraanized tribe, however, the BIA does not recognize any fribal government, and
therefore, cannot defer to any tribal dispute resolution process at this time. I
understand that a Mr. Troy M. Woodward has held himself out as an
Administrative Hearing Officer for the Tribe and purported to conduct a hearing
to resolve your complaint against Ms. Burley. Please be advised that the BIA
does not recognize Mr. Woodward as a tribal official or his hearing process as a

legitimate tribal forum. * * *

ARGUMENT
I. THIS COURT LACKS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION.
A. Rule 12(b)(1) Motions
In ruling on a FRCP 12(b)(1) motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, the
court is not limited to the allegations of the Complaint, but can consider matters outside the

Complaint. Marsh v. Johnson, 263 F. Supp. 2d 49, 54 (D.D. C. 2003). Indeed, the factual

allegations in the Complaint receive “closer scrutiny” than they do in the case of a FRCP
12(b)(6) motion. The principal rationale for this “closer scrutiny” is because “subject matter

jurisdiction focuses on the court’s power to hear the claim.” (Id.) Bobreski v, 1.5,

Environmental Protection Agency, 284 F. Supp. 2d 67, 72 (D.D.C. 2003). Another rationale for
this “closer scrutiny” is that a 12(b)(1) motion “. .. focuses on the Cowrt’s power to hear the
claim.”(Id.). The Plaintiff has a burden of establishing by a preponderance of the evidence that

the court has jurisdiction to adjudicate these three claims. U.S. v. ex rel. Rockefeller v.

Westinghouse Electric Co., 274 F. Supp. 2d 10, 14 (D.D. C. 2003), aff’d sub nom. Rockefeller

ex rel. 1U.S. v. Washington TRU Solutions, LLC, 2004 WL 180264 (D.C. Cir. 2004).

B. The Court Lacks Jurisdiction te Adjudicate an Internal Tribal Dispute.
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At heart this case is about an internal tribal dispute between Yakima Dixie and Sylvia
Burley over leadership and tribal organizational issues. Ms. Burley’s submission of a
constitution to the BIA in March 2004 was part of that dispute and the BIA’s March 26, 2004
letter was the BIA’s response to it. Plaintiff’s claims, therefore, will necessarily require this
court to settle that internal tribal dispute. The Plaintiff’s prayer for relief is most felling. It
requests the court to declare, amoung other things, that Ms. Burley’s constitution is a valid
governing document, that Ms. Burley is the tribal chairperson, and that the resolution
establishing the tribal forum is a legitimate governing document. This court, however, lacks
jurisdiction to resolve Plaintiff’s claims and grant its requested relief.

As a general rule, federal district courts lack jurisdiction over internal tribal leadership

disputes, membership issues, and organizational issues. In re Sac & Fox Tribe, 340 F.3d 749,

763 (8" Cir. 2003) (leadership); Smith v. Babbitt, 100 F.3d 556, 558-559 (8" Cir. 1996), cert.

denied, 522 U.S. 807 (1997) (membership); Ordinance 59 Ass’n v. United States Dep’t of the

Interior, 163 F.3d 1150, 1159-1160 (10™ Cir. 1998) (membership); Potts v. Bruce, 533 F.2d 527,

529-530 (10™ Cir. 1976) (organizational igsues), cert. denied, 429 U.S. 1002 (1976); Motah v.

United States, 402 F.2d 1, 2 (10™ Cir. 1968) (organizational issues). But see Seminole Nation of

QOklahoma v. Norton, 223 F. Supp. 2d 122 (D.D.C. 2002).

There is a limited exception to this general rule when a federal statutory responsibility is
implicated. In Seminole Nation of Oklahoma v. Norton, 223 F. Supp, 2d 122 (D.D.C. 2002) this
court adjudicated a challenge by the Seminole Nation to the Secretary’s refusal to recognize the
tribal government and its principal chief because the Nation was excluding its Freedmen

members from voting. But Seminole is distinguishable from the case at hand because in

10
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Seminole the Secretary had a statutory responsibility to ensure the integrity of the tribal election
process. In this case, the Defendants have no comparable statutory responsibility under Section
476(h) which would require the Secretary to review a tribal constitution, as opposed to review at
the Secretary’s discretion.

This case squarely involves an internal tribal dispute over leadership and organizational
issues. First, Yakima Dixie and Sylvia Burley dispute who should lead the Tribe, as evidenced
by Michael Olsen’s February 11, 2005 letter about Mr. Dixie’s challenge of Ms. Burley's
leadership position. Second, Yakima Dixie and Sylvia Burley are presently working with the
BIA along parallel lines to organize the tribe. Were the Court to adjudicate the Plaintiff’s claims,
it would necessarily decide these issues for the tribe. Under the authority cited above, the court
does not have jurisdiction to do so. The case should be dismissed under FRCP_12(b)(1).

C. The Government Has Not Waived its Sovereign Immunity
______ The United States, its agencies and its employees may not be sued in the abscence of a

waiver of sovereign immunity. F.D.LC. v. Mever, 510 U.S. 471, 475 (1994); Loeffler v, Frank,

486 U.S. 549, 554 (1988); United States v. Testan, 424 U.S. 392, 399 (1976). The terms of the
sovereign’s consent define a court’s jurisdiction. United States v. Sherwood, 312 U.S. 584, 586-
87 (1941). Therefore, the United States, as a sovereign, is immune from suit except to the extent
that it consents fo be sued. Id.

‘Where suit is brought against the United States, as here, the United States’ waiver of
sovereign immunity is one of the cornerstones informing the court’s jurisdiction. F.D.LC., 510

U.S. at 475 (“Sovereign immunity is jurisdictional in nature™); United States v. Mottaz, 476 U.S.

834, 841 (1986)(*When the United States consents to be sued the terms of its waiver of

11
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sovereign immunty define the extent of the court’s jurisdiction”){emphasis added); Block v.

North Dakota, 461 U.S. 273, 278 (1983)(same); see aiso United States v. White Mountain
Apache Tribe, 537 U.S. 465, 472 (2003)(“Jurisdiction over any suit against the [United States]
Govemment requires a clear statement from the United States waiving sovereign immunity. . .
together with a claim falling within the terms of the waiver™). The burden of establishing waiver
of sovereign immunity rests at all times with the party asserting a claim against the United States,

its agencies and/or its employees. Baker v. United States, 817 F.2d 560, 562 (9th Cir. 1987)

(plaintiff “bears the burden of demonstrating an unequivocal waiver of imrmunity”), cert. denied,
487 U.S. 1204 (1988).

Here, Plaintiff has not identified any waiver of sovereign immunity which would allow it
to bring suit on the claims at issue. Without such a waiver, this count has no subject matter

jurisdiction over Plaintiffs cliams.

. ALL OF PLAINTIFEF’S CLATMS SHOULD BE DISMISSED FOR FAILURE
TO EXHAUST ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES.

A. Rule 12(b¥(6) Motions.
In ruling upon a FRCP 12(b){6) motion, the court must accept the allegations of the
complaint as true, but need not accept any of plaintiff’s legal conclusions as true. Briton v.

Palestinian Interim Self - Government Authority, 310 F. Supp. 2d 172, 177 (D.D.C. 2004);

Coleman v, Elec . Power Co., 310 F. Supp. 2d 154, 157 (D.D.C. 2004), aff*d, No. 04-7043, 2004

WL 2348144 (D.C. Cir. Oct. 19, 2004). In the same vein, the court need not accept plaintiff’s
legal inferences or conclusory allegations unsupported by facts set forth in the complaint.

Hopkins v. Women’s Div.. Gen. Bd. of Global Ministries, 238 F. Supp. 2d 174, 177-178 (D.D.C.
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2002). Also, the court need not accept legal conclusions cast in the form of factual allegations.
In re Lorazepam & Clorasepate Antitrust Litigation, 295 F. Supp. 2d 30, 34 (D.D.C. 2003).
The court may take judicial notice of matters of a general public natare such as court

records. Prmorac v. CIA, 277 F. Supp. 2d 117, 119 (D.D.C.}, aff’d, No. 03-5271, 2004 WL

869631 (D.C. Cir.2004).¥ Inruling on a 12(b)(6) motion, the court may consider public records
and matters of which a court may take judicial notice. Jackson v. City of Columbus, 194 F. 3d.

737, 741 (6th Cir. 1999) gverruled on other grounds sub nom., Swierkiewicz v. Sorema. N.A

534 U.S. 506 (2002). Matters of “public record” include pleadings, orders and other papers filed

with the court or records of administrative bodies. Barapind v. Reno, 72 F. Supp. 2d 1132, 1141

(E.D. Cal. 1999), aff"d, 225 F.3d. 1100 (9th Cir. 2000).

B. The Failure to Exhaust Administrative Remedies is Properly Pled Under

a_12(b){6) Motion.

The Second Claim for Reliefin the Complaint alleges that all of Plaintiff’s three claims
implicate the APA. See §] Nos. 53, 54, and 57. Plaintiff, however, has failed to exhaust
administrative remedies and, therefore, the Complaint should be dismissed under FRCP 12(b)(6).

The BIA’s decision of March 26, 2004, which gave rise to all of Plaintiff’s claims, was
appealable to the Regional (formerly Area) Director of BIA’s Pacific Regional Office. Under 25
C.F.R. Part 2 (2004). Plaintiff does not allege that it filed such an administrative appeal. Indeed,

no such appeal has ever been filed. See ATTACHMENTS A and B hereto.

¥ But see Herron v, Veneman, 305 F. Supp. 2d 64, 69 (D.D.C. 2004} which held the court
could not consider factual allegations in briefs or the memoranda of law, particularly when they
contradict the complaint. This case can be distinguished because it concerns the government’s
failure to use the proper format for its motion for summary judgment. Rather than prepare a
Statement of Uncontroverted Facts with supporting documents, the government attached excerpts
from its prior pleadings in Veneman.

13
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This Circuit has held that even in the case of “non-jurisdictional” exhaustion, the failure

to exhaust administrative remedies is properly pled under a 12(b)}(6) motion. See Johnson v.

District of Columbia, 368 F. Supp. 2d 30, 36 (D.D.C. 2005):

In cases involving the application of the non-jurisdictional exhaustion requirement
imposed by the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA™), the D.C. Circuit has treated
exhaustion as a condition precedent to filing suit in federal court. See Hidalgo v. F.B.L,
344 F.3d 1256, 1259-60 (D.C.Cir.2003); see also Wilbur v. CLA., 355 F.3d 675, 677
(D.C.Cir.2004). A plaintiff's failure to demonstrate that he or she has safisfied this
condition, then, is tantamount to a failure to sufficiently plead a necessary element of a
federal cause of action. Thus, when a federal court finds that the plaintiff failed to exhaust
his or her administrative remedies, and the exhaustion requirement is prudential rather
than jurisdictional, the appropriate disposition is to dismiss the plaintiff's unexhausted
claims under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6). In such a case, the plaintiff has in
fact “failed to state a claim on which relief may be granted” with respect to the
unexhausted claim or claims by failing to demonstrate that a necessary precondition to
judicial review of those claims has been satisfied. In evaluating the defendants'
exhaustion argument on the present motion, then, the Court will proceed under the legal
standard applicable to Rule 12(b)(6) motions to dismiss.

C. Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies in General.

“Exhaustion of administrative remedies is generally required before filing suit in federal

court so that the agency has an opportunity to exercise its discretion and expertise on the matter

and to make a factual record to support its decision.” Oglesby v. United States Dep’t of the

Army, 920 F.2d 57, 61 (D.C. Cir. 1990) (citations omitted). Until a party has exhausted all

administrative remedies required by a statute or an agency rule, it may not obtain judicial review

of the challenged agency action. Darby v. Cisneros, 509 U.S. 137, 146-147 (1993). See also

James v. United States Department of Health and Human Resources, 824 F.2d 1132, 1136-1137

(D.C. Cir. 1987) (held that suit filed by dissident tribal faction of an unrecognized Indian tribe

seeking federal recognition of the Tribe by the Department of the Interior was properly dismissed

14

CVMT-2011-000836



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 134 of 270

Case 1:05-¢v-00739-JR Document 15 Filed 08/05/05 Page 20 of 37

for failure to exhaust its administrative remedies). However, BIA’s regulations, 25 CF.R. Part 2
(2004) do not require exhaustion; thus, the type of exhaustion at issue is “non-jurisdictional”
exhaustion (where exhaustion is provided for, but not mandated).

Although the BIA’s regulations give rise only to the “non-jurisdictional” type of
exhanstion, we submit that the exhaustion of remedies is a “condition precedent” to filing suit.
Hidalgo v. Federal Bureau of Investigation, 344 F.3d 1256, 1258-59 (D.C. Cir. 2005). (dismissed

for failing to pursue administrative appeal process); Johnson v. District of Columbia, 368 F.

Supp. 2d 30, 32, 36-37 (D.D.C. 2005) (dismissed for failing to pursue administrative appeal
process). Given the circumstances of this case, and based upon the strength of these two
decisions alone, we submit that the Court should, as a “prudential” matter, dismiss the Complaint
because of the Plaintiff’s failure to exhaust its administrative remedies. We reiterate that
Plaintiff does not cven allege that it exhausted its administrative remedies, and, in fact, has never
atternpted to exhaust its administrative remedies.

If the Court should reject this contention, then, in the alternative, Defendants submit that
the application of the two-part analysis in Advocado Plus, with respect to the “non-jurisdictional™
form of exhaustion, to the facts of this case yields an ouicome which clearly warrants dismissal
of the Complaint. See discussion under subheading D below.

D. The Circuit Standards for Ruling Upon a “Non-Jurisdictional” Failure to
Exhanst Administrative Remedies.

1. The Exhaustion of Remedies Includes Twe Distinct Legal
Concepts.

In Avocados Plus Inc. v. Veneman, 370 F.3d 1243, 1247-48 (D.C. Cir. 2004), supra, the

United States Court of Appeals for this Circuit held that the defense of failure to exhaust
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administrative remedies involves “twao distinct legal concepts™ the first of which is called “non-
jurisdictional exhaustion.” (emphasis in original) (370 F. 3d at 1247). The first concept is “a
judicially created doctrine requiring parties who seek to challenge agency action to exhaust
available administrative remedies before bringing their case to court.” Id. “Non - jurisdictional
exhaustion” serves three functions: “ ‘giving agencies the opportunity to correct their own
errors, affording parties and courts the benefits of agencies’ expertise, and compiling a record
inadequate for judicial review.’” Id.

The “second form of exhaustion arises when Congress requires resort to the
administrative process as a predicate to the judicial review,” (Id.) This form of exhaustion ~
“jurisdictional exhaustion” is “rooted, not in prudential principles, but in Congress’ power to
control the jurisdiction of the federal courts. [Citation omitted.].” (Id.} If a federal statute
“mandates exhaustion”, then a federal court has no jurisdiction over the case in question “prior to
exhaustion.” (370 F. 3d at 1248). Here, the Defendants are relying upon the “non -
jurisdictional” form of exhaustion of remedies; under this form of exhaustion, the court has the
discretion to require a plaintiff to exhaust its administrative remedies. (370 F. 3d at 1250-51).

2. Required Two-Part Analysis
In making its determination as to whether to so require a plaintiff, the court must conduct

a two - part analysis: (1) determine whether requiring exhaustion would “serve the policies

underlying the doctrine;” and if it would serve these policies, then (2) balance the “interest of the
individual in retaining prompt access to a federal judicial forum against countervailing
institutional interests favoring exhaustion,” (citing McCarthy v. Madigan, 503 U.S. 140, 147

(1992)). McCarthy holds that there are three “sets of circumstances” to be taken into account in
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doing this balancing process. (Id. at 146-48). These are: (1) whether requiring exhaustion would
prejudice a subsequent court action because of unreasonable or indefinite time frames for action
by the administrative appellate entity; (2) whether the agency can grant effective relief; and (3)
whether the administrative appellate body has been shown to be “biased” or has made a
“prejudgment of the issue” before it.

In James, the Court of Appeals stated that exhaustion has four purposes:

First, it carries out the congressional purpose in granting authority to the agency by
discouraging the frequent and deliberate flouting of administrative processes that could
encourage people to ignore its procedures. Second, it protects agency autonomy by
allowing the agency the opportunity in the first instance to apply its expertise, exercise
whatever discretion it may have been granted, and correct its own errors. Third, it aids
judicial review by allowing the parties and the agency to develop the facts of the case in
the administrative proceeding. Fourth, it promotes judicial economy by avoiding
needless repetition of administrative and judicial fact-finding, and by perhaps avoiding
the necessity of any judicial involvement at all if the parties successfully vindicate their
claims before the agency.

James, 842 F.2d at 1137-38. In this case, requiring exhaustion would serve the purposes of the

doctrine.

3, PartI of the Avocado Plus Analysis: Whether Requiring
Exhaustion of Remedies Here Would Serve the Purposes
of the Exhaustion Doctrine.

a. The Plaintiff has Isnored the Department’s
Administrative Process.

Congress granted broad authority over Indian affairs to the Secretary in 25 U.5.C. §§ 2
and 9, and 43 U.S.C. § 1457, Pursuant to that authority, the Secretary has adopted rules and
regulations, including those governing agency appeals decisions - 25 C.F.R. Part 2. Section 2.6
of 25 C.F.R. Part 2 authorizes the exhaustion of administrative before seeking judicial review

under the APA. In his March 26" decision, the Superintendent informed the Plaintiff of its right
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to appeal the his decision to the Regional Director of BIA’s Pacific Region. From there, 25
C.F.R. Part 2 provides that an appeal may be taken to the Interior Board of Indian Appeals.
During the pendency of an appeal, the Superintendent’s decision is stayed. Rather than pursue its
administrative appeal rights under 25 C.F.R. Part 2 with respect fo Defendants’ alleged failure to
recognize the tribal constitution, Ms. Burley as the purported Tribal Chairperson, and the
Plaintiff ignored the administrative appeal process and waited over a year from the date the
agency decision was issued and then filed this Complaint to obtain judicial review of the
decision. Here, the Plaintiff is “deliberately flouting” the Defendants’ administrative process.

b. The Doctrine of Exhaustion Protects the Agency’s Autonomy,

Requiring exhaustion in this case would protect the Department of the Interior’s
autonomy in managing Indian affairs. As noted above, Congress has delegated fo the
Department broad authority over Indian affairs. The Department has extensive expertise over

Indian matters. See e.g., Shenandoah v. United States, 159 F.3d 708, 712 (2d Cir. 1998); James,

824 F.2d at 1138; Goodface v. Grassrope, 708 F.2d 335, 352 (8" Cir. 1983). Exhaustion here

would allow the agency to apply this expertise and its discretion, correct any error it may have
made in the first instance prior to being subject to any judicial action. By going directly to
district court, Plaintiff has deprived the Department of this opportunity.
¢. Requiring Exhaustion Would Aid Judicial Review.
Requiring exhaustion here would aid judicial review by allowing a factual record to be
developed prior to review. In this litigation, because the Plaintiff did not exhaust its
administrative remedies, the only factual record for the court to review is Superintendent

Risling’s March 26, 2004 letter to Ms. Burley. Had Plaintiff exhausted its administrative
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remedies, the Court would have before it Plaintiff’s appeal to the Regional Director, the Regional
Director’s decision, any appeal the Plaintiff might have taken from that decision to the BIA, and
the decision of that appeal. Without exhaustion, the record before the Court is limited.

d. Requiring Exhaustion Would Promote Judicial Economy,

Finally, requiring exhaustion would promote judicial economy by allowing this court to
benefit from the development of the factual record as part of the administrative process.

Because Plaintiff failed to exhaust its administrative remedies, this Court does not have the
benefit of being able to review a factual record that should have been developed at the agency
level and may need to be constructed here.__

Accordingly, Plaintiff should be required to exhaust its administrative remedies before
seeking alleged judicial review. As demonstrated below, Plaintiff has not and indeed cannot
allege, any facts to demonstrate that it exhausted its administrative remedies with respect to its
claim concerning its constitution and Ms. Burley’s status as Chairperson warranting dismissal of
Plaintiff’s Complaint.

e. The Plaintiff Failed to Exhaust Its Administrative Remedies.

On March 26, 2004, the Superintendent of the Central California Agency of the BIA
wrote in reply to Ms. Burley declining recognition of the tribe as an ‘organized’ tribe and
offering gnidance as to the proper procedures to become organized. (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 3) The
BIA understood that she had submitted the Tribe’s constitution “in an attempt to demonstrate that
it [Plaintiff] is an ‘organized’ tribe.” The purpose of the lefter was to inform Ms. Burley that she
had failed to make such a demonstration, explain the tribe’s status as an unorganized tribe, and to

offer guidance as to how the Tribe could become organized. The letter made two points, which
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the Plaintiff’s Complaint challenges: first, the Tribe’s constifution did not qualify as a valid
governing document because the broader tribal community was not involved in its adoption;
second, Ms. Burley was not a government official of the Tribe, but was a “person of authority”
with whom the BIA would deal. (Complaint §§ 49(a}, 53, 57, 58, 59). Plaintiff was informed of
its right to appeal the decision to the Regional Director, and was provided a copy of the relevant
regulations. The letter provided instruction on how to file an appeal and informed the Plaintiff
that, if needed, it could receive assistance preparing its appeal from the Superintendent’s office.
Finally, the letter explained that if no timely appeal was filed, the decision would become “final”
for the Department. (Emphasis added.)

The Plaintiff fails to allege anywhere in its Complaint that it appealed the March 26, 2004
decision. Because Plaintiff failed to avail itself of its administrative appeal rights within the time
provided, all three of Plaintiff’s claims, or in the alternative, the claims relating to the failure to
recognize the tribal constitution and Ms. Burley as tribal Chairperson should, for the reasons set
forth earlier, be dismissed for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted under
Rule 12(b)(6). Seee.z. Johnson v. District of Columbia, 368 F. Supp. 2d at 36-37; Hildalgo v.

Federal Bureau of Investigation, 344 F.3d at 1257-1258.

4, PartI1 of the Advocado Plus Analysis: Whether Balancing the Interests of
the Plaintiff and the Institutional Interests of the U.S. Department of the

Interior Weighs in Favor of Requiring Exhaustion of Remedies, Here,

As noted, there are three “sets of circumstances” (three elements of the balancing test)
that the Court must take into account when it rules upon a “non-jurisdictional” exhaustion Rule
12 (b)(6) motion. The first element is whether requiring exhaustion would prejudice a later court

action because of lack of reasonable or definite timeframes for action by the appellate

20

CVMT-2011-000842



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 140 of 270

Case 1:05-cv-00739-JR Document 15 Filed 08/05/05 Page 26 of 37

administrative body. Plaintiff has not alleged that it would be prejudiced if it brought a later

court suit. The second element is whether the administrative agency can afford the requested

relief. Certainly, the Plaintiff here does not contend that Interior is not empowered to grant the
requested relief. Finally, Plaintiff has not asserted that the administrative appellate entity fo
which Plaintiff could have appealed the March 26, 2004, BIA decision with respect to the claims
concemning the failures to recognize the tribal constitution or Ms. Burley as Tribal Chairperson
the Regional Director of BIA’s Pacific Region, was “biased” or had made a “prejudgment” on
the issues raised by these claims.

In sum, the application of the “balancing” test required as the second pait of this Court’s
analysis of Defendants’ FRCP 12(b)(6) motion weighs in favor of the institutional interests of the
Department of the Interior, and therefore, a dismissal for failure to exhaust administrative
remedies is clearly warranted.

III. PLAINTIFE’S CLAIMS FOR FAILURE TO RECOGNIZE THE TRIBE’S
CONSTITUTION AND TO RECOGNIZE THE TRIBE’S FORUM ARE NOT

CLAIMS UPON WHICH RELIEF MAY BE GRANTED AND SHOULD BE
DISMISSED.

Plaintiff alleges that the government’s failures to recognize the tribal constitution and
tribal forum constitute violations of Section 476(h) of the Indian Reorganization Act. See First
Claim for Relief, 49 of Complaint. In the March 26, 2004 letter, Superintendent of the BIA’s
Central California Agency rejected the constitution submitted by Ms. Burley because she had not
involved the greater tribal community, but rather had involved only herseif and her two
daughters. (Exhibit 3 attached to Complaint). Given the March 26, 2004 decision of the

Superintendent that the Tribe was not “organized,” Michael Olsen, in tumn, reasonably concluded
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(in his February 11, 2005 letter) that the BIA does not “recognize any tribal government” of the
Plaintiff Tribe and, therefore, does not recognize the “tribal dispute resolution process at this
time” as a “legitimate tribal forum.” (Exhibit 4 attached to Complaint). As noted, all of the
Plaintiffs’ claims arose from the March 26, 2004 letter,

As stated earlier, a court may dismiss a complaint under Rule 12(b)(6) when the
Complaint fails ““to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.” A complaint may also be
dismissed under Rule 12(b)(6) if relief cannot be granted on some set of facts consistent with the

allegations in the complaint. Hishon v. King & Spaulding, 467 U.S. 69, 73 (1984). There is no

duty on the part of the Department to recognize a governing document without a showing that the
will of the membership supports. It has long been recognized that tribal authority derives from
the will of the members:
In point of form it is immaterial whether the powers of an Indian tribe are expressed and
exercised through customs handed down by word of mouth or through written
constitutions and statutes. In either case the laws of the Indian tribe owe their force to the

will of the members of the tribe.

Felix Cohen’s Handbook of Indian Law, 122 (1942). Indeed, the IRA requires that a majority of

the tribe adopt the Tribe’s governing document. Plaintiff’s reliance on the 2004 addition of
subsection (h) to Section 16 of the IRA is misplaced and without merit. As already noted, the
plain language of subsection (h) (25 U.S.C. § 476(h)) is simply Congressional confirmation of
the right of Indian tribes to adopt their own governing documents outside the provisions of that
IRA. The subsection does not impose a duty on the part of the Department to recognize or
approve governing documents adopted outside the provisions of the IRA, which imposes

significant minimum participation requirements on the recognition of valid elections to adopt

22

CVMT-2011-000844



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 142 of 270

Case 1:05-cv-00739-JR Document 15 Filed 08/05/05 Page 28 of 37

tribal constitutions as a prerequisite for Secretary’s approval . See 25 U.S.C. § 478(a). But in
this case, Plaintiff failed to allege that a majority of the Tiibe did s¢. Instead, the Plaintiff would
have this Court find that the Department was arbitrary and capricious or otherwise violated the
IRA in failing to recognize the governing document of the Tribe, a document that was supported
by a small group — maybe three or four in number — and not by the majority of the members of
the “greater tribal community.” (Exhibit No. 3 attached to Complaint). Without an allegation
that a majority of the members of the greater tribal community approved or adopted the
constitution, the Complaint does not support the relief Plaintiff seeks with respect to Defendants’
alleged failures to recognize the Tribe’s constitution and tribal forum. Accordingly, the
Plaintiff’s claims should be dismissed for failure to state a claim under Rule 12(b}(6).

A. Section 476(h) of the IRA Does Not Contain an Unequivocal Waiver of
Sovereign Immunity.

In its First Claim for Relief, Plaintiff asserts that the Defendants’ failure to recognize its
claims alleging the tribal constitution and failure to recognize the tribal forum involve the
violation of Section 476(h) of the IRA (First Claim for Relief, paras. 48-51). Section 476(h),
however, does not contain a private right of action such that Plaintiff can properly allege that
Defendants violated the statute. While the APA can provide the waiver of sovereign immunity to
allege violations of statutes not containing private rights of action, Plaintiff has not invoked the
APA in its First Claim for Relief.!* For example, Williams v. United States. eta al, No. Civ. S-
01-2040 WBS JFM, Order of August 28, 2003 (E.D. Cal) (Copy attached as Attachment G),

individual tribal members based their suit, in part, on alleged violations of Section 476(f) and (g)

1o Plaintiff, has, however invoked the APA in its Second Count, but not in Count L
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of the IRA. The court held that nothing in these statutes reflected the existence of an
“unequivocal waiver of sovereign immunity.” (Order at 6-7). Accordingly, because Section
476(h) does not embody an unequivocal waiver of sovereign immunity, the First Claim for Relief

of Plaintiff’s Complaint should be dismissed under 12(b)(6).

B. Section 476(h) of the IRA Does Not Require the Department To Recognize
a Tribe As “Oreanized.” Absent Adeption of the Governing Documents

By a Majority of the Members of the Greater Tribal Communitv.

Under the IRA, of which section 476(h) is a part, a tribe becomes organized upon the
adoption of governing documents by a majority vote of the adult tribal members. See 25 U.S.C.
§ 476(a)(1) and 478a; 25 CF.R. § 81.7. Sections 476(a) and (c) lay out fairly detailed
procedures and timetables binding on the Secretary in conducting constitutional elections when a
tribe seeks to adopt or amend governing documents to be approved by the Secretary. The
Plaintiff here asserts its organization is mandated under Section 476(h). This section provides:

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act--

(1) each Indian tribe shall retain inherent sovereign power to adopt governing documents
under procedures other than those specified in this section; and

(2) nothing in the Act invalidates any constitution or other governing document adopted
by an Indian tribe after June 18, 1934, in accordance with the authority described in
paragraph 1.
25 U.S.C. §476 (h). Certainly, Section 476 is gilent as to whether the Secretary has the authority
to find that a tribe is not “organized,” and, therefore, to refuse to recognize a tribal forum, and to
refuse to recognize of a tribal constitution (or a tribal resolution) which does not reflect the will

of the membership of the greater tribal community — that is, a constitution adopted by the

majority of the members of that community. When the language of a statute is not clear, a court
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may resort to the legislative history thereof. E.g., Rotec Industries, Inc. v. Mitsubishi Corp., 215
F.3d 1246, 1252 (Fed. Cir. 2000). Where statutory language is subject to more than one

interpretation, as is frue of Section 476(h), the court may examine the legislative history. United

States v, Braxtonbrown-Smith, 278 F.3d 1348, 1352 (D.C. Cir.), cert. denied, 536 U.S. 932
(2002). The very limited legislative history on this section provides that this section:

clarifies that Indian tribes that accepted the Indian Reorganization Act JRA), 25 U.S.C.

476 are not required to adopt constitutions pursuant to the IRA and remain free to

organize their governing bodies pursuant to organizational governing documents that they

determine.
Senate Report 108-49 (May 15, 2003).

We submit that the legislative history of Section 476(h) should be viewed as
encompassing Interior’s comments on Section 103 of the S. 523, Interior noted that it was
unclear what Section 103 added to existing law. Interior stafed that the IRA and Oklahoma
Indian Welfare Act of 1936 form the statutory “basis for tribal reorganization.”® These statutes:

«...guarantee notice, a defined process and minimum participation before a tribe’s

constitution is adopted. That process and minimum participation provides the

Secretary with assurance that those with whom she deals in accordance with the

Tribe’s constitution represent the majority of fribal members.”

(emphasis added.)
The 2003 interpretation of the IRA by Interior quoted above has effectively been held to

be reasonable. Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux (Dakota) Community v. Babbitt, 107 F. 3d 667,

670 (8th Cir. 1997). In Shakopee, the Secretary disapproved the results of the Secretarial

Ll The language of Section 476(h) is essentially identical to that of Section 103 of S. 523,
'—3’ See Interior’s comments of June 10, 2003 and October 24, 2003 on Section 103 of 8, 523
to the House and Senate Committee with jurisdiction over S.523.

Copy attached as Attachment E.
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election approving certain amendments to the community’s tribal constitution. The Secretary
interpreted the IRA as allowing him to reject such election results:

...when, as here, the Secretary is unable to determine whether an election has

resulted in ratification by & majority of the voting members of the fribe as required

by 25 TU.8.C. 476(a)(1). We believe that this interpretation is reasonable.

(107 F.3d at 670.)

Although the Tribe initially requested on March 9, 2000, that the Secretary review the
draft constitution and hold a Secretarial election under the IRA to approve the draft tribal
constitution, (] 23 of Complaint), on June 7, 2001, the Tribe withdrew that request. (ff 23 and
30). While we read Section 476(h) as having freed fribes from the procedural requirements of
Section 476 (a) and {c), where the Secretary, at the tribe’s request, calls and conducts the
election, Section 476(h) does not negate the Secretary’s authority to find that a tribe is
*unorganized” and to refuse to recognize the tribe’s constitution, because it does not reflect
approval by the majority of the membership of the greater tribal community. The problem for the
Plaintiff is that it has yet to identify its membership. Therefore, Mr. Burley’s constitution cannot
possibly have the requisite support of the membership in order for the BIA to acceptitasa
legitimate governing document. Section 476(h) cannot be fairly interpreted as requiring the
Department to recognize a purported governing document whether it be a tribal constitution or
the tribal resolution establishing a forum under such circumstances, as Plaintiff would have this
court do. Such a reading of the statute would be contrary to the very nature of the federal-tribal

relationship, as well as the canons of statutory construction.

C. The Federal-Tribal Relationship.

The will of the tribal membership is fundamental to the relationship between the federal
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government and a tribe. Ransom v. Babbitt, 69 F. Supp. 2d 141, 153 (D.D.C. 1999). Congress
delegated to the Secretary of the Interior broad authority over “public business relating to . . .
Indians.” 43 U.S.C. § 1457. In discharging this responsibility, the Secretary has an obligation to
ensure that the government with which she deals actually represents the members of the tribe.
The Supreme Court articulated that the Department has a responsibility to conduct business only
with the lawfully constituted governing bodies, specifically those that represent the tribe. As
articulated by the Court:

In carrying out its treaty obligations with the Indian tribes the Government is something

more than a mere contracting party. Under a humane and self imposed policy which has

found expression in many acts of Congress and numerous decisions of this Court, it has
charged itself with moral obligations of the highest responsibility and trust. Its conduct,
as disclosed in the acts of those who represent it in dealings with the Indians, should
therefore be judged by the most exacting fiduciary standards. Payment of fimds at the
request of a tribal council which, to the knowledge of the Govermnment officers charged
with the administration of Indian affairs and the disbursement of funds to satisfy treaty
obligations, was composed of representatives faithless to their own people and without
integrity would be a clear breach of the Government's fiduciary obligation.

Seminole Nation v. United States, 316 U.S. 286, 295-96 (1942).

Consistent with the Supreme Court’s decision in Seminole, the Secretary has a
responsibility to determine that he or she is dealing with a government that is representative of
the tribe as a whole. This duty to deal only with representative governments has made the
majority the yardstick against which legitimacy of tribal governments are measured. See

Shakopee, 107 F.3d at 670 (JRA allows Secretary to reject results of election when the Secretary

cannot determine whether the results were ratified by a majority of qualified voters); Ransom, 69

F. Supp. 2d at 153 (“By not determining for themselves whether or not the Constitution was

valid, [the BIA was)] derelict in [its] responsibility to ensure that the Tribe make its own
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determination about its government consistent with the will of the Txibe and the principles of
tribal sovereignty.”) This is especially true when the Secretary is faced with two competing

factions as is the case here, See Milam v. U.S. Department of the Interior, 10 ILR 3013, 3017,

No, 82-3099 (D.D.C. 1982), (“The longstanding coniroversy that has divided the Indian tribes
[sic] into competing factions has cast into doubt the representativeness of the General Council
and its officers, and has threatened the integrity of the trust funds over which the BIA has
ultimate authority and responsibility.”) (citations omitted). The key, therefore, to determining
whether a group claiming to be leaders or a document held out as a governing document should
be accepted by the Department as such, therefore, is to determine whether the group or the
document reflects the will of the membership. Ransom, 69 F. Supp. 2d at 153; Mouris v. Watt,
640 F.2d 404 (D.C.Cir. 1981); cf. Goodface, 708 F.2d at 339 (district court must defer to tribal
process to resolve election dispute); see also Potts, 533 F.2d at 528 (claims by Business
Committee member against BIA dismissed because BIA’s actions were supported by a majority
of the tribe). The federal-tribal relationship, thus, is founded on the premise that the tribal

governing documents and government reflect the will of the tribal membership.

D. Defendants’® Position Is Consistent With the Canons of Statutory
Construction

In addition to the federal-tribal relationship, canons of statutory construction also support
the conclusion that governing documents must be supported by the will of the tribal membership.
First, courts presume that Congress knows the law when it passes a statute. Garrett v. United
States, 471 U.S. 773, 793-94 (1985); Albernaz v. United States, 450 U.S, 333, 341-42 (1981).

Because Congress is presumed to have known the law regarding the federal-tribal relationship
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when it passed Section 476(h), Section 476(h) implicitly contains a reflection of that relationship
by requiring that 2 majority of the tribal members support the tribe’s governing document.
Second, it is a cardinal rule of statutory construction that a statute is to be read as a whole.
Washineton State Dep’t of Social and Health Services v. Keffler, 537 U.S. 371, 384 n. 7 (2003).
This means that sections of the same act are to be read together so as to be consistent. See, e.g.,

King v. Shaefer, 940 F.2d 1182, 1185 (8" Cir. 1951) cited in Keffler, id. In order to read

Sections 476(a) and 476(h) consistently, Section 476(a)’s requirement of majority support must
also apply equally to Section 476(h). Finally, it is a canon of construction that when a specific

section and a general section conflict, the specific section controls. Cohn v. Federal Bureau of

Prisons, 302 F. Supp. 2d 267, 273 (S.D.N.Y. 2004); Rodriguez v. West, 189 F.3d 1351, 1353

(Fed. Cir. 1999), cert. denied, 529 U.S. 1004 (2000). In this case, because Section 476(a) is more
specific than Section 476(h), the Section 476(a) provision requiring majority support controls,
Under these rules of construction, the requirement of majority approval contained in Section
476(a), therefore, also applies to Section 476(h).

In sum, in order for the Department to accept a governing document under the [RA, the
document must reflect the will of the tribal membership. This is based on the nature of the
federal-tribal relationship, as well as the IRA itself. Governing documents, whether adopted
under Section 476(a) or recognized under Section 476(h), must, therefore, be adopted by a
majority of the tribal members. This well-reasoned interpretation of the Department of the
Interior (which is charged with administering the IRA}) can properly be utilized by a court for

guidance. Olmstead v. L.C. en rel. Zimring, 527 U.S. 581, 597-598 (1991). The Court must

uphold the agency’s interpretation so long as it is reasonable. Safe Food & Fertilizer v. EPA, 350
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F.3d 1263,1268, 358 U.S. App. D.C. 416 (D.C. Cir. 2003.)

E. Plaintiff Fails to Stafe a Claim Because It Fails To Allege That A Majority
Adopted Its Constitution or the Tribal Resolution Establishing a Forum.

Plaintiff asserts that Defendants violated Section 476 (and in turn the APA) by refusing to
accept its constitution as a legitimate governing document, and by refusing to recognize its
resolution establishing a tribal forum. {Complaint Para. 49 (a) & (b), and 53-59). But nowhere
in its Complaint does the Plaintiff assert that the constitution, or the Resolution were adopted by,
or even enjoyed the support of, the majority of the tribe. Indeed, this lack of support is exactly
why, in March 2004, the Bureau of Indian Affairs (“BIA™) refused to recognize the constitution
and Ms. Burley as the Chairman. Plaintiff, in its litigation in the Eastern District of California,
has asserted it has a potential membership of 250. Yet, it has asserted no evidence of the
participation of the 250 in the current tribal membership.

In a letter from Superintendent Dale Risling of the BIA to Ms. Burley, dated March 26,
2004, (Plaintiff's Exhibit 3), the BIA explained that it could not accept the Plaintiff’s constitution
because it did not reflect the will of the majority of the tribal membership:

Where a tribe that has not previously organized seeks to do so, BIA also has a

responsibility to determine that the organizational efforts reflect the involvement of the

whole tribal community. We have not seen evidence that such general involvement was
attempted or has occurred with the purported organization of your tribe. . .. To our

knowledge, the only persons of Indian descent involved in the tribe’s organization efforts,
were vou and your two daughters.

1d. (Emphasis added). Defendants found, therefore, that the constitution, reflected only the will
of Ms. Burley and her two daughters; it did not reflect the will of the membership as a whole.
Accordingly, the BIA’s decision not to accept it as an organizational document was consistent

with case law and the standards of the IRA.
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The Plaintiff asserts also that the Defendants’ failure fo recognize the Tribe's Resolution
establishing a tribal forum viclates the IRA. Defendant Olsen addressed the issue of the Tribe’s
forum in a February 11, 20035, letter to Mr. Yakima Dixie, a member of the Tribe who opposes
Ms. Burley’s control of the Tribe. In his letter, Defendant Olsen concluded that the Tribe did not
have a forum that the BIA could recognize because it is not an “organized” Tribe. He wrote:

In light of the BIA’s letter of March 26. 2004, that the Tribe is not an organized tribe,
however. the BIA does not recognize any tribal government, and therefore, cannot defer
to any tribal dispute resolution process at this time. Iunderstand that a Mr. Troy M.
Woodward has held himself out as an Administrative Hearing Officer for the Tribe and
purported to conduct a hearing to resolve your complaint against Ms. Burley. Please be
advised that the BIA does not recognize Mr. Woodward as a tribal official or his hearing
process as a legitimate tribal forum.

(emphasis added) (Plaintiff's Exhibit 4). Plaintiff’s claim that Defendants viclated the IRA by
failing to recognize this forum should be dismissed for the same reason that the tribal
constitution claim must fail - until the Tribe as a whole becomes “organized” and adopts its
governing documents, there is no forum for the Department to recognize. Both the tribal
constitution and tribal forum claims flowed from the March 26, 2004, decision letter. Thus, the
conclusions contained in and/or flowing from the March 26™ decision letter are neither arbitrary
nor capricious. In addition, these conclusions do not constitute an abuse of discretion.

As demonstrated above, nothing in Section 476(h) or its legislative history imposes a duty
on the Department to recognize the organization of a tribe, unless it is supported by the will of
the greater tribal community. Plaintiff has failed to allege any facts to demonstrate that its
constitution ever received the support of the majority of the greater Tribal community. To the
contrary, Superintendent Risling’s March 26, 2004, letter makes clear that the Department

declined to accept the Tribe’s constitution as a legitimate governing document precisely because
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it did not reflect the will of the greater tribal membership. This, in turn, caused the Depariment
to determine that Ms. Burley could not be recognized as a tribal chairperson and that the Tribe’s
forum could not be recognized as a legitimate forum. Accordingly, Plaintiff’s claims under the
IRA should be dismissed for failure to state a claim under Rule 12(b){(6) because the Defendants
did not viclate the IRA in refusing 1o recognize the tribal constitution, or tribal forum.
CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Defendants request that this case be dismissed for lack of
subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to FRCP 12(b)(1). In the alternative, the Defendant request
that this case be dismissed for failure to state a claim upon which relief may be granted pursuant
to FRCP 12(b)(6)}-.
Dated this 5™ day of August, 2005,

Respectfully submitted,

Electronically signed

JAMES M. UPTON

Trial Attomey

General Litigation Section

Environmental & Natural Resources Division
U.8. Department of Justice

P.O. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044

Telephone: (202) 305-0482
Fax: (202) 305-0506

Attorneys for Defendants

Attachments

% A proposed Order is attached.
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United States Department of the Inferior

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
Centrnt California Agency
650 Capitol MelT, Suite B-500 W REFLY REFER'TE
Sacramento, CA 958 14-471¢

50

’g 34 _.’J-,' -

0CT 2 6 2005

Sylviz Butley

Califormia Valley Miwok Trihe
10601 Escondido PL

Stockten, CA. 925212

Dear Ms. Burley:

This letter shall serve to acknowledge receipt at the Central California Agency of
California Valley Miwol Tribal Resolution No. R-1-09-26-2005, on Detoker 17, 2005,

This resofutior muthorized the Tribe to Reprogram Fiscal Year 2006, 2007 and 2008

Tribal Priarity (TPAY Allocation fitnds in the amount of $3,000 smpually into the Bureau
of Indian Affairs (BIA) Fee-1o-Trust Frogram

Since the RLA, does not recoglize any governing body for the Tribs, nor dowe currently
have 4 government-to-government relationship with the California Valley Miwolk Tribe,
we are refurning this resolution withaut actiorn

If you have any questions, please do nat hesitate to contact Raymond Fry, Tribal
Operations Qfficer af (916) 978-3784,

Superimendent

CVIMT-2011-000961
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UNITED STATES DISTRICY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE,
Formerly, SHEEP RANCH OF ME-WUK

INDIANS OF CALIFORNIA,
Plaintiff,
v. No. 1:08CV00739
Judge James Robertson
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
GALE A. NORTON, Seeretary of the
Interier,

JAMES I, CASON, Associate Deputy
Secretary of the Interior,’

Defendants.

THIRD DECLARATION OF RAYMOND FRY

! David W. Anderson, formerly the Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs, is no
longer with the Department of the Interior. The position of Assistant Secretary - Indian
Affairs is vacant. The duties of the Assistant Secretary have been delegated by the
Secretary of the Interior to the Aszociate Deputy Secretary by Secretarial Order 3259,
dated Pebruary 8, 2005, 23 amended on Angust 11, 2005. James E. Cason, Associate
Deputy Secretary is substituted for Mr. Anderson pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 25(d).
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L Raymond Fry, declare:

1, T am the Tribal Operations Officer for the Central California Agency (CCA), Bureau of
Indian Affairs, located in Sacramento, California and I have personal knowledge of the
facts set forth in this Declaration.

2. Y have held that position since June of 1991, and 1 have worked and continue to work
extensively with a large number of the 54 federally recognized tribes in our service
atea to organize their tribes and develop and strengthen their governmental
infrastructures by conducting training conferences for all tribes covering a variety of
subjects and by providing technical support and essistance to these tribes resulting in
an enhanced government-to-government relationship between these tribes and the
BIiA

3. Tt was and continues to be the practice within the BIA’s Pacific Region in California,
that if a tribe is federally recognized but has not formally re-urganized by adopting a
written governing document at an election duly noticed and open to all adults who are
eligible for membership in the tribe, that the BTA would identify a spokesperson for the
tribe whom we could maintain contact with on behalf of the tribe until such re-
organization occurred.

4, On September 7, 1994, I assisted the California Valley Miwok Tribe, then kmown as
the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, by preparing two documents for the Tribal Spokesperson

M. Yakima K. Dixie, to consider and if acceptable sign and I have been working with

California Vailey Miwok

2 Tribe v. United States
3rd Declaration of
Raymond Fry
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the California Valley Miwok Tribe since July of 1994, and on tribal leadership issues
since 1998,

5. Mr. Yakima K. Dhde was a son of Mabel Hedges Dixde, the last occupant of the
groups small, 0.9 of an acre Rancheria. As one of four heirs to Ms. Dixie’s estate, Mr.
Dixde is considered a divided interest holder of the former Rancheria land.

6. The other initial members of the group were Ms. Silvia Burley, her two danghters and
minor granddaughter. Ms. Burley’s ties to the Rancheria are remote. In a deposition
taken in an earlier cage brought to challenge the transfer of the land to M. Dixie,
which Ms. Burley has appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals where it is
awaiting a decision, Ms, Burley indicated that Mabel Dixde’s mother was her
grandfather’s sister,

7. By certified fetter dated March 26, 2004, from the BIA, to Ms. Silviz Burley (see
Eohibit 1;Io. 1), the Superintendent stated that he recognized Ms. Butdey as a person of
sotie authority within the Indien Community, but he did not recognize the Tribe as
being organized or as having any dully adopted governing document. In accordance
with provisions of 25 CFR Part 2, Administrative Appeals, Ms, Burley was provided
notice of her appeal tights and a copy of the regulations, but she failed to file 8 Notice
of Appeal or an Appeal within the prescribed 30-day timeframe,

8. By letter dated February 11, 2005, to Mr. Yakima Dixie, of the Sheep Ranch
Rancheria of Miwok Indians of California, Michael D. d]sen, Principal Deputy, Acting
Assistant Secretary-Indian Affairs, addressed Mr. Dixie’s appeal as well gs referencing

the Central California Agency’s March 26, 2004, correspondence which indicated that

Californis Vailey Miwok
3 Tribe v. United States
' 3rd Declaration of
Raymond Fry
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the tribe was not organized and that the BIA. did not recognize any tribal government

or gaverning document being in effect. (See Exhibit No, 2) Mr. Olsen further stated;

I enconrage you 10 continue, eifher in conjunction with Ms, Burey, other

tribal members, or potential tribal members to continue your efforts to

organize the Tribe along the lines outlined in the March 26, 2004, letter so

that the tribe can become organized and exjoy the full benefits of Federal

recognition.
By letter dated March 7, 2005, addressed to the BIA, CCA, Yakima Dixie made a
formal request for action from Ray Fry, BIA, CCA Tribal Operations Officer "in the
form of a written acknowledgement of his right o organize the tribe . . . in such ferms

as may be mutually agreeable. (See Exhibit No, 3)

10. In an April 8, 2005, fetter to the Superintendent of the Central California Agency, M.

11,

Burley acknowledged the efforts by Judge Kathyrn Lynn, administrative law judge
from the Department's Office of Hearings and Appeals, to mediate the dispute
between the tribe and Mr, Dixie. Ms. Burley’s response to Judge Lynn’s efforts was

to state that Mr. Dixie was a tribal member and that the Tribe had no dispute with him.

. (See Exhibit No. 4) While Ms. Busley stated her belief that the Bureau was

interfering in the internal matter of the Tribe, she alio stated that the Tribe believed it
could work ont solutions that address the core concerns of the BIA while protecting
the sovereignty of the Tiibe,

By letter of August 30, 2005, Mr. Dixie, was notified that e had been dis-enrolled in
accordance with the Miwok Customs and Traditions and with the California Valley

Miwok Tribe’s Enrollment Ordinance.(See Exhibit No. 5).

California Valley Miwok

4 Tribe v. United States
3rd Declaration of
Raymond Fry
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12. Principal Deputy, Acting Assistant Secretary Olsen’s February 11, 20085, letter
included the observation that the first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying
putative tribal members and the offer that [ilf you need guidance or assistance, Ray
Fry (916) 930-3794, of the Central California Agency of the BIA, can advise you how
to go about doing this.Based upon this suggestion, the BIA was contacted by both
tribal factions to set up meetings to discuss the organization of the Tribe. (See Exhibit
No. 2).

13.0Onr March 10, 2005, at 2:00 pm, Mr.Gregory, the Pacific Regional Director, members
of his staff, Mr. Morris, Central California Agency Acting Superintendent, and
members of his staff including myself met with Ms. Silvia Burley, her attorneys, and
tribal staff at the Pacific Regional Office, 1o discuss Mr, Olsen’s February 11, 2005,
leiter. Prior to setting up this meeting, the BIA continuously encouraged each group
to work together in this erganization effort, but Ms, Burley indicated that she did not
want Mr. Dixie or his representatives to be present at this meeting. The central theme
of this meeting was to define roles and responsibilities of the fribe and the BIA in the
overall organization efforts of the tribe.

14, On March 14, 2005, a meeting took place at the Central Californiz Agency between
the Acting Superintendent, Mr. Morris, BIA staff and representatives of both tribal
factions including Yeakima Dixie, Melvin Dixie (Yakima’s brother) their representatives
and a representarive for Ms, Burley, The primary topic of discussion was again, the

organization of the tribe and who would constitute the putative member ¢lass.

California Valley Miwok

5 Tribe v, United States
3rd Declaration of
Raymond Fry
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15. On Tuly 8, 2005, BIA’s Central California Agency staff met with Mr. Yakima Dixie’s
consultants, attorneys, Ms. Dequita Boire {(daughter to Merle Butler, also a divided
interest holder of the Rancheria), Ms, Velma Whitebear and other Jocal Miwok Indians
and Ms. Carla Bell, attorney for Ms. Burley. Mr. Yakima Dixie was unable attend this
meeting. The Yakima Dixie group requested that Ms. Bell not be allowed to
participate in the meeting as they wanted Ms, Burley there as they believed that at this
juneture of time, she was the only individnal who conld make positive contributions to
the discussions. To acconimodate all, the BIA’s Agency Superintendent, Mr. Burdick
and myself met separately with both Mr. Dixie’s gronp as well as with Ms. Bell. Mr,
Dixie’s group was asked by the BIA to submit a proposal for organizing the iribe.
This request was passed on to Ms, Bell, who indicated that she would relay this
information back to Ms, Burley, There were no documents provided by Ms. Burley to
have Ms. Bell be the designated representative for Ms. Burley’s group.

16. The maix topics of discussion at these meetings included identifying the putative
members of the Tribe, otganizational processes that should be considered and
concerns the Dixie group had regarding the use of P.L. 93-63% funds by the Tribe,
under Ms. Burley’s leadership, the use of the non-gaming revenue by Ms. Burley’s
faction and the lack of involvement at these multiple meetings by Ms. Burley herself.

17. The Bureaw’s efforts to assist in the orgarization of the Tribe are reflected in part in
the attached collection of correspondence, meeting sign-in sheets and minutes. (See

Exhibit No. 6)

California Valley Miwok
6 Tiibe v. Urited States
3rd Declaration of
Raymond Fry
CVMT-2011-001087



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 161 of 270
01/03/2008 13:35 FAX 916 930 3780 A CENTRAL CAL AGENCY, o008

Case 1:05-cv-00739-JR Document 31-2  Filed 01/03/06 Page 8 of 127

18. The enhancement of self-determination by federaily recognized tribes was captured in

19.

P.L. 93-638, the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act of 1975 (25
U.S.C. ' 450 et seq.)(commonly referred to simply as “638"), which stated the
following purposes:

This Aet is to provide maximum Yodian participation in the

Government and education of the Indian people: to provide

for the fill participation of Indian tribes in programs and

services conducted by the Federal Government for Indians

and to encourage the development of human resources of

the Indian people: to establish a program of assistance to

upgrade Indian education: to support the tight of Indian

citizens fo control their own educational aetivities: and for

other purposes.
The regulations implementing the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance
Act, contained in 25 CFR Part 900, prescribe the coptracting process sad the roles and
responsibilities of the tribes, as well as the federal government in the tribal self-
determination process contained in P, 93-638. The Act and these federal regulations
provide significant latitnde to ttibes who are proposing to enter into a contractual
relationship with the federal government. For instance, a tribe may contract to
administer ell or part of a BIA anthorized program, for periods of time ranging from
one to three years in length, These programs may be redesigned to meet the tribe’s
needs as long as they do not violate federal law or regulation. Once the contracts are
reviewed and awarded by the BIA, the provisions of those contracts must be met. An
example of non-compliance may occur if specific funding is set aside by BIA for the
administration of 2 particular program and the tribe attempts to reprogram those

earmarked finds for other purposes, without first BIA approval for revising or

California Velley Miwok
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modifying thejr contract, which is a process required 10 redefine the use of those
funds.

20. The Fee-To-Trust Cotisortium that the California Valley Miwok Tribe had proposed

21

to join in FY 2006, 2007 and 2008, was inifially developed by the tribes located within
the service area of BIA's Central California Agency in 2000, for the express purpose
of assisting tribes who had or who had anticipated acquiring land in fee, put foto trust.
Although the process by which the United States puts land info frust for the benefit of
Indians end tribes is a BIA responsibility, BIA’s Central California Agency, with 54
federally recognized tribes covering 26 counties in its service area, could not prompily
process all of the pending fee-to-trast applications with the Realty staff and resources
available, To remedy this, the tribes agreed fo entfer into 8 Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the BIA and to provide fanding to the BIA to hire
additional staff to carryout this process. {See Exhibit No. 7)
With the lack of sufficient staff to perform realty and environmental services required
to process fee-to-trust land applications throughout the entire Pacific Region, the Fee-
To-Trust consortium was expanded in 2001, to federally recognized tribes located
throughout the state of California. The administrative oversight was elevated to the
BIA’s Pacific Regional Office. Requirements for tribes to join this Fee-To-Trust
Consortium, included adopting 2 separate resolution, contributing & minfmum of
$3,000.00 to the consortium and entering into an MOU. As of August 2005, there
were 56 tribes participating in this Fee-To-Trust Consortium throughont the State of

California. {See Exhibit No, 8 - sample resolution).

California Valley Miwok
3 Tiibe v. United States
3rd Declaration of
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22. T am advised by the Solicitor’s office fu Washington, D.C., that the Department has

23.

initiated a review of the avthority for and appropriateness of this fee to trust program
in California generally.

California Valley Miwok Tribal Resolution No, R-1-09-26-2005, was enacted by Ms,
Silvia Butley, Chairperson; Ms. Anjelica Paull;, Vice-Chairperson; and Ms, Rashel
Reznor, Secretary-Treasurer, on September 26, 2005, (See Exhibit No, 9) Resclution
R—I-OQ—ﬁG—ZOOS, was received by the Agency on October 7, 2005, I reviewed the
resolution to determine whether it was properly anthorized(role of the Branch of
Tribal Operations) by the recognized tribal government and prepared a response for
the signature of BIA’s Central California Agency Superintendent, which was issued
October 26, 2005. (See Exhibit No. 10).

24, The reasons stated for returning the tribal resolution was that the "BIA. does not

recognize any governing body for the Tribe, nor do we ¢urrently have a government -
to-government relationship with the Californis Valley Miwok Tribe.” Although I did
not reference the March 26, 2004, letter of Superintendent Dale Risling to Ms, Silvia
Butley, the reasons I gave for taking no action oz the resolution were based upon the
decigion contained in that letter. Superintendent Risting decided, based upon a review
of a copy of the tribal constitution sent to the BIA (and other information available to
the Superintendent), that the Tribe was not "organized” because it had ot identified
the members of the "greater tribal community,” and, thus, the Tribe's organizational
efforts up to that point "did not reflect the involvement of the whole tribal

community.” The Superintendent concluded that the BIA could neither recognize the

Califaroia Valley Miwok
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23,

tribal constitution nor Ms, Burley as the Tribal Chairperson. 1 believe that my
statement that the "BIA. does not recognize any governing body for the Tribe"
accurately reflects the language and intent of the March 26, 2004, letfer. The March
26th letter does not appear to support the second stated reason for taking no action on
the Tribal resclution, that is, that there is no "government-to-government relationship"
between the Tribe and the federal government. There is & government-to-government
relationship between the Tribe and the federal government but that relationship can not
function fully in the absence of duly authorized representatives of the entire tribal
COHLTNItY,
The BIA advised Ms. Silvia Burley by letter dated October 28, 2005, it was scheduling
an annnal on-site monitoring visit for November 28, 2005 (30 day Notice provided)
and that the monitoring tearn would be composed of four individuals. (See Bxhibit
No. 11). The monitoring visit was agreed upon by the Tribe and BIA throngh the FY
2005 Annual Funding Agregment that was a part of the PL 93-638 which states:

The Secretary shall provide monitoting sexvices to ensure

the proper delivery of program sexvices to Indian people,

compliance to Contract rerms, and to the Act, pursuant to

1X(C)E) and (i) and Attachment 2 (V) (2) and (¢) of
ihis contract.

26. The October 28, 2005, letter informed the Tribe of the purpose of the monitoring visit

and provided a copy of the standard guidelines for such visits entitled Purpose and

Strategy - Official Monitoring Visit. (See Exhibit No, 12).

California Valley Miwok
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27. A November 7, 2005, letter from Ms. Burley to the Agency Superintendent BIA,
Central California Agency, stated that [u]ntil we can reach agreement on the
composition of a new monitoring team or appointment of a Special Master, the Ttibe
respectfully declines your request to schedule an on-site monitoring visit on November
28, 2005, (See Exhibit No. 13),

28, By letter dated November 15, 2005, the Agency acknowledged receipt of Ms. Burley's
November 7, 2005, response and request. In the spirit of cooperation the BIA. changed
the makenp of the monitoring team and reaffirmed the scheduled monitoring trip date
of November 28, 2005, at 10:00AM. (See Exhibit No. 14).

29, By letter dated November 17, 2005, Ms, Burley requested to reschedule the
November 28, 2005, monitoring meeting to December 20, 2005, at 10:00 AM. (See
Exhibit No. 15 ). Mis. Butley also stated in her letter that she would have a
councilmember, tribal staff and legal counsel in attendance at the monitoring meeting
and raformed the BIA that the monitoring visit would be video taped.

30. By letter to Ms. Burley dated November 23, 2005, the Superintendent, BIA Central
California Agency, indicated that the proposed December 20, 2005, date for
monitoring was not feasivle due to the our team’s schedule, but that BIA would be
willing to meet on either December 5, 2005, or December 12, 2005, at 10:00 am..(See
Exhibit No. 16). The Superintendent agreed to having the tribe’s proposed

participants in attendance and video taping of the meefing.

California. Valley Miwolk
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31. By facsimile dated November 18, 2005, Ms. Burley, confirmed her availability for
meeting with the Superintendent on December 12, 2005, at 1:00 pm. {See Exhibit No.
17).

32. By facsimile dated November 28, 2005, Ms. Burley ugreed to the December 12, 2005,
monitoring meeting date. Ms, Burley also requested to meet with the Superintendent
of the BIA Central California Agenoy, to discuss issues prior to the monitoring visit,
(See Exhibit No. 18).

33. Inaletter dated December 6, 2005, the BIA Agency reminded Ms. Burley that she
had cancelled the December 12, 2005, monitoring visit via & facsimile dated December
6, 2005. (See Exhibits No. 19 and 20), The Agency also indicated to Ms. Burley that
it was imperative that monitoring take place and that December 20, 2005, would be 2
good date to complete this process.

34. By letter dated December 14, 2005, Ms, Burley canceiled without explanation the

monitor meeting scheduled for December 20, 2005, (See Exhibit No. 21).

Pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. ¥ 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that

the foregoing is true and correct,

Bxecuted on this 3 day of January 2006 (et
OND FRY
California Valley Miwok
12 Tribe v. United States
3rd Declaration of
Raymend Fry
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g United States Department of the Interior
' BUREAU GF INDIAN AFFAIRS
Ceitrs] Callfornia Agency . e
ﬁwwéapib:! Madl, Sujwe 3500 - mtmwm

_ Sycramanio, CA 988144710

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. 7003 1620 0002 3892 1019
RETURN RECEIRT REQUESTED a
: . By -6 208

Ms, Silvia Butley
10601 BscondldoPlace
Stockton, California 95212

CERTIFTED MAIL NO. 7003 1680 0002 3892 1007
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Me. Yakima K. Didie

¢/o M. Chedd Everona
2054 University Avemue, #407-
Berkeley, California 94704

Dear Ms, Busley and Mr, Ditie:

The Burenn of Indian Affairs (BIA) remeins coratnitted to sssist the California Valley Miwok
Triba (Tribe) (formerly Sheep Ranch Rancheria of the Me-Wuk Indians of California) inits
offorts 1o reorganize 8 forraal governmental pructure that 18 represemtative of all Miwok Indians
who can establish a basis for their jnterest in the Tsibe and Js acceptable to the clear majority of
shose Indizns, We are writing you becayse of your cleim of leadership of the Tribe. -

The Gentral Cslifornia Agency (Agency) has been meeting with both of you and yomr
representtives for some time to discuss ssues and 1o offer sasistance in yous organizational _
offora for the Tribe, Xt i evident; however, that the ongoing lead ership dispute is af au Inpasse -
ond the ikelibood of this impasse changing soon seerns to be remote, Therefore, we renew our
offer 1o assist the Tribe inthe organizatiops] protess, Qur intersion is not to interfere v\z:ﬂz the
Tribe's right to gavern itself, Rather, we make this o}ﬁt consistent with the well-established
principle thet the BIA hies & responsibility 1o detenmine that it it Gealing with & government that
i represemative of the Tribe as 8 whole, The autherity and vesponsibility to take this action
becomes evident once there is clear evidence that the dispute between compeling ]qu.!cr_ahip
faetions, such as yours, threatens to jmpair the government-to-govemnment relationship between

the Tribe and the Ubited States,

The Agency, thercfore, will publish a notice of a general cuuncll meeting oi‘t'h? :I‘ﬁbe tobe
sponsored by the BIA In the newspapers within the Miwok region. This will initiate the
reorganization process.. The notice shall invite the members of the Tribe and potem:al members
10 the metting where the members will discuss the jssues and needs confronting the Tribe. We
- have used this sort of general council meeting spproach in other instances 10 help tribes
reorganize when for varions reasops the tibes Ia cked An organized tribal government that
represented 1be entire membership. .

CVMT-2011-001261
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It sppesrs that you each have determined your membership criteris, and membership, and
developed-constinigons or governing documents. We understand, howevey, yoo do not sgree on
certain jssues that are fundamental to the process of building an orpanized government We
proposs to discuss the following jssues that are preventing you From moving forward s3 8 unified
tribe; - -

form of govarnment;
sdoption of 2 constitution; B i .
organization under a fideral siatute (should the tribe decide to adopt 2 mﬁmﬁm};
shonld the tribe adopt 8 constitution, what constitation will be used: the Dixie or Burley
constitution, combipation of both, or angther; o ‘ .

o determiniig the censns where membership s first listed, i.¢,, 1916 Sheep Ranch

Rencheri censug or othey document, ‘ ;

» dctermining leadership of the wribe, ie., bolding & transitional clecﬁon_qr agresing to

: some type of power sharing, -

' council first needs to derennine the type of government your tribe will rdopt. Tribes
giﬁ%ﬁys adopt constitutions; some goveon kecording to the fribe's tradition or bave some
sort of power shéring in an open participxtory type of government, Next, the general cowacil
needs t0 agree to the census or other documents that es&abhs!:cs the original members of the »
Rancheria. That census should be the starting polet from which the tribe develops membership
crsterin, The immediate goal is determining membership of the ibe, Onoe membership is -
established and the general council determines the form of government, then the leadership
Issues can be resolved,

will coordinate the meeting by setting she date, time, locetion and other
f,::,iﬁ;ﬁs, but we would appreciate your mgge_sﬁons, date, time, Jocation, and pc;saib]e
agentze terns. The BIA uffers the assistance of an independent cbsarvcr_/n_xedmarjo Tacilitate ﬂte _
ynecling or meetings. Fleaserespond to the Agency soncerning your willingness to participate in
a mesting to diseuss the issues in depih and begin the regolution provess.

We very much desire that you both participete. We intend to condu.:_i a fair and o'?m process in
which supporiers of ¢ach of you can participate md_b_e heard. We will proceed with this process,
however, even if one or both of you declines o pasbcipate,

Please comact Carcl Rogers-Davis, Acting Tribal Operations Officer, Central California Agency,
at (916) 930-3764, to work with her on setting up e meeting,

Sir_wm‘ely, : ,
¢ . /L/

Troof Burdick
Superintendent

cer  Director, Pacific Region
Regional Solicitor” _
Director, Bureau of Indiap Affairs
Assistant Solicitor, Branch of Tribal Governin ent & Alaska

CVMT-2011-001262 ~ -
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Description

PUBLIC NOTICE The Bureau of Indian Affairs, Central California Agency (Agency} plans to
agsist the Callfornla Valley Miwok Trike, aka, Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe} in its efforts to
organize a fomal governmental structure that is acceptable to all members, The first step in
the organizational process Is to idantify putative members of the Tribe who may be eligible to
participate In all phases of the organizational process of the Tribe. Thergfore, if you beiieve you
are a lineal descendant of a person(s) listed helow, you will need to complete Form
OMB#1075-0153, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Request for Certificate of Degree of Indian or
Alaska Native Blood, and provide a certified copy of a birth certificate, death certificate, or
other official documentation as required fo establish your relationship to a person(s} listed
below or other decuments acceptable to the Secretary of the Interior (Secratary), and submit
them to the Bureau of Indian Affairs, Central Californla Agency, 650 Capitol Mall, 8-500,
Sacramento, California 85814, postmarked on or before May 25, 2007, You may contact Carol
Rogers-Davls, Acting Tribal Gperations Officer, at (916) 930-3764, or Tia Sam, Tribal
Operations Specialist, at (916) 930-3765, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Central California Agency,
for the necessary information and to obtain the forms that will assist the Bureau Team in
determining your eligibfiity. 1. August 13, 1915 - Census of Indians at or near Sheepranch,
Calaveras County, California, which listed the following: 1. Peter Hodge 2. Annie Hodge 3.
Malinda Hodge (Daughter of Peter and Annie Hodge) 4. Lena Hodge (Daughter of Peter and
Annie Hodge) 5. Tom Hadge (Son of Peter and Annie Hodge) 6. Andy Hodge { Son of Peter
and Annle Hodge) 7. Jeff Davis 8, Betsey Davis 9. Mrs, Limpey 10. John Tecumchey 11, Pinkey
Tecumchey 12. Mamy Duncan (Granddaughter of Jeff Davis) 2. June 6, 1935, Approved List of
Voters for Indian Reorganization Act of Sheep Ranch Rancherla, Calaveras County, California,
which listed the following: 1. Jeff Pavis 3. August 11, 1564, Approved Plan for Distribution of
the Assets of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, in accordance with provistons of Public Law 85-671,
approved August 18, 1958, and amended by Public Law 88-419, which listed the following: 1.
Mabel Hadge Dixle All indlviduals who have been determined to be eligible to pasticipate in the
organization of the Tribe will be notified by letter fram the Agency. All individuals not
determined eligible will be noticed of their right to appeal to the BIA, Paciflc Regional Director
within 30 days of recelpt of decision. Upon rendering final dedslons regarding appeals filed,
the Agency will notify alt Individuals determined to be eligible of the organizational meeting
which will include an agenda of the next actions to be taken by the group. 4/11, 4/18/07
(CNS-1116998# AMADOR LEDGER DISPATCH April 11, 18 2007-5473
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EXHIBIT B

to

Affidavit of Robert J. Uram in Support of Plaintiffs'
Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Letter from Edith Blackwell, Associate Solicitor, Indian Affairs, to Peter Kaufman,
California Deputy Attorney General (Dec. 2, 2008) (the "Solicitor's Letter'')

CVMT-2011-001572
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR
Washington. D.C. 20240

1W REPMY REFER TOR

In reply, please address to:
Main Interior, Room 6513
Peter Kaufman, Esq.
Deputy Attorney General '
110 West A Street, Suite 1100 DEC 1 2 2008
San Diego, CA 92101

Dear Mr. Kaufinan:

This letter is in response to your telephone inquiry zequesting information on the status of
the leadership for the California Valley Miwok Tribe (CVMT). CVMT presents the
Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) with a unique sifuation. The following summatizes the
history of the Tribe and the curxent leadership dispute.

CVMT began as a rancheria set up for 12 individual Indians in 1916. The goverpment
set aside .92 acres of land on which those twelve individuals could live. In 1933, the sole
adult member of the rancheria voted not to reject the Indian Reorganization Act (IRA).‘
Tn 1966, the Fedetal government andertook to terminate the rancheria by, among other
things, distributing the assets of the yanchexia to the rancheria’s residents. Ultimately, the
Federal government failed to take the steps necessary 1o complete terminate of the
Federal relationship with the rancheria and the rancheria continued to exist, There was
one resident, Mabsl Hodge Dixie. For reasons that are not relevant to your inguiry, the
government did not convey the property to Ms. Dixie stccessfully and vltimately held it
in trust for her. When she died, her heirs inherited the 0.92 acre held in trust by the
governraent, In 1998, Ms, Dixle’s som, Vakima Dixie, resided ot the rancheria land and
was its only known member, That same year, Silvia Butley, a distant relative of Mr.
Dixie, approached Mr. Dixie about adopting her, het two daughters, and her
granddaughter into the Tribe so that they would be eligible for Indian health and
sducation benefits. Mr. Dixie adopted Ms. Burley and her family.

Mr, Dixie and Mz, Burley became ipterested in orgmizing the tribe formally—that is
establishing & tribal government. In 1999, the two of ther approached the BIA for
assistaice. At that time, Mr. Dixie acted as the Tribe’s leader and he held the title of
«Chairman” On April 20, 1999, Ms. Buzley submitted o purported letter of resignation

from Mr. Dixie. The next day, Mr. Dixie asserted he pever resigned his position and
refitsed t0 do so. He claims that Ms, Burley forged hig name on the resignation letier.
After Mr, Dixie’s purported resignation, Ms, Burley became leader of the Tribe, having
been elected by herself and one of her daughters. Ms. Burley claimed the title of

U White It is common for people 1o refer to the Indians of a reservation as voting to accept the IRA, the act

applied to a reservatiofnt unless 2 majority of the Indians voted against its applisation within a year, later
extended for another year. See 25 U.S.C. §478,

CVYMT-2011-001573
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«Chairman.” The BIA accepted her in this position but noted the leadership dispute
between her and Mz, Dixie. On March 7, 2000, the BLA wrote in a letter to Ms, Burley
that it would not interfere in the dispute unless the dispute continued without resolution
and the government-to-government relationship between the United States and the Tribe
became threatened. If the government-to-government relationship were to become
threatened, the BIA advised, it would advise the Tribe to resolve the dispute within a
reasonable period of time.

Ms. Burley and her daughtexs responded by attempting to organize the Tribe. Initially,
they sought to organize the government under the provisions of the Indiat Reorganization
Act, but the BIA failed to call the requisite election on the proposed constitution.

In 2002, counsel purporting to represent the California Valley Miwok Tribe and Ms.
Bucley filed suit in the United States District Court for the Bastern District of California
claimed the United States had breached its trust responsibilities and violated the
California Rancheria by conveying the less than one acre of Tand to Ms. Dixie in 1967
when the tribe had potentially 250 nembers. The court dismissed the anit on grounds
that it was filed beyond the six-yeat statute of limitations. The Ninth Cireuit Court of
Appeals affirmed in an unpublished opinion, See California Valley Miwok Tvibe v.
United States, No, 04-16676, 2006 WL 2373434 (9* Cir., Aug. 17,2006))

Ultimately, in 2003, Ms. Burley tried to organize {he Tribe under the Tribe’s inherent
sovereiga authority without the supervision of the BIA, Ms. Butley submitted the Tribe's
constitution to the BI4, for informational purposes. The BIA reviewed the constitution
and determined that it was not valid because Ms. Burley had failed in the process of
developing and adopting the constitution to inchude other Indians with legitimate ties to
the Tribe. On March 26, 2004, the BIA informed Ms, Buzley that the Tribe remained
unorganized and had no government. Because the Tribe had no government, it could not
have a governmental |eader. The BIA wotld not recognize Ms, Burley as Cheirman, that
is, the governmental Jeader of the Tribe. Instead the BIA would desl with her asa
“gpokesperson’ or “person of authority” for the Tribe for the purposes of awarding
Federal contracts.

Meanwhile, Mr. Dixie continued to assert that he was the hereditary leader of the Tribe
and that he had never resigned his position, Tn March 2005, 2 representative of the
Asgistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Jecided Mr. Dixie's appeal of the BIA’s acceptance
of Ms. Burley as tribal Chairman. Tn the letter dismissing Mr, Dixie’s appeal, the Deputy
Assistant Secretary informed Mr. Dixie that Ms. Burley was pot the pgovernmental Jeader
of the Tribe, In fact, the letier explained, the Tribe could have nio governmental leader
until it kad & government developed through an organizational process that included the
wroader tribal community of other Indians with legitimate ties to the Tribe.

Thus, the BIA faced 2 stand-off betweets Ms. Burley. who jnsisted the Tribe bad
organized propesly under her constitution, and M. Dixie, who claimed to be the
hereditary leader of the Tribe. Ms. Burley sued the BIA In F ederal district courtin the
District of Colurabia, claiming that the B1A itaproperly denied her constitution’s validity.
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The district court granted the BIA’s motion to dismiss for failure to state 2 claim. The
Court of Appeals affimned. See California Valley Miwok Tribe v, United States, 424 F.
Supp. 2d 197 (DD.C. 2006), 4f°d 515 F 34 1262 (D.C. Cir. 2008)

When the district court granted its motion to dismiss, the B1A worked with both Ms.
Butley and Mr. Dixie to assist the Tribe in organizing iiself, After initial efforts by the
BIA. to find a mutually agreeable solution, Ms. Buxley chose not to cooperate. The BIA
deeided to injtiate the organization process by identifying those persons who are lineal
descendents of the original twelve Indians for whom the government established the
ranchetia, the single resident who voted in 1935 on the JRA, and the sole digtributee,
Mabel Hodge Dixie. Ms. Buley appealed the BIA’s decision to the Interior Board of
Indien Appeals (IBIA), California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Pacific Regional Director,
Docket No.: IBIA 07-100-A. Under the Departments regulations, 2 decision of a
Regional Director that has been appealed to IBLA is not final and effective except under
certain circurnstances, not present here, which effectively stayed the BIA’s effort to assist
the Tribe in organizing itself. See 25 CER. § 2.6()

When the BIA is faced with a situation such as this, when it cannot determine who the
legitimate leader of the Tribe is, the BIA paust first defer to tha Tribe to resolve the
dispute. See, e.g., Sania Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 65 (1978Y; Fisher v.
District Court, 424 U 8. 382, 386-89 (1976); Symith v. Babbitt, 100 F.3d 556, 559 (8™ Cir.
1998); Wheeler v. Department of the Interior, 811 F.2d 549 (10® Cir. 1987). The
difficulty with CVMT is that becauss it has no goverament, it has no goverpmental forum
for resolving the dispute. In similar situations, the BIA would turn to 2 tribe’s general
council, that is, the collective membership of the tribe. Jokannes Wanatee V. Acting
Minneapolis Area Directo?, 11 IBIA 93 (1997). But because CVMT has not even taketi
the injtial step of determining its membership, a general council meeting is not possible.

The only answer is for the BlA10 wait for the Tribe to orgafize itself. The Tribe willt be
able to do so once the IBIA decides Ms. Burley’s appeal. The IBIA has a significant
workload but the briefing onMs. Butley’s appeal was completed essentially a year 220
and the D.C. Circuit Court opinion of earlier this year has been served as supplemental
authority in the IBIA proceedings s0 We could expect a decision at any time. In the
meantime, neither the BIA nox aty court has authority to resolve the leadexship dispute
that is crippling the Tribe. See, Goodfuce v. Grassrope, 708 F.2d 335 (8" Cir. 1983).

I hope that this letter provides all the information you need. Should you need additional
information ot have further questions, please contact Jane Smith (202-208-5808), the
member of my staff nandling this matter,

Sincerely,

=V g A

Edith R. Blackwell
Associate Sclicitor, Indian Affairs

CVMT-2011-001575



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 178 of 270

APPENDIX DOCUMENT 17



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 179 of 270

United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washington, DC 20240

DEC 22 2010

Ms. Sylvia Burley

California Valley Miwok Tribe
10601 Escondido Place
Stockton, California 95212

Dear Ms. Burley:

This leiter is to inform you of the Department of the Interior’s response to the decision of the
Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Pacific Regional
Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (January 28, 2010) (Decision).

The Decision stemmed from Sylvia Burley’s appeal of the Bureau of Indian Affairs Pacific
Regional Director’s April 2, 2007 decision to affitm the Central California Agency
Superintendent in his efforts to “assist” the Tribe in organizing a tribal government. In the
Decision, the IBIA dismissed each of Ms. Burley’s three complaints for lack of jurisdiction.’
The IBIA did, however, refer Ms. Burley’s second claim to my office, because it was in the
nature of a tribal enrollment dispute. Decision, 51 IBIA at 122,

This Jetter is intended to address the limited issues raised by Ms. Burley®s second complaint, as
referred to my office by the IBIA: the BIA’s involvement in the Tribe’s affairs related to
government and membership.

Background

This difficult issue is rooted in the unique history of the California Valley Miwok Tribe, A
relatively small number of tribal members had been living on less than 1 acre of land in
Calaveras County, California known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, since 1916. In 1966, the
Department was preparing to terminate the Tribe pursuant to the California Rancheria
Termination Act, as part of that dark chapter of Federal Indian policy known as the “Termination
Era.” As part of this effort, the Department had intended to distribute the assets of the Sheep
Ranch Rancheria to Ms. Mabel Dixie, as the only eligible person to receive the assets,

The Department never completed the process of terminating the Tribe, and the Tribe never lost
its status as a sovereign federally-recognized tribe.

* Ms. Burley's complaints were: 1.) The BIA Pacific Regional Director's April 2, 2007 decision violated the Tribe's FY
2007 contract with the BIA under the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act, or the Reglonal
Director’s decision constituted an unlawful reassumption of the contract; 2.) the Tribe is already organized, and
the BIA's offer of assistance constitutes an Impermissible intrusion Into tribai government and membership
matters that are reserved exclusively to the Tribe; and, 3.) the Reglonal Director erred in stating that the Tribe was
never terminated and thus is not a “restored” tribe, Decision, 51 IBIA at 104,

1
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In 1998, Yakima Dixie, a tribal member acting as the leader of the Tribe, adopted Sylvia Burley,
Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace as members of the Tribe. At that time, the
Department recognized those five individuals, along with Yakima Dixie’s brother Melvin, as
members of the Tribe. Decision, 51 IBIA at 108.

On September 24, 1998, the Superintendent of the Bureau of Indian Affairs Central California
Agency advised Yakima Dixie, then serving as Tribal Chairman, that Yakima Dixie, Melvin
Dixie, Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristan Wallace were able to
participate in an effort to reorganize under the Indian Reorganization Act. California Vailey
Miwok Tribe v. United States, 424 F. Supp. 2d. 197, 198 (D.D.C. 2006). In that same letier, the
Superintendent also recommended that the Tribe establish a general council form of government
for the organization process, and provided the Tribe with a draft version of a resolution to
implement such a form of government. On November 5, 1998, by Resolution # GC~98-01, the
Tribe established the General Council. 7d.

Several months afterwards, in April 1999, Yakima Dixie resigned as Tribal Chairman, On

May 8, 1999, the Tribe held a general election, in which Yakima Dixie participated, and elected
Sylvia Burley as its new chairperson, The BIA later recognized Sylvia Burley as Chairperson of
the California Valley Miwok Tribe. 14,

Shortly thereafter, the Tribe developed a draft constitution, and submitted it to the BIA for
Secretarial review and approval in May 1999.2 During this effort, it is apparent that a leadership
dispute developed between Ms. Burley and Mr. Dixie.

On March 6, 2000, the Tribe ratified its Constitution and later requested that the BIA conduct a
review and hold a secretarial election pursuant to the Indian Reorganization Act. 7d. at 199. In
the interim, on March 7, 2000, the Superintendent issued a letter to Sylvia Burley stating that the
BIA “believed the Tribe’s General Council to consist of the adult members of the tribe, i.e.,

Mr. Dixie, Ms. Burley, and Ms. Reznor,” and stated that the leadership dispute between Mr.
Dixie and Ms, Burley was an internal tribal matter.” J4,

In February 2004, Ms. Burley submitted a document to the BIA purporting to serve as the
Tribe’s constitution. The BIA declined to approve the constifution because it believed that

Ms. Buriey had not involved the entire tribal community in its development and adoption, Letter
from Dale Risling, Sr. to Sylvia Burley (March 26, 2004). The BIA noted that there were other
Indians in the local area who may have historical ties to the Tribe. In that same letter, the BIA
indicated that it did not view the Tribe as an *“*organized” Indian Tribe,” and that it would only
recognize Ms, Burley as a “person of authority” within the Tribe, rather than the Chairperson.
Letter from Dale Risling, Sr. to Sylvia Burley {March 26, 2004). The Office of the Assistant
Secretary — Indian Affairs affirmed this position in a letter stating:

[TThe BIA made clear [in its decision of March 26, 2004] that the
Federal government did not recognize M. Burley as the tribal
Chairman. Rather, the BIA would recognize her has a ‘person of

? The Tribe withdrew its original request for Secretarial review of its constitution in July 1999,
? pursuant to the Tribe’s Resolution # GC-98-01, the General Council shall consist of all adult members of the Trihe,
2
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authority within California Valley Miwok Tribe.’ Until such time
as the Tribe has organized, the Federal government can recognize
1o one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman.

Letter from Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D, Olsen to Yakima Dixie
(February 11, 2005), At that point, the BIA became focused on an effort to organize the Tribe
under the Indian Reorganization Act, and to include a number of people who were not officially
fribal members in that effort.*

In 2003, the BIA suspended a contract with the Tribe, and later asserted that there was no longer
a governinent-io-government relationship between the United States and the Tribe. 424 F, Supp.
2d. at 201.

Sylvia Burley, on behalf of the Tribe, filed a complaint against the United States in the United
States District Court for the District of Columbia secking declaratory relief affirming that it had
the authority to organize under its own procedures pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), and that its
proffered constitution was a valid governing document. I, The United States defended against
the claim by arguing that its interpretation of the Indian Reorganization Act was not arbitrary and
capricious, and that it had a duty to protect the interests of all tribal members during the
organization process — which included those individual Miwok Indians who were eligible for
enrollment in the tribe. See Id. at 202. The District Court ruled that the Tribe failed to state a
claim for which relief could be granted, which was affirmed by the Unifed States Court of
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, 74, at 202; 515 F.3d. 1262.

On November 6, 2006, the Superintendent of the BIA. Central California Agency issued letters to
Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie, stating, “[ilt is evident, however, that the ongoing leadership
dispute is at an impasse and the likelihood of this impasse changing soon seems to be remote.
Therefore, we renew our offer to assist the Tribe in the organizational process.” Letter from
Troy Burdick to Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie (November 6, 2006). The Superintendent then
stated “[t]he Agency, therefore, will publish notice of a general council meeting of the Tribe to
be sponsored by the BIA in the newspapers within the Miwok region. This will initiate the
reorganization process.” Jd,

Sylvia Burley appealed this decision to the BIA Pacific Regional Director, who affirmed the
Superintendent’s decision on April 2, 2007. That same month, the BIA Pacific Regional Office
published notice of the reorganizational meeting in a newspaper in the region. Sylvia Burley
appealed the Regional Director’s decision to the IBIA, which subsequently dismissed her claims,
while referring the second claim to my office,

Discussion

4 The BIA, Yakima Dixie, and Sylvia Burley all agreed that there was a number of additional peaple who were
potentially eligible for membership in the Tribe. See, Callfornia Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1267
- 1268 (b.C. Cir. 2008} (noting that the Tribe has admitted it has a potential membership of 250) (emphasis
added).

3
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I must decide whether to move forward with the BIA’s previous efforts to organize the Tribe’s
government, or to recognize the Tribe’s general council form of government — consisting of the
adult members of the tribe — as sufficient to fulfill our nation-to-nation relationship.

The Department of the Interior is reluctant to involve itself in these internal tribal matters. To
the extent that Department must touch upon these fundamental internal tribal matters, its actions
must be limited to upholding its trust responsibility and effectuating the nation-to-nation
relationship.

A. Tribal Citizenship

In this instance, the facts clearly establish that the Tribe is a federally recognized tribe which
shares a nation-to-nation relationship with the United States. Moreover, the facts also establish
that Mr, Dixie adopted Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace as
members of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria in 1998.

The California Valley Miwok Tribe, like all other federally recognized tribes, is a distinct political
community possessing the power to determine its own membership, and may do so according to
written law, custom, intertribal agreement, or treaty with the United States. See, Cohen’s
Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01[2][b] (2005 Edition); see also, Santa Clara Pueblo v,
Martinez, 436 U.8. 49, 54 (1978) (“To abrogate tribal decisions, particularly in the delicate area of
membership, for whatever “good' reasons, is to destroy cultural identity under the gunise of saving
i}y quoting Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 402 F.Supp. 5, 18-19 (B.N.M. 1975).

I understand the difficult circumstances facing those individual Miwok Indians living in
Calaveras County, California and who lack an affiliation with a federally recognized tribe.
Affiliation with a tribe lies at the core of Indian identity. This is one reason why the Department
is working to improve the process by which tribes can become federally recognized, and have
their nation-to-nation relationship with the United States restored.

Nevertheless, the United States cannot compel a sovereign federally recognized fribe to accept
individual Indians as tribal citizens to participate in a reorganization effort against the Tribe’s
will, See Santa Clara Pueblo, supra. It is possible that there are other individual Indians in the
area surrounding Sheep Ranch who are eligible to become members of the Tribe. Mr. Dixie and
Ms. Burley, along with the BIA, have previously indicated such. See 515 F.3d at 1267-68

D.C. Cir. 2008).

There is a significant difference, however, between eligibility for tribal citizenship and actval
tribal citizenship. Only those individuals who are actually admitted as citizens of the Tribe are
entitled to participate in its government. The proper recourse for those individuals eligible for
tribal citizenship, but who are not yet enrolled, is to work through the Tribe’s internal process for
gaining citizenship.

It is indisputable that Mr. Dixie adopted Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and
Tristian Wallace as citizens of the Tribe. Moreover, it is indisputable that the BIA previously
accepted the Tribe’s decision to enroll these individuals as tribal citizens, as evidenced by its
letter of September 24, 1998.

4
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Whatever good reasons the BIA may have had for requiring the Tribe to admit new citizens to
participate in its government are not sufficient to overcome the longstanding principles of
reserving questions of enrollment to the Tribe.

B. Tribal Government

As with matters of enrollment, each tribe is vested with the authority to determine its own form
of government. This authority is a quintessential attribute of tribal sovereignty. Cohen’s
Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01{2][a] (2005 Edition).

The Department recommended in a letter to the Tribe, that it “operate as a General Council,”
which would serve as its governing body. Letter from BIA Central California Superintendent
Dale Risling to Yakima K. Dixie, Spokesperson for the Sheep Ranch Rancheria

(September 24, 1998). In its letter to the Tribe, the Department advised the Tribe that, “[t]he
General Council would then be able to proceed with the conduct of business, in a manner
consistent with the authorizing resolution.” Jd. The Department previously considered this form
sufficient to fulfill the government-to-government relationship. See award of P.L. 93-638
Contract CTJ51T62801 (February 8, 2000).

The determination of whether to adopt a new constitution, and whether to admit new tribal
citizens to participate in that effort, must be made by the Tribe in the exercise of its inherent
sovereign authority, and not by the Department.

Conclusion

I have reviewed the documents referenced in this letter, as well as the numerous submissions
made by Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley to my office since the issuance of the IBIA Decision in
Janmary 2010.

I conclude that there is no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts to organize the
Tribe’s government, because it is organized as a General Council, pursuant to the resolution it
adopted at the suggestion of the BIA. Consequently, there is no need for the BIA to continue jts
previous efforts to ensure that the Tribe confers triba) citizenship upon other individual Miwok
Indians in the surrounding area.

Based upon the foregoing principles of tribal soverei gnty, and our government-to-government
relationship with the Tribe, I am directing that the following actions be undertaken:

1. The BIA will rescind its April 2007 public notice to, “assist the California Valley Miwok
Tribe, aka, Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe) in its efforts to organize a formal
governmental structure that is acceptable to all members.”

2. The BIA will rescind its November 6, 2006 letters to Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie

stating that the BIA will initiate the reorganization process for the California Valley
Miwok Tribe.
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3. am rescinding the February 11, 2005 letter from the Office of the Assistant Secretary to
Yakima Dixie stating that the BIA does not recognize any government of the California
Valley Miwok Tribe.

4, The BIA will rescind its letter of March 26, 2004 to Sylvia Burley stating that it “does not
yet view your fribe to be an ‘organized’ Indian Tribe,” and indicating that Ms. Burley is
merely a “person of authority” within the Tribe,

5. Both my office and the BIA will work with the Tribe’s existing governing body - its
General Council, as established by Resolution # GC-98-01 — to fulfill the government-to-
government relationship between the United States and the California Valley Miwok
Tribe.

My decision addresses those issues referred to my office by the decision of the IBIA.

Lastly, I recognize that issues related to membership and leadership have been significant
sources of contention within the Tribe in recent years. I strongly encourage the Tribe’s
governing body, the General Council, to resolve these issues through internal processes so as to
mitigate the need for future involvement by the Department in these matters. To this point, I
understand that Resolution #GC-98-01 provides for proper notice and conduct of meetings of the
General Council, I likewise encourage the Tribe’s General Council fo act in accord with its
governing document when settling matters relating to leadership and membership, so as to bring
this highly contentious period of the Tribe’s history fo a close.

A similar letter has been transmitted to Mr. Yakima Dixie, and his legal counsel.

s

fe Lawry Echo Hawk
Assistant Secretary ~ Indian Affairs

ce:  Mike Black, Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs
Amy Dutschke, BIA Pacific Regional Director
Robert Rosette, Rosette and Associates, PC

CVMT-2011-001766



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 185 of 270

APPENDIX DOCUMENT 18



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 186 of 270

United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR
Washington, D.C. 20240

N LY BEVER Tod

JAN 2 1 201

Robert J. Uram, Esq.
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton, LLP
Four Embarcadero Center
Seventeenth IFloor
San Francisco, CA 94111-4109

Dear Mr. Uram:

The Secretary has asked the Solicitor’s Office to respond 1o your letter to him of January 6, 2011,
requesting a stay and reconsideration ol the decision by the Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs
regarding the organization of the California Valley Miwok Tribe. After discussing the matter
with the Assistant Secretary and his staff, T have been advised that the Assistant Secretary has
declined to reconsider the December 22, 2010 decision by Mr. Laverdure on his behalf.

Sincerely,

b o

Pilar M. Thomas
Deputy Solicitor, Indian Affairs

cCl

Ms, Sylvia Burley
10601 Escondido Place
Stockton, CA 93212

My, Yakima Dixie
1231 B, Hazelton Ave.
Stockton, CA 95203

Robert A. Rosetie, Esq.

Roselie & Associates

193 Blue Ravine Road
Suite 255

Folsom, CA 95630
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Elizabeth T. Walker, Esq.
Walker Associates
127 South Fairfax
Suite 126
Alexandia, VA 22314

Phillip E. Thompson, Esq,
601 Pennsylvania Avenue
Suite 900
Upper Marlboro, MD 20772-3665

Mr. Chadd Everone
2140 Shattuck Avenue, # 602
Berkeley, CA 94704

Larry Echo Hawk
Assistant Secrefary — Indian Affairs

Michael Black
Director, Burean of Indian Affairs

Amy Dutschke
Director, Pacific Region
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Troy Burdick
Superintendent, Central California Agency
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Filed 05/11/12
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United States Department of the Interior

QFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washingron, DC 20240

APR 1 208

Mr. Yakima Dixie
1231 E. Hazelton Avenue
Stockion, California 95205

Dear Mr. Dixie:

On December 22, 2010, my office issued a letter setting out the Department of the Interior's
decision on a question respecting the composition of the California Valley Miwok Tribe.

The question had been referred to my office by the Interior Board of Indian Appeals. On

January 24, 2011, you filed suit in Federal district court seeking to have the Department's decision
vacated.

Subsequent actions by the parties involved in this dispute have led me to reconsider the maiters
addressed in the December 22, 2010, decision letter. By means of today's letier, the
December 22 decision is set aside.

1 believe that the longstanding problems within the Tribe need prompt resolation, and I remain
committed to the timely issuance of my reconsidered decision. Iam mindful, however, that
additional briefing may inform my analysis of the problems presented in this dispute. To that
end, I will issue a briefing schedule in the coming week, requesting submissions from you and
from Ms. Silvia Burley on specific questions of fact and law relevant to the referred question,

Sincerely,
L*u ry E’ého I-lzn.?\f'k/?’t~

Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs
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Ms. Silvia Burley
10601 Escondido Place
Stockton, California 95212

Robert A. Rosette, Esq.
565 West Chandler Boulevard, Suite 212
Chandler, Arizona 85225

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richier & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 11™ Floor East
Washington, D.C. 20005-3314

Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LLC

429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney

Trial Attorney

United States Department of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources Division
P.0. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

Mike Black, Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs
MS-4513-M1B

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Dutschke, Director

Pacific Regional Office, Bureau of Indian Affairs
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-820

Sacramento, CA 95825

Troy Burdick, Superintendent

Central California Agency, Bureau of Indian Affairs
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500

Sacramento, CA 95814

Page 190 of 270
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washington, DC 20240

Mr. Yakima Dixic APR 08 201

1231 E. Hazelton Avenue
Stockton, California 95205

Ms. Silvia Burley
10601 Escondido Place
Stockion, California 93212

Drear Mr. Dixie and Ms, Burley:

The Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) and the California Valley Miwok Tribe (Tribe) have worked
for years to reach a shared understanding of the structure and composition of the Tribe. its
government, and its relationship with the Federal government. Disputes within the Tribe, and
between the Tribal factions and the BIA, have led 10 several administrative appeals as well as
federal court litigation. On January 28, 2010, the Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) issued
a decision respecting one of the administrative appeals. The IBIA remanded to my office one of
the issues raised in that appeal, as being an enrollment question and thus beyond the IBIA's

jurisdiction. On December 22, 2010, my office issued a letter attempting to set out a clear and
final answer to the referred question.

After the December 22, 2010, decision, a mumber of 1ssues were raised in Hiigation that
challenged that decision: therefore. I have withdrawn if for reconsideration 1 would like to
ensure that | consider all issues in my reconsideration of this matter, To ensure full and fair
review. | am asking the parties to brief the issues. Parties may submit any legal arguments they
wish for me to consider. In addition. the parties should consider addressing the following issues.

1. Itis undisputed that the Federal sovernment currently recognizes five people as members
of the tribe. The September 24, 1998, letter from Superintendent Risling to Yakima
Dixie. mentioned the development of enrollment criteria that "will be used to identify
other persons eligible 10 participate in the initial organization of the Tribe" (emphasis
added). Please brief your views on whether the Secretary has an obligation to ensure that
potential tnbal members participate in an election to organize the Tribe.

I~

It is undisputed that the Tribe is federally recognized, being included on the Department's
list of recognized wibes. The Tribal Resclution of November 5, 1998. signed by Ms.
Burjey and Mr. Dixie. said: *“The Tribe. on June 12. 1933, voted 1o accept the terms of
the Indian Reorganization Act . . . but never formally organized pursuant to federal
statute. and now desires 10 pursue the formal organization of the Tribe.” Please explain
your position regarding the status of the Tribe's organization and the Federal
Governments' duty 1o assist the Tribe in organizing.
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3. Itis undisputed that the position taken in the December 22 decision letter represented a
change in direction regarding the Burean’s relations with the Tribe. Courts have found
the BIA’s past actions to be permissible under the APA, but did not state that those
actions were mandatory under federal Indian law. Some statements in court opinions,
however, must be read as staiements of law with which my decisions must comply. In
particular, the D.C. Circuit stated that (paraphrased for clarity): "It cannot be that the
Secretary has no role in determining whether a tribe has properly organized itself to
gualify for the federal benefits provided in the [Indian Reorganization] Act and
elsewhere." 515 F.3d 1262, 1267 (D.C. Cir. 2008). Please brief your views on what the
Secretary’s role is in "determining whether a tribe has properly organized jtself "

Ta ensure the promptness of my reconsidered decision, please provide vour submission so that it
is received by the Department no later than 9:00 am, eastern daylight savings time, Tuesday.
May 3. 2011,

My oflice will give your submissions careful and objective consideration. No outcome in this
matler will resolve all the disputes between the parties, but my duty under the APA is to reach,
and explain, a carefully-considered decision that is not "arbitrary and capricious," and is "in
accordance with law" (5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(a)).

Please limit your submissions to no more than 30 pages. We prefer, for timeliness and
convenience, that you submit your response documents in pdf format via email to Mr. Brian
Newland, one of my advisors, at bryan_newland@ios.doi.gov, and Mr. Jim Porter, an attorney in
Solicitor's Office, at james.porter(@sol.doi.gov. Please also transmit your response docuiments 1o
each other at the same time you send them to this office,

Sincerelv,/
L

Lary E€ho Hawk
Assistant Secretary ~ Indian Affairs
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Robert A. Rosette, Esq.
565 Wesi Chandler Boulevard, Suite 212
Chandler, Arizona 83223

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 11" Floor East
Washington. D.C. 20005-3314

Elizabeth Walker, Esqg.
Walker Law LLC

429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney

Trial Atiorney
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

AUG 3 1 201

Ms. Silvia Burley
10601 N. Escondido Place
Stockton, California 95212

Mr. Yakima Dixie
1231 E. Hazelion Avenue
Stockton, California 952935

Dear Ms, Burley and Mr. Dixie:
Introduction and Decision

On December 22, 2010, I sent you a letier setting out my decision in response to a question
referred to me by the Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe
v, Pacific Regional Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (Janvary 28. 2010) (IBIA
decision). | determined that there was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts 10
organize the Tribe's government, because it is organized as a General Council, pursuant to the
[1998 General Council Resolution] it adopted at the suggestion of the BIA.” [ concluded further
that there was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforls to ensure that the Tribe
confers iribal citizenship upon other individual Miwok Indians in the surrounding area.™

I issued my December decision without providing the parties & formal opportunity o brief me on
the facts and issues as they saw them. As a resuli of subsequent actions by both parties.

{ determined to withdraw the December decision, and, on April 8, 2011, [ requested briefing
from the parties. Counsel for the parties provided detailed responses with numerous exhibils.

! appreciate the time and effort that went into providing these responses. i have considered them
carcfully.

Based on the litigation records in the prior Federal court actions in both California and
Washington, 13.C.. the proceedings before the Department’s Interior Board of Indian Appeals.

and the maierial submitted in response to my April § letter, I now find the following:

(1) The California Valley Miwok Tribe (CVMT) is a federally recognized uibe. and has
been continuously recoanized by the Uniied States since at least 1916:

(2) At the present date, the citizenship of the CVMT consists selely of Yakima Dixie.
Silvia Burley. Rashel Reznor. Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace:
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{3} The CVMT today operates under a General Council form of government, pursuant to
Resolution #CG-98-01, which the CVMT passed in 1998, facilitated by representatives
of the Burean of Indian Affairs (Bureau or BIA)(1998 General Council Resolution);

(4) Pursuant to the 1998 General Counci] Resolution, the CVMT’s General Council is
vested with the governmental authority of the Tribe, and may conduet the full range of
government-to-govermment relations with the United States;

{5) Although this current General Council form of government does not render CVMT an
“organized” tribe under the Indian Reorganization Act (IRA) (see e.g, 25 U.S.C. 476(a) and
{d)), as a federally recognized tribe it is not required “to organize™ in accord with the
procedures of the IRA (25 U.S.C. § 476(h):

{6) Under the IRA, as amended, it is impermissibie for the Federal government to treat
tribes not “organized™ under the IRA differently from those “organized” under the IRA
(25 U.8.C. §§ 476(1)-(h)); and

(7) As discussed in more detail below, with respect to finding (6). on this pariicular legal
point, I specifically diverge with a key underlying rationale of past decisions by
Department of the Interior (Department) officials dealing with CVMT maiters, apparently
beginning around 2004, and decide to pursue a different policy direction.! Under the
circumstances of this case, it is inappropriate to invoke the Secretary’s broad authority to
manage “all Indian affairs and [] all matters arising out of Indian relations,” 25 U.S.C.

§ 2. or any other broad-based authority, to justify interfering with the CVMT’s internal
governance. Such interference would run counter to the bedrock Federal Indian law
principles of wribal sovereignty and tribal self-government, according to which the tribe,
as a distinct political entity, may “manag|e] its own affairs and govern[] iself.” Cherokee
Nation v. Georgia, 30 U.S. 1, 16 (1832); and would conflict with this Administration’s
clear commitment {o protect and honor tribal sovereignty.

Obvicusly. the December 2010 decision, and today's reaffirmation of that decision, mark a 180-
degree change of course from positions defended by this Department in administrative and
judicial proceedings over the past seven vears. This change is driven by a straightforward
correction in the Department’s undersianding of the California Valley Miwok Tribe’s citizenship
and a different policy perspective on the Departiment’s legal obligations in light of those facts.

As discussed below, the B1A clearly understood in 1998 that the acknowledged CVMT citjzens
had the right 1o exercise the Tribe's inherent sovereign power in 2 manner they chose. Itis
unfortunate that soon afler the 1998 General Council Resolution was enacted. an intra-tribal
feadership dispute erupted, and both sides of the dispute found. at various points in time in the
intervening vears, ihat it served their respective interests to raise the theory that the BIA had a
duty to protect the rights of approximately 250 "potential citizens" of the Tribe. A focus on that
theory has shaped the BIA's and the Depariment’s position on the citizenship question ever

' I recognize that the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals’ 2008 opinion upholding prior Depariment efforts 1o orpanize
the CVMT pursuant to the IRA afforded broad deference 1o the Department’s prior decisions and interpretations of
the law.  Call Falley Miwok Tribe v, United States. 513 F.3d 1262, 1264-68 (D.C. Cir. 2008).

e
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since. By contrast, today's decision clears away the misconceptions that these individuals have
inchoate citizenship rights that the Secretary has a duty 1o protect. They do not. The Tribe is not
comprised of both citizens and potential citizens. Rather, the five acknowledged citizens are the
only citizens of the Tribe, and the General Council of the Tribe has the exclusive authority to
determine the citizenship criteria for the Tribe, Sawnra Clara Pueblo v. Marrinez, 436 U.S. 49, 537
(1978). I believe this change in the Departiment’s position is the most suitable means of
resolving this decade-long dispute and is in accord with principles of administrative law. Nat?
Cable & Telecomnmns. Ass’nv. Brand X Interner Servs., 545 U S. 967 (2005).

Background
This decision is necessitated by a long and complex tribal leadership dispute that resulted in
extensive administrative and judicial litigation. Much of the factual background is set out in the

prior decisions, 5o it is not necessary to repeat or even summarize all of it here.

The history of this Tribe, and the record of this case to date, demonstraies the following:

The CVMT is a fedexally recognized tribe. 74 Fed. Reg. 40,218, 40,219 {Aug. 11, 2009);

° In 1918, the United States purchased approximately 0.92 acres in Calaveras County,
California, for the benefit of 12 named Indians living on the Sheepranch Rancheria (now
Sheep Ranch)(Rancheria) (51 IBIA at 106);

e The Indian Agent, who in 1915 recommended the purchase of the 0.92 acres. deseribed
the group of 12 named individuals as “the remnant of once quite a large band of Indians
i former years living in and near the old decaying mining town known and designated
on the map as “Sheepranch.™ I ;

e The record shows only one adult Indian lived on the Rancheria in 1935, a JefT Davis. who
voted “in favor of the IRA™ Jd.;

o In 1966, the record shows only one adulf Indian. Mabel Hodge Dixie. Yakima Dixie's
mother, lived on the Rancheria, when the BIA crafted a plan for distribution of tribal
assets pursuant to the California Rancheria Act of 1958, Pub. L. No. 85-671, 72 Stat. 619.
as amended by Act of Aug. 11. 1964. Pub. L. No. 88-419, 78 Siat. 390:

s Mabel Hodge Dixie was to be the sole distributee of tribal assets under the 1966
Rancheria distribution plan;

+  While the Bureau initiated the process 1o terminate the Tribe, it never declared the Tribe
terminated and has never treated the Tribe as if it had been erminated:

e In 1994. Yakima Dixie wrote the BIA asking for assistance with home repairs and
describing himsel[l as “the only descendant and recognized . . . member of the Tribe.™
(51 IBIA at 107):

s Alsome pomt during the 1990s, Silvia Burley “contacted BIA for information related io
her Indian heritage. which BIA provided. and by 1998—at BIA's suggestion—Burley
had comtacted Yakima{]” Dixie (as the IBIA has noted. “it appears that Burley may trace
her ancestry 10 a *Jeff Davis® who was listed on the 1913 census. .. ) 51 IBIA at 107.
including footnote 7;

»  On August 5. 1998. Mr. Dixie “signed a statement accepting Burley as an enrolled

member of the Tribe. and also enrolling Burley's two daughters and her granddangher.”

I.;

1,3
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-

The Tribe was not organized pursuant to the IRA prior to 1998 and did not have organic

documents setting out its form of government or criteria for tribal citizenship;

¢ In September of 1998, BIA staff met with Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley “to discuss
organizing the Tribe,” and on September 24, 1998 semt follow-up correspondence
reconunending that, “given the small size of the Tribe, we recommend that the Tribe
operate as a General Council,” which could elect or appoint a chairperson and conduct
business. /4. at 108;

e On November 5, 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley signed a resolution establishing a
General Couneil, which consisted of all adult citizens of the T ribe, {o serve as the
goveming body of the Tribe. /4. at 109;

° Less than five months later, leadership disputes arose between Mr. Dixie and Ms.
Burley—and those conilicts have continued to the present day:”

o Initially the BIA recognized Mr. Dixie as Chairman, but later recognized Ms. Burley as
Chairperson based primarily upon the April 1999 General Council action appointing
Ms. Burley as Chairperson - an action concurred in by M. Dixie. Jd;

o Mr. Dixie later challenged Ms. Burley’s 1999 appointment;

*  In2002. Ms. Burley filed suit in the name of the Tribe alleging that the Department had
breached its trust responsibility to the Tribe by distributing the assets of the Rancheria to
a single individual, Mabel Dixie, when the Tribe had a potential citizenship of “nearly
250 people[.]” See Complaint for Injunctive and Declaratory Relief at 1, Cal. Valley
Miwok Tribe v. United States, No. 02-0912 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 29, 2002):

o In March, 2004, the BIA Superintendent rejected a proposed constitution from Ms.
Burley because she had not involved the “whole tribal community” in the governmental
organization process;

° On Febrary 11. 2003, the Acting Assistant Secretary ~ Indian Affhirs issued a deeision
on Mr. Dixie’s 1999 appeal, roling that the appeal of the Bureau’s 1999 decision 1o
recognize Ms. Burley as Chairperson was moot and that the BIA would recognize Ms.
Burley only as a persen of authority within the Tribe;

e Ms. Burley sued in D.C. District Court challenging the February 2003 decision:

e Afier the District Court dismissed her challenge, Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United
States, 424 F.Supp. 2d 197 (D.D.C. 2006), the D. C. Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed.
Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 315 F.3d 1262 (D.C. Cir. 2008Y;

= InJanuary 2010, the IBIA rejected Ms. Burley’s appeal objecting to, among other

matters. the Superintendent’s decision to continue 10 assist the Tribe in organizing its

government according to the IRA because it viewed the matier as “effectively and
finctionally a tribal enrollment dispute,” and then referred the matter to me on

Jurisdictional grounds.

In response to the Board's referral. | issued my December 22, 2010 decision letter. | intended
that decision to resolve the citizenship question referred to me by the IBIA by finding that the
current Tribe’s citizenship consisted of the five acknowledged citizens noted above and
recognizing the Tribe's General Council as a tribal government with which the United States may

* 1 note that the Department repeatedly has offered 10 assist in mediating this dispute—io o avail. The amouni of
time and resourees focused on these disputes reflects poorly on all the parties. and they must be mindful that
continuing this imprudent dispute risks polential adverse consequences well bevond the Tribe and its citizens.

4
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conduct government-to-govemment relations. Almost immediately, Mr. Dixie filed suit in the
D.C. District Court challenging that decision. Recognizing the complex and fundamental nature
of the underlying issues. and because I desired the benefit of submissions from the interested
parties, | set aside that decision and requested formal briefing.

The submissions by the parties in response 1o my request were thorough. I have carefully
reviewed the submissions and find they were most helpful in enhancing my understanding of the
parties’ positions.

Analysis

It1s clear to me that the heart of this matter is a misapprehension about the nature and extent of
the Secretary’s role, if any, in determining tribal citizenship of a very small, uniquely situated
tribe. Related to this issue is the Tribe’s current reluctance to “organize” itself under the IRA,
chwosing instead to avail itself of the provisions in 25 U.S.C. § 476(1), first enacted in 2004,
which recognizes the inherent sovereign powers of tribes “to adopt governing documents under
procedures other than those specified . . . [in the IRA.]"

Applicability of General Legal 4uthorities of the Secretary of the Interior in Indian Affairs

The D.C. Circuit viewed § 476(h) as ambiguous. and then granted Chevron deference to the
then-Secretary’s interpretation of that provision. 513 F.3d at 1266-68. The D.C Circuit put great
weight on the Secretary’s broad authority over Indian affairs under 25 U.S.C. § 2, writing that
“[w]e have previously held that this extensive grant of authority gives the Secretary broad power
to carry out the federal government’s uirique responsibilities with respect to Indians.” /d. at
1267, citations omitted. In additionto § 2, 25 U.S.C. §§ 9. and 13, and 43 U.S.C. § 1437, are
ofien cited as the main statutory bases for the Depariment’s general authority in Indian affairs.
Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 424 F.Supp. 2d 197, 201 (D.1.C. 2006); see also
COHEN'S HANDBOOK OF FEDERAL INDIAN LAW § 5.03(2] at 405 (2005 ed.) [hercinafier
COHEN]. The D.C. Circuit also cited two cases involving separate bands of the Seminole
Nation for the general propositions that the United States has an “obligation™ “to promote a
tribe’s political integrity” as well as “the responsibility to ensure that {a tribe’s] representatives,
with whom [it] must conduct government-to-government relations, are valid representatives of
the [iribe] as a whole. ™ 513 F.3d at 1267(emphasis added by the Court), citing, Seminole Nation
v. United States, 313 U.S. 286, 296 (1942). and Seminole Nation of Oklahoma v. Norton. 223
F.Supp. 2d 122, 140/(D.D.C. 2002).

In my view, prior Department officials misapprehended their responsibility when they: (1) took
their focus off the fact that the CVMT was comprised a five individuals, and (2) mistakenly
viewed the Federal government as having particular duties relating 10 individuals who were not
citizens of the tribe. [ decline to invoke the broad legal authorities cited above 1o further intrude
into internal uibal citizenship and governance issues in the instant case. In making this decision.
I also am mindful of the Supreme Court’s recent guidance concerning: (1) the importance of
idemtifying “specific rights creating or duty-imposing stawtory or regulatory prescriptions™
before concluding the United States is obligated to act in a panticular manner in Indian affairs,
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and (2) the central role Federal policy plays in administering Indian affairs, United States v.
Jicarilla Apache Nation, 131 8. Ct. 2313, 2323-24, 232627 (June 13,2011).

Application of Specific Legal Authorities

In my view, prior Department officials (from 2003 to the present) fundamentally misunderstood
the role of the Federal government in addressing the CVMT citizenship and governance issues:
(1) they misunderstood and ignored the legal authority of CVMT to govern itself through its
General Council structure without being compelled to “organize™ under the IRA; and (2) they
confused the Federal govermment’s obligations to possible tribal citizens with those owed to
actual tribal citizens,

The February 11, 2003, decision of Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D). Olsen
stated that, until the Tribe organized itself, the Department could not recognize anyone as the
Tribe’s Chairperson, and that the “first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying the putative
tribal members.” (20035 Decision at 1-2, discussed in 51 IBIA at 1 12). The D.C. Circuit. after
citing the Secretary’s broad authority under 25 U.S.C. § 2, endorsed this approach as a
reasonable interpretation of 25 U.S.C. § 476(h) because “[t}he exercise of this authority is
especially vital when, as is the case here, the government is determining whether a tribe is
organized, and the receipt of significant federal benefits turns on the decision.” 315 F.3d at
1267. As [ have stated above, Ireject as contrary to § 476{h) the notions that a tribe can be
compelled (o “organize” under the IRA and that a tribe not so organized can have “significant
federal benefits” withheld from it. Either would be a clear violation of 25 U.S.C. 8 476(f).

The CVMT currently consists of the five citizens identified above. Under the current {acts, the
Department does not have a legitimate role in attempting to force the Tribe 1o expand its
citizenship.” Department officials previously referred 1o “the importance of participation of a
greater tribal community in determining citizenship criteria.” (Superintendent’s 2004 Decision at
3. discussed in 51 IBIA at 111-112). The D.C. Circuit, referring to the Tribe’s governance
structure that arguably would maintain a limited citizenship, stated “[t]his antimajoritarian
gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the Secretary.” 5135 F.3d at 1267. However, 1 know
of no specific starntory or regulatory authoriry that warrams such intrusion into a federally
recognized tribe’s internal affairs. (As to the more general sources of authority cited in support
of Federal oversight of tribal matters, I have explained my views on the proper scope of those
authorities above). “Courts have consistenily recognized that one of an Indian tribe’s most basic
powers is the authority to determine questions of its own membership.” Sania Clara Pueblo v,
Muatrtinez, 436 U.S. 49, 57, 72 n.32 (1978); United Staies v. Wheeler, 435 U.S., 313,322 n.18
(1978): COBEN § 3.03]3] at 176, cirations omitted. “[IIf the issue for which the determination
is important involves internal affairs of the Indian nation, it is more consistent with principles of
tribal sovereignty to defer to that nation’s definition.”” Jd. at 180. As discussed in the previous
paragraph, I also believe that. based on an incorrect interpretation of § 476(h), the previous
Administration’s views on the IRA’s application to this case were erroneous and led to an
improper focus on expanding the size of the Tribe and aliering the form of its govermnment.

* While | believe that it is equirably appropriate for the CVMT General Council to reach owt 10 potential citizens of
the Tribe, 1 de not believe it is proper. as a matter of lave. for he Federal government 1o atempt 10 imipose such a
reguirement on d federalty recognized tribe.

CVMT-2011-002054



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 202 of 270

Mr. Dixie invokes the 4lan-Wilson IBIA cases to support the theory that the Secretary has a duty
to ensure that the potential citizens are involved in the organization of an unorganized, but
federally recognized tribe.* 30 IBIA 241. But, in fact, Alan-Wilson works directly against Mr.
Dixie’s position, and this distinction provides additional support for my decision. Unlike CVMT,
the Cloverdale Rancheria was a federally recognized tribe terminated under the California
Rancheria Act. It was later restored pursuant to the 7illie Hardwick liti gation and settlement,
which required the Rancheria to organize its tribal government under the JRA.

301BIA 241, 248

My review of the history of the CVMT compels the conclusion set out in the December decision
and reatfirmed here: the CVMT has been continuously recognized, and its political relationship
with the Federal govemnment has not been terminated. The five acknowledged citizens are the
only current citizens of the Tribe, and the Tribe’s General Council is authorized to excrcise the
Tribe’s governmental authority. In this case, again, the factual record is clear: there are only five
citizens of CVMT. The Federal government is under no duty or obligasion to “potential citizens”™
of the CVMT. Those potential citizens, if they so desire, should take up their cause with the
CVMT General Council directly.

Given both parties” acknowledgment of the existence of other individuals who could potentially
become tribal citizens, the Department’s prior positions are understandable. The Department
endeavored to engage both parties in a resolution of the iribal citizenship issues, including offers
of assistance from the Department’s Office of Collaborative Action and Dispute Resolution
(CADR]) - to no avail. By the time this matter was referred to me by the IBIA in January 2010,
serious doubts existed about the likelihood of the parties ever being able to work together to
resolve the issues involving the citizenship and governance of the Tribe.

Absent an express commitment from the parties to formally define tribal citizenship criteria, any
further effort by the Department to do so would result in an unwartanted intrusion into the
internal affairs of the Tribe. Moreover. given the unfortunate history of this case, most likely
such efforts would not succeed in accomplishing this objective. While there may be rare
circumstances in which such an intrusion would be warranted in order for the Secretary to
discharge specific responsibilities, no such specific law or circumstances exist here.

Accordingly. unless asked by the CVMT General Council, the Department will make no further

efforts to assist the Tribe to organize and define its citizenship. | accept the Resolution #GC-98-
01 as the interim governing document of the Tribe, and as the basis for resuming government-to-
government relations between the United States and the Tribe.

While I appreciate thal the General Council Resolution may prove lacking as 1o certain aspects
of tribal governance, 1 also recognize that this tribe is very small and uniquely situmed. Many
tribes have been able to govern effectively with limited or no written governing documents.

* Mr. Dixie also invokes the case of Seminole Nation of Oklghoma v. Norton, 223 F.8upp.2d 122 (D.D.C. 2002) in
support of his position. Semrinole Nation involved a dispute where a particular faction of the Tribe asserted rights to
tribal citizenship under an 1866 treaty. /d. al 138, There is no overriding wreaty or congressional enactment
goveming tribal citizenship at issue in this dispute.
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Conclusion
Based upon the foregoing analysis, 1 re-affirm the following:

e CVMT is a federally recognized tribe whose entire citizenship, as of this date, consists of
the five acknowledged citizens;

» The 1998 Resolution established a General Council form of government, comprised of all
the adult citizens of the Tribe, with whom the Departiment may conduct governmeni-to-
government relations;

The Department shall respect the validly enacted resolutions of the General Council; and

»  Only upon a request from the General Council will the Department assist the Tribe in
refining or expanding its citizenship criteria, or developing and adopting other governing
documents.

In my December 2010 decision letier [ rescinded several earlier decisions. [ am persuaded that
such atiempts 1o rewrite history are fraught with the risk of unintended consequences. Past
actions, undertaken in good faith and in reliance on the authority of prior Agency decisions,
should not be called into question by 1oday’s determination that those prior Agency decisions
were erroneous. Thus. today’s decision shall apply prospectively.

This decision is final for the Departiment and effective immediately, but implementation shall be
stayed pending resolution of the litigation in the District Court for the District of Columbia,
California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Salazar, C.A. No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR (filed 03/16/11).

Finally, I strongly encourage the parties to work within the Tribe’s existing government structure
to resolve this longstanding dispute and bring this contentious period in the Tribe's histery to a
close.

Sincerely,

\Ciéari Echa Hawk

Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs

ce: Robert A. Rosette, Esq.
565 West Chandler Boulevard, Suite 212
Chandler, Arizona 83225

Rov Goldberg, Esg.

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 11" Floor East
Washington. D.C. 20003-3314
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Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LIL.C

429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney

Trial Atiomey

United States Department of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources Division
P.O. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

Mike Black, Director, Bureau of Indian Aflairs
MS-4513-MIB

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Dutschke, Director

Pacific Regional Office, Bureau of Indian Affairs
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-820

Sacramento, California 93825

Troy Burdick, Superintendent
Central California Agency, Bureau of Indian Affairs
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500
Sacramento, California 95814

Karen Koch, Attorney-Advisor

Office of the Solicitor, Pacific Southwest Region
2800 Coutlage Way, E-1712

Sacramento, California 95823
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Californiz

Pacific Regiona] Direcfor,

Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR  Document 44-5 Filed 01/10M2 Page 1 0of3
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Vs,

Valley Miwok Tribe

INTERIOR BOARD OF INDIAN APPEALS

Appellant, Docket No.: IBIA 07-100-A

Appelies,

I N L T T e

DECLARATION OF TRCY BURDICK

1, Troy Burdick, do hereby state as foilows:

1.

=

L2

I

”J\

1 2m employed by the Burezu of Indizn Affairs (BIA) within the United Steze
Department of the Interior as the Superintendent of the Ceniral Celifomiz
Agency,

n my capacity as Superintendert, I sm respornsible for managing the
gc;;.remmant—to-govemment relationship hetween the United Staies and the
California Valley Miwaok Tribe (CYMT or Tribel

CVMT is an unorgaized tribe, meaning the BIA. does nof recognize thas the
tribe hzs a functioning government or a governmenial leader,

On November 6, 2006 I seni a letier to Silvia Burley and Yakima Dixie, both
of whom claim to be the legitimaze leader 0f CVMT with authority to
orgenize the Tribe. Both Silvia Burley snd Yakima Dixie ware working
separaiely 1o organize the Tribe.

My letter indicated that their dispule had reached and impzsse and threasusd
{he Tribe's governmeni-to-government relationship with the United States. It

further indicated thai the BIA would assist the Tiibe in organizing itself. As

[
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the first step Tribe"s 21 10 orzanize fiself, the BIA would call a genemi
couneil meeting of the Tribe's membars and powntial members
6. Silvia Burley appealed thai decision o the Regionsl Director. On April 2, 2007,

oy

- 2ot - L3 S
the Regional Dircctor affirmed the Noversber 6, 2005, letter and remandad e

4R

plans 1o assisi the Tribe organize hiselE by

{E
X

maiter back 1o me o procesd with th
first calling a general council meeiing of the Tribe’s member’s and putative
members.

ES I did not call a genoral council meeiing. Instead, 1100k a step in preparation of

=

&

i

13 = g L L A ommid % FONT Y W Fo o ipmet 2oy bfusemct
catiing 2 general council meeting. On Apsi 10,2087, 1 had published i lsest

L

newspapers 2 notice that the BIA was accepting applications from pergons whe
clairn lincal decadency from a list of 14 historic members of the Tribe and who
sought to be included in the class of purative members who would be eligible to

peerticinare in the Tribe™s oruanizadonsl process.

o

B By Mgy 23, 2007, the BEA received 303 aprlicesions, Belween the dates of May
25, 2007, and April 20, 2007, ihe BIA was only engaged in the internal review of

these applications.

Q. Oz April 20, 2007, Silvia Burley, allegediv acting in the name of the Tribe.
eppeated the Regional Dizzciar™s April 2 2007, leter o the Tmerior Board of

Indian Appeais (IB1A)
10.  The BIA reviewed those applications and determined which applicants qualify as

lineal descendents and which do not. The BIA drafied lettors to send to all

1

5

applicants potifving them of thelr simus s nsaded, informing them of their

f

mighis of appeal, afier complcting thatroview,

1~4
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11, Because of the stay in this cass, the BlA hes not and will not sond those letter o
- ... the eppiicants uptif the TBIA isszes a decision in Stivia Buriey’s apneal in the

BIA’s favor. Moreover, the BIA will not initiate the process by which the Tribe
will organize itself by calling a general covncil mesting of the Tribe vatf (BIA
issuss & decision in Siivia Burlsy™s appeal in the BlA g favor. The BIA will et

tzke any action o assist the Tribe organize itself until IBIA decides Silvia Burlex's

appeal in the BIA's favor.
1 deelere under ponsliy of perjury that the for,

4 -

Executed on the  6th day of December, 20807,

. Troy. Burdick
Superintendont, BIA
Central California Ageney

tad
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EXHIBIT 9

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Yakima Dixie
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division
THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, et al.,
v. Case No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR
KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity | Affidavit of Yakima Dixie In Support of
as Secretary of the United States Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary
Department of the Interior, ef al. Injunction
Hon, Richard W, Roberts

AFFIDAVIT OF YAKIMA K. DIXIE
I, Yakima K. Dixie, declare as follows:

1. I am an individval and a party in the above-entitled action. I am over
the age of 18 and a resident of Calaveras County, California. Ihave personal knowledge
of the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be true and correct, and if called as

a witness, I conld and would competently testify thereto.

2. This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs' Motion for
Preliminary Injunction.

3. I am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") (also
known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-wuk Indians of California), the Hereditary

23 || Chief and the Traditional Spokesperson for the Tribe, the historical Chairperson of the

24
25
26
27
28

Tribe, and a member of the Tribal Council. Iinherited the position of Hereditary Chief
upon the death of my mother, Mabel Hodge Dixie, on July 11, 1971. My tribal lineal
descent through my mother goes back to the Hodge family of the 1915 census of the
Sheepranch Indians.

WO02-WEST:5TARIM0329%917.3 -1~ CVMT-2011-002196
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4. In 1998, Silvia Burley approached me seeking to be allowed into the
Tribe so that she and her daughters could obtain medical and education benefits available
to members of federal Indian tribes. In August 1998 1 allowed Burley and her two
daughters, Rashel Reznor and Anjelica Paulk, and her granddaughter Tristan Wallace
(collectively, the "Burley Faction") into the Tribe.

5. Shortly after I enrolled Burley and her family members, Burley and I
met with the BIA to discuss organizing the Tribe under the Indian Reorganization Act.
The BIA advised me in September 1998 that enrollment criteria should be used to identify
the members of the Tribal community eligible to participate in the initial organization of

the Tribe, in addition to myself and the Burley Faction.

6. In November 1998, Burley submitted to the BIA a document

| described as Resolution #GC-98-01 (the "1998 Resolution™), which purported to be a
Tribal resolution establishing a General Council to serve as the governing body of the
Tribe.

7. The Resolution was not signed by a majority of the Tribe’s known

* adult members, which at that time included, among others, me and my brother Melvin

Dixie. As I told the BIA, Melvin was living in the Sacramento area at the time and could

be found regularly at Loaves and Fishes there.

8. In April 1999, Burley submitted to the BIA a document allegedly

showing my resignation as Tribal Chairman. I did not sign it.

9. Burley then held a purported "general election” in May 1999, at which
she was allegedly elected Chairperson of the Tribe. That election was not valid, and I have

WO2-WEST:STARING03259917.3 P CVMT-2011-002197
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never recognized Burley as Tribal Chairperson or as an authority or representative of the
Tribe.

10.  Although I informed the BIA that my resignation was forged and
disputed the validity of the May 1999 election, the BIA initially recognized Burley as
Chairperson of the Tribe, over my protests, in June 1999.

11.  Since 1999, Burley has attempted several times to have the BIA
recognize a Tribal constitution drafted by her and ratified only by Burley and her
daughters. Ihave never been involved in the drafting of the constitutions submitted by
Burley. To my knowledge, Burley has never involved any member of the Tribe other than

herself and her daughters in the drafting or attempted adoption of her constitutions.

12.  Beginning in 1999, Burley received money, from both the United
States government and the state of California, that belonged to the Tribe. I never received
any of those funds, and I am not aware of any other Tribal member who received any of
the funds except for Burley and her immediate family. I am not aware of any programs or

services for the benefit of Tribe members that were established or supported using the
funds.

13, In 2003, Ifiled a formal appeal with the BIA, challenging its
recognition of Burley as Chairperson of the Tribe. The BIA never ruled on the merits of
my appeal, but in 2005 the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs stated that my appeal was
moot because the BIA did not regard the Tribe as organized, did not recognize any
government of the Tribe, and therefore could not recognize anyone, including Burley, as

Chairperson.

WO2-WEST:5JARIMO3209917.3 g CVMT-2011-002198
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14.  In 2003 I renewed efforts to organize the Tribe with the participation
of the entire Tribal community. Exercising my traditional authority as the Hereditary
Chief of the Tribe, I appointed a Tribal Council to oversee the Tribe’s affairs. The Council
currently consists of me and five other persons who are recognized as persons of authority
within the Tribe: Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson
and Antone Azevedo. With few exceptions, the Council has met each month since 2003 to

conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental functions.

15.  The Tribal Council, including myself, met with the BIA in September
2003 and presented them with documentation of the Council’s legitimate claim to Tribal
authority. We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal conununity members who
should be allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We requested that
the BIA call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal government by majority
vote that would be recognized by the United States government. The BIA did not act on
the Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to meet with the Council

to discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

16.  Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal
community, Aftendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more
than 100 persons. Attendance records are kept and meetings are recorded and archived. I
participate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial
meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings at

which I was present.
17.  Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a mamber

of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the fribal

community, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community.

W02-WEST:5]AR1\W(3299917.3 -4- CVMT-2011-002199
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18.  In April 2007, the BIA published public notices requesting that
individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership provide the BIA with
documentation of their ¢laims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from
historical members of the Tribe. I submitted my genealogy to the BIA. To my knowledge,
no member of the Burley Faction submitted any documentation of their claims to

membership.

19.  On December 22, 2010, the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs
informed me by letter that he considered the Tribe organized under the invalid 1998
Resolution, that he was rescinding the BIA’s 2005 decision denying recognition of Burley
as a Tribal leader, and that he was rescinding the BIA’s efforts to assist the Tribe in
organizing with the participation of the entire Tribal community (the “December 22
Decision™). The Assistant Secretary directed the BIA to reestablish “government to
government” relations with the Tribe through its General Council, as established by the
invalid 1998 Resolution. As a result of the December 22 Decision, my traditional
authority as Hereditary Chief and Traditional Spokesperson is infringed, and the Tribal
Council’s authority is infringed. As a result of the December 22 Decision, the United

States does not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of
the Tribe.

20. Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
on January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her danghters, her granddaughter and myself
were allowed to attend. Burley characterized this as a meeting of the Tribe’s General
Council and attemnpted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. I do not recognize Burley’s
authority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting and did not participate m the
January 7 meeting.

WO2-WEST:SJARNQ3ZP9917.3 -5- CVMT-2011-002200
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21.  Ido not recognize the results of the election Burley conducted at that
meeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted. However, the BIA has
issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

Chairperson and her daughter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

22.  Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to
prevent members of the Council from participating in litigation that she filed in California
Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue Sharing Trust Fund
("RSTF™) money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California. If Burley receives
the funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will
receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds.

23.  The December 22 Decision effectively gives the Burley Faction the

power to deny membership in the Tribe to anyone who is not a member of Burley’s

immediate family.

24.  The Burley Faction has already attempted to disenroll me from the
Tribe, in 20085, in an attempt to deny me a basis to intervene in a federal lawsuit that
Burley had filed, purportedly on behalf of the Tribe. In 2009, the Burley Faction
attempted to reenroll me, in an attempt to deny roe a basis fo participate in litigation filed

by Burley in California Superior Court.

25. 1 fear that Burley will attempt to disenroll me again as soon as it is no
longer useful for her to assert my membership as an obstacle to my participation in the
state litigation. If I am disenrolled from the Tribe, I will lose access to the federal medical

and other benefits provided to members of recognized federal Indian tribes.

WO2Z-WEST:5JAR1M032569517.3 -6- CVMT-2011-002201
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1 26. Based on the December 22 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment
2 || of tribal “self-determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are
3 |1 intended to assist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and
4 || performing govermmental services and functions. If Burley receives the funds, the Tribe,
5 || the Council and its members will be deprived of the funds. In addition, the funds will
6 || support Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other
7§ members.
8
9 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

10 |{ America that the foregoing is true and correct.

11

12 Executed March 7, 2011, at Sheep Ranch, California.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WO2-WEST:SIAR1403299917.2
CVMT-2011-002202




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 218 of 270
Case 1:11-cv-00180-RWR Document 44-8  Filed 01/10/12 Page 45 of 163

EXHIBIT 10

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Velma Whitebear
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THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, ef al.,

Ve

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity
as Secretary of the United States
Department of the Interior, ef al.

Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 44-9 Filed 01/10/12 Page 46 of 163

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division

Case No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR

Affidavit of Velma Whitebear In Support of
Plaintiffs’ Motion for Preliminary
Injunction

Hon. Richard W. Roberts

AFFIDAVIT OF VELMA WHITEBEAR

Preliminary Injunction.

Dorrington, Superintendent of the BIA.

1 W02-WEST:5TARIM03300051.2

I, Velma Whitebear, declare as follows:

1. I am an individual and a party in the above-entitled action. I am over
the age of 18 and a resident of Sacramento County, California. I have personai knowledge
I of the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be frue and correct, and if called as
a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto.

2. This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs' Motion for

3. I am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") and a
member of its Tribal Council (“Council™). I trace my tribal lineal descent from my great
grandparents (John Jeff, born 1867, and Tillie Jeff, born 1889), my grandmother (Laural
Geto, born 1902) and my mother (Annie Jeanette Geto, born 1928), all of whom are listed
in the Indian Census Roll of June 30, 1929, for Calaveras County as taken by L.A.

CVMT-2011-002204
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4, I recognize Yakima Dixie as the Hereditary Chief and Traditional
Spokesperson of the Tribe.

3. I do not recognize Silvia Burley as any authority for the Tribe,

6. In 2003, Yakima Dixie appointed me to the Council. The Council
currently consists of Yakima Dixie, me, and four other persons who are recognized as
persons of authority within the Tribe: Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson
and Antone Azevedo. With few exceptions, the Council has met each month since 2003 to

conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental functions,

7. The Council met with the Bureau of Indian Affairs ("BIA") in
September 2003 and presented the BIA with documentation of the Council’s legitimate
claim to Tribal authority. We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal community
members who should be allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We
requested that the BIA call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal
government by majority vote that would be recognized by the United States government.
The BIA did not act on the Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to

meet with the Council to discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

8. Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal
communify. Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more
than 100 persons. Aftendance records are kept and meetings are recorded and archived. I
participate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial
meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings that

I attended.

W02-WEST:STAR 1033000512 N CVMT-2011-002205
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9. Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a number
of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal
comnunity, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. These

programs and activities include the following:

10. The Tribe has interceded in approximately ten child custody
proceedings under the Indian Child Welfare Act ("ICWA"), on behalf of children of Tribe
members. In those cases where a child is removed from its family, the Tribe seeks to have
the child placed with an Indian family or a family with ties to Indian traditions. I have
been the Tribe's contact person for local agencies seeking to determine whether children
are eligible for protection under ICWA (i.e., are members or potential members of the
Tribe). Ihave referred many of the cases to John Bergersen of the Kene Me-Wu Family
Healing Center, who has represented the Tribe in those proceedings. A true and correct
copy of a letter from me to Mr, Bergersen, anthorizing him to represent the Tribe in an

ICWA proceeding for 2 member of the Tribe, is attached hereto as Exhibit "A".

11.  Burley has consistently opposed the Tribe's efforts to protect children
in ICWA proceedings. She and her danghter, Rashel Reznor, have asserted that I and
others involved in these efforts are not members of the Tribe and are not authorized to
represent the Tribe or its children in ICWA proceedings. They have asserted that the
children themselves are not members of the Tribe, and thus not entitled to protection under

ICWA. According to Burley, the only child who is a member of the Tribe is her

granddaughter, ITristian Wallace.| A true and correct copy of a letter from Rashel Reznor to

Amador County Deputy Counsel Jennifer Magee, claiming that two children are not
members of the Tribe, is attached hereto as Exhibit "B", As a result of the actions taken by
Burley and Reznor, some children who were members of the Tribe have been denied

protection under ICWA and placed for adoption with non-Indian families. Outcomes such

WO2-WEST:STARIM03300051.2 -3 CVMT-2011-002206
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as this deprive the children of their cultural identity and deprive the Tribal community of

contact with its members.

12.  Recently I was contacted by county officials regarding custody
proceedings for another child who is a member of our Tribe. I wish to intervene under
ICWA on behalf of the Tribe and this child, but I am afraid to do so because the Assistant
Secretary's December 22 decision casts doubt on my authority to represent the Tribe and
its members in ICWA proceedings. Without intervention by the Tribe, the child is likely
be placed with a non-Indian family.

13.  The Tribe has participated, with other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal
Miwok Language Restoration Group. Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok mermber who
Pk - . ) Y

still speaks the Miwok language.

14,  The Tribe has formed a ceremonial Indian dance group that represents
the Tribe at events throughout California,

15.  The Tribe has consulted with Caltrans and other agencies regarding

Indian cultural artifacts and rernains found at development sites.

16.  The Tribe has offered classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as
basket weaving, and participates in ongoing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants,
pine nuts, and other materials for such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those
materials are gathered. I have participated in the gathering of those materials, such as
willow roots for basket weaving, and would like to continue to do so. However, the loss of
federally recognized tribal status would prevent me from doing so, because only members

of federally recognized tribes are permiited to gather such materials on public lands.

WO2-WEST:SJAR1M03300051.2 e CVMT-2011-002207
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17.  The Tribe participates in the annual Satmon Distribution Project in
which it obtains several tons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam hatchery and

distributes it to Tribe members.

18 The Tribe has issued Tribal identification cards and keeps a
membership roll that is updated regularly.

19.  In April 2007, the BIA published public notices requesting that
individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership provide the BIA with
documentation of their claims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from
historical members of the Tribe. I submitted my genealogy to the BIA. To my knowledge,
no member of the Burley Faction submitted any decumentation of their claims to

membership.

20.  As aresult of the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs’ December 22,
2010 Decision to recognize the Tribe as organized under an invalid 1998 resolution (the
"December 22 Decision"), the Council’s authority is infringed, and the United States does

not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of the Tribe.

21.  Twould like to participate in the organization of the Tribe under the
Indian Reorganization Act, but as a result of the December 22 Decision, neither I nior any
other member of the Tribal Council or the larger Tribal community will be allowed to
participate in the organization process, the drafting and adoption of a Tribal constitution,

or the creation of a Tribal government that is recognized by the United States.

W02-WEST:SIAR1M03300051.2 -5~ CVMT-2011-002208
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22,  Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
on January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her daughters, and her granddaughter were
allowed to attend. I was not permitted to attend the special meeting.

23. Buley characterized the special meeting as a meeting of the Tribe's
General Council and attempted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. Ido not recognize

Burley’s authority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting.

24.  Idonot recognize the resulis of the election Burley conducted at that
meeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted, However, the BIA has
issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

Chairperson and her daughter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

25.  Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to
exclude me and the other members of the Council from participating in litigation that she
filed in California Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue

Sharing Trust Fund ("RSTF") money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California.

26.  Based on the December 22 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment
of tribal “self-determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are
intended to assist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and

providing governmental functions and services.

27.  Ihave never received any of the RSTF money that Burley previously
received from the state of California, or any of the federal self-determination funds that
Burley previously received from the United States under Public Law 93-638. I am not
aware of any other Tribal member who received any of the funds except for Burley and her

immediate family. 1am not aware of any programs or services for the benefit of the Tribe

W02-WEST:SJARM03300051.2 -0~ CVMT-2011-002209
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or its members that were established or supported using the funds. If Burley receives the
funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will
receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds. In addition, the funds will support

Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other members.

28,  The Assistant Secretary's December 22 Decision deprives me of
membership in the Tribe, because it allows Burley to deny membership to anyone who is

not a member of her immediate family. As a result of this deprivation, I feel a loss of my

YO0 =1y th B W

cultural identity and my place in the Native American community. I addition, I will not

—
o

have access to federal medical benefits and other services available to members of

Yok
bt

federally recognized Indian tribes.

-
W ™

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

—
I

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

—_ =
o La

Executed March 7, 2011, at Sacramento County, California.
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Velma Whitebe: 7
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BREGEEBE RSO
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Exhibit"A"
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2008-01-24-Angelina-Dunlop-ICWA.

California Valley Miwok Tribe, California
(formerly the Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California)
11178 Sheep Ranch Rd. (Sheep Ranch)
Mountain Ranch, California 95246
209-728-8726
{www californiavalleymiwok.com}

Tanuary23, 2008

Velma WhiteBear, Executive Director
916-690-2312

John Bergersen

Kene Me-Wu Family Healing Center, Inc.
P.0O. Box 605

Sonora, Californa 95370

209-984-8602

<icwa@volcano.net>

Regarding
Mr. Bergesen:

This is to acknowledge that you and the Kene Me-Wu Family Healing Center,
}’nc are authorized to represent the California Valley Miwok Tribe in proceedmgs

; g under Indian Child Welfare Act (ICWA). :
year ) d child and is legible for enroliment with the California Valley Mtwok
Tribe.

Respectfully,

Detina heteSenr

Velma WhiteBear, Executive Director
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Exhibit "B"
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CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE
10601 Escondido Pl., Stockton CA 95212 Bus: (209) 931-4567 Fax: (200} 931-4333

.

frvaflpvarh

March 19, 2000

Ra:  CaseNo, 02-D0-0268 / 08-DP-0267 — Dastiny Fisher end Dekota Esher
Dear Ms, Mages,

tam the ICWA {indian Child Walfare Act) Director for the Calfornia Valley Miwok Triba ska
Sheep Ranch Ranchatia. The Callfornix Vallay Miwok Triba is locatod in Stockton, California and
listed in the federal register. Our Tribe is ko itsted In the Department of the intariar/Bursau of

Escondido Pl,, Stockton, CA 95212},

Ba it known that, 1am not an employee of Amador County Dapartment of Sotial Services who
has recommanded foster care in the 08-DP-0266 / 08-DP0267 Case. | have been the ICWA

in review of the aforementioned case, | am declaring that
are not inembers of our Tribe. | do know that their Grandmother £2

&0 and their father
SRRy were purportad to be Tribal Merabers of the Calaveras Band of MI-Wuk
indians located in West Point California, contact Chalrperson Gloria J, Grimas {209) 203.1218,
then they laft that Tribe and were sald to have joined with the Calaveras County Meuntain
Miwuk, focated in West Peint, Catifornla, Chairperson Dolores Turner (510) 566.3670 of which
there are ralatives who are active mambars in the Culavares County Mouatain Miwuk. | have
been informad that My, EiEmess e has again, ieft that Trihe and joined with a fictitious
group lead by Chadd Evarone {non indlan} of which our Tribe has filad a comglaint {against
Chadd Evarcie and Valma Whitabaear) with the Calaveras County Shariff's Departmaent and the
Berkeley Police Department, for Fraud, identity Theft and craating fake Tribat D cards,

CVMT-2011-002214
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dfor

Chadd Fverone, Yeima Whitebaar, ¢ ZaEPan
UERIEEER are nat members of aur Tribe, nor are thay afflinted with our Tribe. They

have applications pending with aur Tribe, if Tribal iD cards (purporting to b qur Triba) have
been submitted ta the courts, the bock or the cards must be signad by Chalrparson Sihvia Burlay

and Enrolimant Diractar Anfelica Pauilk, The cord will hava tha Tribe‘s DOT GOV websha fisted
as mﬁwumﬂmmmw .

In my opinion, as the ICWA Director for the California Valley Miwak Tribe, the courts should
take inte consideration the sariousness of the fact that Misrepresentations by Chadd Everons,
S arebaingpumorhﬁtnthamm

Respectfully,
ool f R‘; L

Rashe! Reznor * ¢
ICANA Director

Ce:
Ken Salazar, Secretary of tha Interior - indian Affalrs, 1849 C St. nw, Washington DC 20240
Cataveras County Snenfi's Degartment, 891 Mountaln Runch Rd., San Andreas, CA 95249
Berkeley Polica Department, 2100 Martin Luther King Ir. Bhvd,, Berkeley, Californin 94704
Congressman larry Melernay, 5775 Stoneridge Mell Rd. Suite 175, Plaasanton, Cailf. 94588
Sarah tAoffar, Flald Rep. for Senator Dianng Feinstein, Fresno, California
Attorney General Jerry Brown, 1300 | Strast, Sacramanto, Californis 95814
Calaveras County Mta. Miwuk, Dolores Turner, Chairperson fot
Calaveras Band of Mi-Wuk Indians, Gloria J, Grimas, 575 Bald Mt. Rd, Wast Point, CA 55255
Chairman Senator Byron Dargan. Senate Committas on (ndiar Affalrs, Washington DC 20510
NICWA - 5100 S.W. Macadam Avenue, Sta. 300, Portiand Oregon 57239
Mary Enriquez, ICWA Spaciallst CDS5S. 744 P Street, M5 11.82, Sacramento, CA 95814

v lohn Bargersen, ICWA - Kene Me-Wu Family Hexling Center,, P.O. Box 605 Sorora, CA 95370
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EXHIBIT 11

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Antonia Lopez
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THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK

TRIBE, et al.,

v'

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division

Case No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity Affidavit of Antenia Lopez In Support of

as Secretary of the United States

Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary

Department of the Interior, ef of, Injunction

Hon., Richard W. Roberts

AFFIDAVIT OF ANTONIA 1.OPEZ

I, Antonia Lopez, declare as follows:

1. I am an individual and a party in the above-entitled action. Iam over

the age of 18 and a resident of Amader County, California. Ihave personal knowledge of

WO02-WEST:STARTW03300201.2
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the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be true and correct, and if called as a

witness, I could and would competently testify thereto.

2. This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs’ Motion for

Preliminary Injunction.
3. 1 am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") and of
its Tribal Council (*“Council™). I trace my tribal lineal descent from my mother, Alice

Geto, my grandmother, Laura Jeff, and my great-grandparents, John Jeff and Tillie Jeff.

4, I recognize Yakima Dixie as the Hereditary Chief and Traditional

Spokesperson of the Tribe.

5. I do not recognize Silvia Burley as any authority for the Tribe.

6. In 2003, Yakima Dixie appointed me to the Council. The Council
currently consists of Yakima Dixie, me, and four other persons who are recognized as
persons of authority within the Tribe: Velma Whitebear, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn

Wilson and Antone Azevedo. With few exceptions, the Council has met each month since

2003 to conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental

functions.

7. The Tribal Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and

presented them with documentation of the Council’s legitimate claim to Tribal authority.

‘We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal community members who should be

allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We requested that the BIA

call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal government by majority vote that

WO2-WEST:STARIM03300201.2 . CVMT-2011-002218
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would be recognized by the United States government. The BIA did not act on the
Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to meet with the Council to

discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

3. Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal .
community. Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more

than 100 persons. Attendance records are kept and meetings are recorded and archived. I

o ~1 N th P W b e

participate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial
G || meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings that
10 | I attended.
11
12 S. Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a number
13 || of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal

14 || community, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. These

15 |{ programs and activities include the following:

16

17 10.  The Tribe has participated, with other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal
18 || Miwok Language Restoration Group. Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok member who

19 || still speaks the Miwok language.

20

21

22 11,  The Tribe has formed a ceremonial Indian dance group that represents

23 |i the Tribe at events throughout California.

244

25 12.  The Tribe has consulted with Caltrans and other agencies regarding
26 || Indian cultural artifacts and remains found at development sites,

27

28

WO2-WEST:SJAR103300201.2 3- CVMT-2011-002219
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13.  The Tribe has offered classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as
basket weaving, and participates in ongoing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants,
pine nuts, and other materials for such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those

materials are gathered.

14.  The Tribe participates in the annual Salmon Distribution Project in
which it obtains several tons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam hatchery and

distributes it to Tribe members.

15.  The Tribe has issued Tribal identification cards and keeps a
membership roll that is updated regularly.

16. In April 2007, the BIA published public notices requesting that
individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership provide the BIA with
documentation of their claims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from
historical members of the Tribe. I submitted my genealogy to the BIA, To my knowledge,
no member of the Burley Faction submitted any documentation of their claims to

membership.

21 " 17.  Asaresult of the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs' December 22,

2010 Decision to recognize the Tribe as organized under an invalid 1998 resolution (the
"December 22 Decision™), the Tribal Council’s authority is infringed, and the United

States does not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of
the Tribe.

18. T would like to participate in the organization of the Tribe under the

Indian Reorganization Act, but as a result of the December 22 Decision, neither I nor any

WO02-WEST:5JARIW03300201.2 -4- CVMT-2011-002220
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other member of the Tribal Council will be allowed to participate in the organization
process, the drafting and adoption of a Tribal constitution, or the creation of a Tribal
government that is recognized by the United States.

19.  Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
on January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her daughters, and her granddaughter were

allowed to attend, I was not permitted to attend the special meeting.

o o0 3 v th B W N

20. Buley characterized the special meeting as a meeting of the Tribe’s

Joaud
<

General Council and attempted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. I do not recognize

Y
ok

Burley’s authority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting.

[ -
w

21.  Idonotrecognize the results of the election Burley conducted at that

)_.l
.

meeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted. However, the BIA has

i
h

issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

[
L=}

Chairperson and her daughter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

Lt
(=B |

22. Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to

a—y
o

exclude me and the other members of the Council from participating in litigation that she

[
<

filed in California Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue

Sharing Trust Fund ("RSTF") money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California.

[~}
—

[
"]

23.  Based on the December 22 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment of tribal “self-

]
[¥S)

determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are intended to

N

agsist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and performing

e
Lh

governmental functions and services.

R R

24.  Ihave never received any of the RSTF money that Burley previously

[
o0

received from the state of California, or any of the federal self-determination funds that

WO02-WEST:STARIW03300201.2 -5- CVMT-2011-002221
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Burley previously received from the United States under Public Law 53-638. [ am not
aware of any other Tribal member who received any of the funds except for Burley and her
immediate family. I am not aware of any programs or services for the benefit of the Tribe
or its members that were established or supported using the funds. If Burley receives the
funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will
receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds. In addition, the funds will support

Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other members,

oo < o th bW =

28.  The Assistant Secretary's December 22 Decision deprives me of

10 |t membership in the Tribe, because it allows Burley to deny membership to anyone who is
11 || not a2 member of ber immediate family. As a result of this deprivation, I feel a loss of my
12 || cultural identity and my place in the Native American community. I addition, I will not
13 || have access to federal medical benefits and other services available to members of

14 |{ federally recognized Indian tribes.

15
16 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of
17 || America that the foregoing is true and correct.

18
19 Executed March & , 2011, at Amador County, California.
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

W2-WEST:5IAR1W03300201.)
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EXHIBIT 12

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Michael Mendibles
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division

THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, et al.,

Y.

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity
as Secretary of the United States

Case No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR

Affidavit of Michael Mendibles In Support
of Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary

Department of the Interior, ef al. Tojunction

Hon. Richard W. Roberts

AFFIDAVIT OF MICHAEL MENDIBLES
I, Michael Mendibies, declare as follows:

1. I am an individual and a party in the above-entitled action. I am over
the age of 18 and a resident of Calaveras County, California. I have personal knowledge
of the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be true and correct, and if called as

a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto.

2. This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs' Motion for
Preliminary Injunction.

3, I am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") and of
its Tribal Council ("Council™). I trace my tribal lineal descent from my mother, Valarie
Mata-Mendibles, my grandmother, Dora Hodge-Shelton Mata, and my great-grandmother,
Lena Hodge-Shelton, who were listed in the 1915 Indian census and/or the 1929 Indian

Census Roll of Calaveras County.
4. I own ancestral land adjacent to the Sheep Ranch Rancheria.

WO2-WEST:STARI\03300200.2 CVMT-2011-002224
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5. 1recognize Yakima Dixie as the Hereditary Chief and Traditional
Spokesperson of the Tribe.

6. I do not recognize Silvia Burley as any authority for the Tribe.

7. In 2003, Yakima Dixie appointed me to the Council. The Council
currently consists of Yakima Dixie, me, and four other persons who are recognized as
persons of authority within the Tribe: Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Evelyn Wilson
and Antone Azevedo, With few exceptions, the Council has met each month since 2003 to

conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental functions.

8. The Tribal Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and
presented them with documentation of the Council’s legitimate claim to Tribal authority.
We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal community members who should be
allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We requested that the BIA
call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal government by majority vote that
would be recognized by the United States government, The BIA did not act on the
Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to meet with the Council to

discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

9. Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal
community. Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more
than 100 persons. Attendance records are kept and meetfings are recorded and archived. I
participate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial
meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings that
I attended.

WOZ-WEST:5JAR1\403300209.2 -2- CVMT-2011-002225




Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 66-2 Filed 05/11/12 Page 241 of 270

W O ~1 h h B W e

T o T T o e T
~1 N L B W e O

NSO e
BRI RBREREBS R S @

oy
QO

flCase 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 44-9  Filed 01/10/12 Page 68 of 163

10.  Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a number
of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal
community, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. These

programs and activities include the following:

11.  The Tribe has interceded in approximately ten child custody cases
under the Indian Child Welfare Act, in an effort to have children of Tribe members placed
with families that have ties to Indian traditions. Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in
those cases and denied that the children are eligible for membership in the Tribe.

12.  The Tribe has participated in Indian health services, emergency
services and food distribution programs, including the MACT Indian health services
program, that benefit members of the Tribe and other Indian tribes.

13.  The Tribe has participated, with other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal
Miwok Language Restoration Group. Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok member who
still speaks the Miwok language.

14.  The Tribe has formed a ceremonial Indian dance group that represents
the Tribe at events throughout California.

15.  The Tribe has consulted with Caltrans and other agencies regarding

Indian cultural artifacts and remains found at development sites.

16.  The Tribe has offered classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as
basket weaving, and participates in ongoing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants,
pine nuts, and other materials for such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those

| materials are gathered.
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17.  The Tribe is engaged in discussions with Calaveras County and other
local and state agencies, through the Amador-Calaveras Consensus Group and the
Calaveras Healthy Impact Products Sclutions program, regarding joint participation in the
Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program, a federally supported forest
rehabilitation program. This program would provide economic opportunities for Tribe

members and the local community.

18.  The Tribe participates in the annual Salmon Distribution Project in
which it obtains several tons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam hatchery and

distributes it to Tribe members.

19.  The Tribe has issued Tribal identification cards and keeps a
membership roll that is updated regularly.

20. In April 2007, the BIA published public notices fequesting that
individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership proviﬁé the BIA with

documentation of their claims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from

ihistorical members of the Tribe. I submitted my genealogy to the BIA. To my knowledge,

no member of the Burley Faction submitted any documentation of their claims to

meimbership.

21.  Asaresult of the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs' December 22,
2010 Decision to recognize the Tribe as organized under an invalid 1998 resolution (the
"December 22 Decision"), the Tribal Council’s authority is infringed, and the United

States does not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of
the Tribe.

W02-WEST:5TARTW03300208.2 4 CVMT-2011-002227
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22.  Iwould like fo participate in the organization of the Tribe under the
Indian Reorganization Act, but as a result of the December 22 Decision, neither I will not
be allowed to participate in the organization process, the drafting and adoption of a Tribal
constitution, or the creation of a Tribal government that is recognized by the United States.

23.  Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
on January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her daughters, and her granddaughter were

allowed to attend. I was not permitted to attend the special meeting.

24.  Burley characterized the special meeting as a meeting of the Tribe's
General Council and attempted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. I do not recognize

Burley’s authority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting.

25. Y donotrecognize the results of the election Burley conducted at that
ineeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted. However, the BIA has
issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

Chairperson and her danghter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

26. Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to
exclude me and the other members of the Council from participating in litigation that she
filed in California Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue

Sharing Trust Fund ("RSTF") money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California.

27.  Based on the December 12 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment
of tribal “self-determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are
intended to assist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and

performing governmental functions and services.
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received from the state of California, or any of the federal self-determination funds that

Burley previously received from the United States under Public Law 93-638. I am not

funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will
receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds. In addition, the funds will support

v G0 1 h th P b

Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other members,

Jurak ek
PO

29.  The Assistant Secretary's December 22 Decision deprives me of

i ek e
B VS

cultural identity and my place in the Native American community. I addition, I will not

p—
[ ]

have access to federal medical benefits and other services available to0 members of

—
2,

federally recognized Indian fribes.

ot
[+ TN |

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

—
O

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

]

Executed March 5, 2011, at Calaveras County, California.

| o B S 4
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28.  I'have never received any of the RSTF money that Burley previously

aware of any other Tribal member who recéived any of the funds except for Burley and her
immediate family. I am not aware of any prograrms or services for the benefit of the Tribe

or its members that were established or supported using the funds. If Butley receives the

membership in the Tribe, because it allows Burley to deny membership to anyone who is

not a member of her immediate family. As a result of this deprivation, I feel a loss of my

=

Michael Mendibles é‘ £ 4

8 8 R
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EXHIBIT 13

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Evelyn Wilson
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TRIBE, et al.,

Y.

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity
as Secretary of the United States
Department of the Interior, ef al.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division

THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK

Case No. 1:11-ev-00160-RWR

Affidavit of Evelyn Wilson In Support of
Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary
Injunction

Hon, Richard W. Roberts

Preliminary Injunction.

Indian Census Roll of Calaveras County.

Spokesperson of the Tribe.

WO02-WEST:5JARIM03300217.2

AFFIDAVIT OF EVELYN WIL.SON
I, Evelyn Wilson, declare as follows:

1. I am an individual and a party in the ahpve-entitled action. Tam over
the age of 18 and a resident of Calaveras County, California. Ihave personal knowledge
of the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be true and correct, and if called as

a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto.

2.  This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs' Motion for

3. I am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") and of
its Tribal Council (“Council). I trace my tribal lineal descent from my mother, Laura

1 Hodge Jeff, and my grandparents, John Jeff and Tillie Jeff, who were listed in the 1929

4. 1recognize Yakima Dixie as the Hereditary Chief and Traditional

-1- CVMT-2011-002231
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5. 1 do not recognize Silvia Burley as any authority for the Tribe.

6.  In2003, Yakima Dixie appointed me to the Council. The Council
currently consists of Yakima Dixie, me, and four other persons who are recognized as
persons of authority within the Tribe: Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Michael
Mendibles and Antone Azevedo, With few exceptions, the Council has met each month
since 2003 to conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental

functions.

Do s~ h th B W B e

oy
>

7. The Tribal Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and

—
(S

presented them with documentation of the Council’s legitimate claim to Tribal authority,

-
o)

We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal community members who should be

u—y
w

allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We requested that the BIA

H
r.

call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal government by majority vote that

[
wh

would be recognized by the United States government., The BIA did not act on the

—
=}

Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to meet with the Council to
17 j| discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

18
19 8. Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal

20 || community. Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more
21 || than 100 persons. Aftendance records are kept and meetings are recorded and archived. I
22 || participate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial

23 || meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings.
24
25 0. Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a number
26 || of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal

27 || communify, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. These

28 || programs and activities include the following:
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10.  The Tribe has interceded in approximately ten child custody cases
under the Indian Child Welfare Act, in an effort to have children of Tribe members placed
with families that have ties to Indian fraditions. Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in
those cases and denied that the children are eligible for membership in the Tribe.

11,  The Tribe has participated in Indian health services, emergency
services and food distribution programs, including the MACT Indian health services
program, that benefit members of the Tribe and other Indian tribes.

12.  The Tribe has participated, with other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal
l Miwok Language Restoration Group. I am the senior Miwok member who still speaks the

Miwok langnage.

13.  The Tribe has formed a ceremonial Indian dance group that represents

the Tribe at events throughout California,

14,  The Tribe has consulted with Caltrans and other agencies regarding

Indian cultural artifacts and remaing found at development sites.

15. The Tribe has offered classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as
basket weaving, and participates in ongoing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants,
pine nuts, and other materials for such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those

materials are gathered.

16.  The Tribe is engaged in discussions with Calaveras County and other
local and state agencies, through the Amador-Calaveras Consensus Group and the
Calaveras Healthy Impact Products Solutions program, regarding joint participation in the
Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program, a federally supported forest

WO2-WEST:5TAR 033002172 w3 CVMT-2011-002233
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rehabilitation program. This program would provide economic opportunities for Tribe

members and the local community.

17.  The Tribe participates in the annual Salmon Distribution Project in
which it obtains several tons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam hatchery and

I distributes it to Tribe members.

18.  The Tribe has issued Tribal identification cards and keeps a
membership roll that is npdated regularly.

19.  In April 2007, the BIA published public notices requesting that
individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership provide the BIA with
documentation of their claims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from
historical members of the Tribe, I submitted my genealogy to the BIA. To my knowledge,
no member of the Burley Faction submitted any documentation of their claims to

membership.

20.  As aresult of the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs’ December 22,

2010 Decision to recognize the Tribe as organized under an invalid 1998 resolution (the

21 || "December 22 Decision”), the Tribal Council’s authority is infringed, and the United

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

States does not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of
the Tribe.

21. Iwould like to participate in the organization of the Tribe under the
Indian Reorganization Act, but as a result of the December 22 Decision, neither I nor any

other member of the Tribal Council will be allowed to participate in the organization
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process, the drafting and adoption of a Tribal constitution, or the creation of a Tribal
government that is recognized by the United States.

22. Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
on January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her danghters, and her granddaughter were
allowed to attend. I was not permitted to attend the special meefing,.

23.  Burley characterized the special meeting as a meeting of the Tribe’s
General Council and attempted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. I do not recognize

Burley’s anthority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting,

24.  Ido not recognize the results of the election Burley conducted at that
meeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted. However, the BIA has
issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

Chairperson and her daughter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

25. Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to
exclude me and the other members of the Council from participating in litigation that she
filed in California Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue

Sharing Trust Fund ("RSTEF") money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California.

26.  Based on the December 12 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment
of fribal “self-determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are
intended to assist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and

performing governmental functions and services.

27.  1have never received any of the RSTF money that Burley previously

received from the state of California, or any of the federal self-determination funds that
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Burley previously received from the United States under Public Law 93-638. I am not
aware of any other Tribal member who received any of the funds except for Burley and her
immediate family. 1 am not aware of any programs or services for the benefit of the Tribe
or its members that were established or supported using the funds. If Burley receives the
funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will
receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds. In addition, the funds will support

Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other members.

v 1 N h b W R e

28. The Assistant Secretary’s December 22 Decision deprives me of

—
<

membership in the Tribe, because it allows Burley to deny membership to anyone who is

ot
st

not a member of her immediate family. As a result of this deprivation, I feel a loss of my

—
d

cultural identity and my place in the Native American community. I addition, I will not

_—
[¥M]

have access to federal medical benefits and other sexvices available to members of

—
-

federally recognized Indian tribes.

Pt et
o Lh

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

s
~J

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

— bt
oo

Executed Ma.tchS, 2011, at Calaveras County, California.

S

Q::efgi\/h ';2( !,J?Z( ..../z’//ﬂl ,BQ-'.«

Evelyn’ Wilson
723
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EXHIBIT 14

to Brief of Chief Yakima Dixie and the Tribal Council of the California Valley
Miwok Tribe (May 3, 2011)

Affidavit of Antone Azevedo
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division
THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, et al.,
v. Case No, 1:11-cv-00160-RWR

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity | Affidavit of Anfone Azevedo In Support of

as Secretary of the United States Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary
Department of the Interior, ef al. Injunction

Hon. Richard W. Roberts

AFFIDAVIT OF ANTONE AZEVEDQO

1, Antone Azevedo, declare as follows:

1. I am an individual and a party in the above-entitled action. T am over
the age of 18 and a resident of Calaveras County, California. I have personal knowledge
of the facts set forth herein, which are known by me to be true and correct, and if called as

a witness, I could and would competently testify therefo.

2. This affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiffs' Motion for
Preliminary Injunction.

3, I am a member of the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe") and of
its Tribal Council (“Council”). From 1950 to 1958, I lived with my family on the Sheep
Ranch Rancheria, I trace my tribal lineal descent to the ancestral members of the Tribe, as
delineated in the 1929 Indian Census Roll of Calaveras County, through my mother, Annie

Jeannete Geto, my grandmeother, Laura Hodge Jeff, and my great-grandparents, John Jeff
and Tillie Jeff.
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4, I recognize Yakima Dixie as the Hereditary Chief and Traditional
Spokesperson of the Tribe.

5. I do not recognize Silvia Burley as any anthority for the Tribe.

6. In 2003, Yakima Dixie appointed me to the Council. The Council

currently consists of Yakima Dixie, me, and four other persons who are recognized as
persons of authority within the Tribe: Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez, Michael
Mendibles and Evelyn Wilson. With few exceptions, the Council has met each month
since 2003 to conduct Tribal business, enact resolutions, and perform other governmental

functions.

7. The Tribal Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and
presented them with documentation of the Council’s legitimate claim to Tribal authority,
‘We also presented the BIA with a list of Tribal community members who should be
allowed to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. We requested that the BIA
call a Secretarial election under the IRA to select a tribal government by majority vote that
T would be recognized by the United States government. The BIA did not act on the
Council’s request to call a Secretarial election but continued to meet with the Council to

discuss efforts to organize the Tribe.

8. Tribal Council meetings are open to all members of the Tribal
community. Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30 persons to more
than 100 persons. Attendance records are kept and meetings are recorded and archived. 1
patticipate regularly in these meetings. Burley was specifically invited to the initial
meetings and has never been excluded, but she has never attended any of the meetings that

1 attended.
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9.  Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has initiated a number

of programs aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal
community, and reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. These

programs and activities include the following:

10.  The Tribe has interceded in approximately ten child custody cases
under the Indian Child Welfare Act, in an effort to have children of Tribe members placed

with families that have ties to Indian traditions. Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in

v oo ~1 vt R W

those cases and denied that the children are eligible for membership in the Tribe.

[
| v

11.  The Tribe has participated in Indian health services, emergency

ok
)

services and food distribution programs, including the MACT Indian health services
13 | program, that benefit members of the Tribe and other Indian tribes.

14
15 12.  The Tribe has participated, with other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal
16 || Miwok Language Restoration Group. Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok member who
17 |l still speaks the Miwok language.

18

19 13,  The Tribe has formed a ceremonial Indian dance group that represents
20 || the Tribe at events throughout California.

21

22 14.  The Tribe has consulted with Caltrans and other agencies regarding
23 || Indian cultural artifacts and remains found at development sites.

24

25 15.  The Tribe has offered classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as

26 || basket weaving, and participates in ongoing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants,
27 |t pinte nuts, and other mmaterials for such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those

28 || materials are gathered.
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16.  The Tribe is engaged in discussions with Calaveras County and other
local and state agencies, through the Amador-Calaveras Consensus Group and the
Calaveras Healthy Impact Products Solutions program, regarding joint participation in the
Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program, a federally supported forest
rehabilitation program. This program would provide economic opportunities for Tribe

members and the local community.

17.  The Tribe participates in the annual Salmon Distribution Project in

LU= TR -« B [ o R O N - o I

which it obtains several tons of fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam hatchery and

Jrand
[}

distributes it to Tribe membess.

—
(o S

18.  The Tribe has issued Tribal identification cards and keeps a

—
W

membership roll that is updated regularly.

— = =
[ N ) S - Y

19.  In April 2007, the BIA published public notices requesting that

Ju—
-1

individuals who asserted a claim to Tribal membership provide the BIA with

ot
[}

documentation of their claims, such as personal genealogies showing their descent from

fa—y
D

historical members of the Tribe. I submitted my genealogy to the BIA. To my knowledge,

]

no member of the Burley Faction submitted any documentation of their claims to

[
p—t

membership.

5 B

20.  As aresult of the Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs' December 22,

R

2010 Decision to recognize the Tribe as organized under an invalid 1998 resolution (the

o]
i

!
"December 22 Decision"), the Tribal Council’s authority is infringed, and the United

bo
(=3

States does not recognize the Council or its members as representatives or authorities of
the Tribe.

8 N
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21.  Twould like to participate in the organization of the Tribe under the
qudian Reorganization Act, but as a result of the December 22 Decision, I will not be
allowed to participate in the organization process, the drafting and adoption of a Tribal

constitution, or the creation of a Tribal government that is recognized by the United States.

22. Based on the December 22 Decision, Burley held a “special meeting”
oh January 7, 2011, at which only Burley, her daughters, and her granddaughter were

allowed to attend. I was not permitted to attend the special meeting.

23,  Burley characterized the special meeting as a meeting of the Tribe’s
General Council and attempted to hold a Tribal election at the meeting. I do not recognize

Burley’s authority to call a Tribal election or General Council meeting.

24.  Ido not recognize the results of the election Burley conducted at that
meeting, in which only Burley and her family members voted. However, the BIA has
issued decisions recognizing the results of the election and recognizing Burley as

Chairperson and her daughter Rashel Reznor as Secretary/Treasurer of the Tribe.

25.  Burley also seeks to use the December 22 Decision as a basis to
exclude me and the other members of the Council from participating in litigation that she
filed in California Superior Court to gain access to more than $6 million in Revenue

Sharing Trust Fund ("RSTT") money held in trust for the Tribe by the state of California.

26.  Based on the December 12 Decision, the BIA has resumed payment
of tribal “self-determination” funds to Burley under Public Law 93-638. Those funds are
intended to assist the Tribe in organizing itself, forming a representative government and

performing governmental functions and services,
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27.  1have never received any of the RSTF money that Burley previously
received from the state of California, or any of the federal self-determination funds that
Burley previously received from the United States under Public Law 93-638. I am not
aware of any other Tribal member who received any of the funds except for Burley and her
immediate family. 1 am not aware of any programs or services for the benefit of the Tribe
or its members that were established or supported using the fonds. If Burley receives the
funds, neither the Tribe itself, nor the Council, nor any other members of the Tribe will

receive any of the funds or benefit from the funds. In addition, the funds will support

O =1 B W N

Burley's continued efforts to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to other members.

jamd ek
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28.  The Assistant Secretary's December 22 Decision deprives me of

o
o

membership in the Tribe, because it allows Burley to deny membership to anyone who is

i
FS)

not a member of her immediate family. As a result of this deprivation, I feel a loss of my

Jamd
I

cultural identity and ray place in the Native American community. I addition, T will not

sk
L

have access to federal medical benefits and other services available to members of

pruy
(=)

federally recognized Indian tribes.

[
[o» BTN |

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

pay
\No

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

b
o}

Execunted March 5_, 2011, at Calaveras County, California.
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Antgffie Azevedo
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Base Enrollment of Members 2011-04-30-Resolution-members

L g

California Valley Miwok Tribe, California
(a.k.a. Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California)

RESOLUTION 2011-04-30
(The Base-Enrollment of Members for Organizing the Tribe)

WHEREAS, the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe"), also known as the Sheep
Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California, is a federally recognized Indian tribe;

WHEREAS, the Tribe is governed by its Tribal Council, which consists of the under-
signed Council members;

WHEREAS, the Tribe in 2006 adopted criteria defining those individuals who are eligi-
ble for membership in the Tribe, which include the lineal descendants of known historical
members of the Tribe;

WHEREAS, the Tribal Council directed that all individuals who meet the membership
criteria, and desire membership in the Tribe, should submit membership applications to the
Tribe with supporting information that demonstrates the basis for their claim to membership;

WHEREAS, the Tribal Council has reviewed each of the membership applications for
consistency with the Tribe's membership criteria and has enrolled those individuals who meet
the membership criteria; and

WHEREAS, the Tribe has maintained accurate records of enrollment actions and
maintains an up-to-date roster of all those individuals who are currently enrolled as members
in the Tribe;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

The Tribal Council declares and certifies that the individuals named in the attached
Tribal Membership Roster constitute the current adult membership of the Tribe as of the effec-
tive date of this Resolution; and

Any individuals not named in the attached Tribal membership roster, who meet the
Tribe's membership criteria and who desive membership in the Tribe, may submit applications
for membership to the Tribal Council. The Tribal Council will review all applications for
consistency with the Tribe's membership criteria and will continue to update the Tribal
membership roster as needed.
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Base Enrollment of Members

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

VERIFICATION

We, the undersigned, as a majority of the Tribal Counsel of the California Valley Miwok
Tribe, California (also known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of
California) do, hereby, certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted at a duly convened
meeting on April 30, 2011 or otherwise on the designated date of signing.

Approved: ( ) yes ( Yno () Abstained ( )

Yakima K. Dixie, Chief

Date:

Approved: ( ) yes ( Yno ( ) Abstained ( )

Velma WhiteBear, Executive Director

Date:

Approved: { ) yes ( ) no ( ) Abstained ( )

Antonia Lopez, Secretary

Date:

Approved: ( ) yes ( )no{ ) Abstained { }

Michael Mendibles

Date:

Approved: ( ) yes ( ) no () Abstained ( )

Evelyn Wilson

Date:

Approved: ( ) yes ( )no ( ) Abstained ( )

Shirley M. Wilson

Date:

Approved: { ) yes ( ) no { ) Abstained ( )

Iva Carsoner

Date:

Approved: { ) ves ( Yno( } Abstained ( }

Antone Azevedo

Date:

CVMT-2011-002266
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Base Enroflment of Members

201 1-04-30-Resolution-members

VERIFICATION

We, {he undersigned, as a majority of the Tribal Counsel of the California Valley Miwok
Tribe, California (also known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California)
do, hereby, certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted at a duly convened meefing on
April 30, 2011 or otherwise on the designated date of signing.

.

i @_‘ \
Date: }é’f/éf%ffwﬁi&%{t@
‘/l
i7

il —
Approved: (/'xf yes { )no () Abstained { )

vakima K. Dixie, Chief

Antonia Lopez, Secretary

i

3 kS
Date: (?\}r‘hh e \\;....."‘. LN P
1A A s o VRN -2 &LQ\ZUM

[

Approved: (¥) yes ( ) no () Abstained ()
7
F iraag B allpee -
7
Evelyn Wilson

Datc:

Approved: 60 yes ( ) no () Abstained ()

Iva Carsoner

Date:

Ap?);oved: f::{)?l:es () ;lgf—) Abstained { ) )

) sbien. Wbt Bean

Velma WhiteBear, Executive Director

Date:

Approved: (8 yes { ) no () Abstained ()

Michael Mendibles

Date: L{" % _;265/

Approved: (Q yes ( ) no () Abstained ( )

W o
%\L% W (N Do
Shirley M. Wilson

Date:

Approved: (‘:) ves ( )no ( ) Abstained ( )

Gl ¢ 74

Antone Azevedo

Date:
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Base Enrollment of Members

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

Adult Individuals (age 18 and over) on the Tribal Membership Roster are listed below.
Also, the Roster includes 350+ children, but they are not listed herein. This list was
reviewed and validated at the Tribal Council Meeting or April 30, 2011.

FirstName Initial
1 Shiann \'A
2  Phyllis Marie Wilson
3 Rodney W.
4 Joe Rudy
1 Josephine M..
2 Marie
3 Carmelita Maria
4 Ruben
5 Antone
6 Ashley
7 Cecilia
8§ Antone
9 Monica
10 Alejandso Al
11 Juanito Raul

12 Lorraine
13 Tina Azevedo
14 Vincent Manoto
15 Tina

16 Ruby

17 Michael

e

18 Ramona

-

19 Anjonae
20 Jonathan
21 Joseph
22 Alex

23 Christopher

E » B R

24 Crystal
25 Daniel
26 Lynette
27 Roberta

28 Daniel

City
Stockton
West Point
West Point
Jackson
Jackson

Kahului

i Rocklin
Rocklin
North Highlands

Stockton
Merth Highlands
North Highlands

Sacramento

Sacramento
Sacramento

Galt

Sacramento
Sacramento
Sacramento
West Point
Stockton
Wilseyville
Stockion
Stockton
Stockton

West Point

West Point
West Point
Wilseyville

Sacramento

Sacramento

Stockton

State
California
California
California
California
California
Hawalii
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California
California
California

California
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45
46
47
48
49
50
51

53
54
55
56
57
1)
59
60
8l
62
63

FirstName
Iva

Tina
Patrick
Stephen
Donell
Sandra
Israel
Briana
Galadrial
Kathryn
Yakima
Peter
Desirre
Arvada
Lee
Roxanne
Waite
Andrea
Yolanda
Natalie
Hudgee
Jake
Lucy
Owen
Rainbow
Renee
Dora
Louis
Paul
Rose
Vanessa
Yolanda
Laura
Sabrina

Samantha

Initial

Gonzales

Nathan
Jeanette
L.

Irene

E.
Robert
D.

M.

Reneé

L.
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City
Stockton
Stockion
Sacramenio
Sacramento

Wilseyville

Stockion

Wilseyville

Sutter Creck

Coring

¢ West Point

Kingsfon

West Point
West Point

West Point
Galt

Kahului

West Point
Burney
Bumney
Burney
Bumey
Burney
Burney
Vallecito
Murphys

Antelope

SN

West Point

Wilseyville

Vallecito

S EAE TR

Sacrasnento

Antelope

Antelape

Moreno Valley

Sheep Ranch

Railroad Flat

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

State
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California
California
California
Oklakoma
California
California
California
California
California
Hawaii
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California

California

CVMT-2011-002269
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Base Enrollment of Members

64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71

73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

83
84
85
36
87
38
8%
90
91

93
o4
95
96
97
98

FirstName
Teresa
Jazmyn
Lindsay
Mario
Michelle
Rosemary
Teresa
Tiffany
Tommie
Valerie
John
Andrea
Darlene
Barbara
Candace
Demitri
John
John
Sandra
Heather
Lconard
Nicole
Ronald
Cynthia
James
James
Margie
Tammy
Timothy
Travis
Elonda
Little Flower
Caro}
Harold

Harriet

Initial

{Bernal}

Andrea
John
Renee

Noei

Ann (Azevedo)

Marie

Christine

May Stevens

Stevens

City

Antelope
Moreno Valley
Moreno Valley

Nuevo

! Moreno Vallay

Seymour
Oakland
Moreno Valley

: Robersville

Moreno Valley
Galt
Acampo

Mokelumne Hill

! Maoreno Valley

Seymour
Elk Grove
Seymour
Stockton
Moreno Valley
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
Woodland
West Foint
West Point
San Andreas
Corning
Coming
West Point
West Point

Stockton

201 1-04-30-Resolutios-members

State
California
California
Califomia
California
California
MO
California
California
MO
California
California
California
California
California
MO
California
MO
California
California
California
Califomnia
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California
California
Califomnia
California
Califomnia
California
California

California

CVMT-2011-002270
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Base Enrollment of Members

99
106
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
10

FirstName
Harry
Helen
Shamona
Shaprice
Teresa
Tranctta
Harold
Althea
Betty
Kathieen
Tina
Tyler
Gail
Angelina
Iva
Jonathan
Kristi
Mary Louise
Tobias
Jonathan
Antoinette
Antonia
Lisa
Corina
Geneva
Joseph
Manuel
Sophia
Edward
Barbara
Felicia
Jose

Lisa

Jodi

Melissa

Initial

Marie

R.
Andrew
Marie

Rummerfield

RL

Christina Amparo

Marie

Anthony

Ann

Ann

Marie

City
Stockton

Stockton

¢ Stockton

: Stockton

Turlock
Stockton

Tuartock

i West Point

West Point
West Point

Stockton

1 Des Moines

Des Moines
Coarsegold
Sonora
Wilseyville
Jackson
Jackson

Jackson

: Weed

Weed
Sacramento
Galt

Stockton
Moreno Valley
Moreno Valley
Moreno Valley
Moreno Valley
Moreno Valley

Sacramento

Winchester

2011-04-30-Resclution-members

State
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Caiifornia
California
California
California
California
California
Washington
Washington
California
Califomnia
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California

California

CVMT-2011-002271
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Base Enrollment of Members

134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141

142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151

152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161

162
163
164
165
166
167
168

FirstName
Micheile
Bronson
Leon
Michael
Fidel
Donald
Tami
Leslie
Eugene
Tatiana
Christopher
Shawnee
Ascencion
Denise
Julian
Rachel
Alice
Daniel
Elsa R.
Robert
Victor
Anne
Enrique
Connie
Gonzalo
Leslie
Rosemarie
George
Herminia
Joseph
Lorenzo
Lucinda
Manuel
Pete

Vanessa

Initial

Janetie Gonzales
Lazaro

Dee

Alaway
1.

L
Anthony
Rose

Alex

City
Stockion
West Point
Carson City
West Point
Sacramento
Stockton

Sacramentio

West Point

Coming
Sacramento
Westwood
Westwood
Stockton
Stockton
Stockton
Stockton
Stackion
Stockton
Stockton
Stockion
Stockton
Fordland
Coming
Sacramento
Moreno Valley
Forfuna
West Point
West Point
Corning
Galt

Hemet
West Point
West Point
Stockton
Galt

ERRL

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

State
California
California
Nevada
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Missouri
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California

California

CVMT-2011-002272
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Base Enrollment of Members

FirstName
Gilbert
Giibert
Robert
Toni
Esther
Ruby
Bonnie
Deborah
Eric
Laveme
Sherry
Shirley
Noelani
Rosalie
Georgette
Jose
Esther
Joan
Soloman
Carolyn
Jeffrey
Robert
Maytenya
Renee
Mark
Elizabeth
Joe
Mikkel
Patricia
Genet
Phyllis Ann
Wendy
Vincent
Roger
Lloyd

Initial
Juan

1.

Lopstain

Mae

M,

A,

Leeann Summers
A,

Al

Irene
Lyle

Harry

Alan

Leola

Strongbear

Ana Marie

Rummerfield

G.

James

Antonio

City
Stockton
West Point

lone

¢ Galt

Stockton
Stockton
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
Stockton
Jackson
Jackson

San Andreas

Stockton
Stockton
West Point
West Point
West Point
Burney
Wilseyville
West Point
Coring
Coming
Corning
Coming

San Andreas
San Andreas
Sacramento
West Point
Stockton

Corning

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

State
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califomnia
California
California
California
Califoraia
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califormia

California

CVMT-2011-002273
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Base Enrollment of Members

N
o

[
3%
~I

[N
[+-]

FirstiName
Patricia
Teresa
Robert
Marilyn
Christina
Juan
Velma
Jason
Antonia
Lois
Roberta
Victoria
Angela
Anthony
Antonia
Arlene
Chaco
Charles
Christopher
Clifford
Edward
Ellen
Evelyn
John
Justin
Lauren
Lee
Mary
Mechelle
MeLisa
Raymond
Ronald Lee
Shirley
Evelyn

Lawrence

Initial
Elaine
Marie
Kelsey
Edith
Carolina
Antonio

Darlene

Marie

Chee
E.
John

Stephen
Lee
Franees
Elswarth

Cody

Anne

Whpi Nayati

Faye
E.

Moreno Valley
Orland
Oakland
Oakland
Galt

Pine Grove
Sacramento
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point

| West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
West Point
Tuolumne
Galt

Waest Point
West Point
Valley Springs
San Andreas

West Point

West Point
Mountain Ranch
West Point

West Point
West Point
Mountain Ranch
West Point
Stockton

West Point
West Point

2011.04-30-Resolution-membess

State
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califorma
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Califomia
California
California
California
California
California
California
California

California

CVMT-2011-002274
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Base Enrollment of Members

FirstName Initiak
Lawrence E.
Renee

Sherrie L.
Kathryn Diane

Document 44-9  Filed 01/10/12 Page 117 of 163

10

City

West Point
Vallecito
Lodi

Des Moines

2011-04-30-Resolution-members

State

California
California
California

Washington

CVMT-2011-002275





